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' FOOD DISTRIBUTION PROGEAM -
| WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER:‘ 22, '1’9'71

U.S. Senarn
SeLecr COMMITTEE ON

E a “ .. NurnrrioN AND HuyAN NErps

Washmgton, D.C.

" The Seloct Committee met at 10:05 aam., pursuant to cally in room
8407, of the Cdpitol, Senator Percy, pr e81d1n%

Present: Senators Percx, Ellender and Eagleton.

~ Staff 'present: Judah C Sommer; mmouty counsel ; Elizabeth P
Hott;ell “professional staﬁ‘ ‘

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR PERCY PRESIDING

Senator Peroy. I call these hearmgs to order.. “

This is the third hearing in a series of four conducted to exelclqe
congressional oversight of the Food Distribution Program of the U.S.
Department of Agriculture. Last week we heard shtcments from re-
cipients who spoke of the incquities and hardships of receiving food
under this Fldgz am. Also, wé heard from several members of- prlvate

10'Jointed ot we>s in which the USDA was deficient in
admm]stenng this progx m. They aleo sug vested ho“ the currenc sys-

e

‘tem could be1mproved.

Today o hear testimény from two State dlrectors and two county
Hliectms ‘They will dlihcuss the foles of their tespeéctive levels of gov-
érnment vig-a-viSUSDA il running this program.:

‘T'understand thint Senidtor Edgleton wanted to introduce Mr Car-
ter, direstdr of -theState D1v1swh of Welfme'of Mlssoun Is Mr.
‘Carter inthé room ¢ /¥ i IR

Helsnot P !

' "We miglit proceed, ahd then When Senator Dnvleton comes 1n—I
ﬁnderstand le'is test1fymo' plsewhere-—we carj mterr upt our ploceed-
in% 50, thiit he might Mtroduce otit stcond witmess, ' -

7 will cnll irst the Honorablg F Eftein Santmdo, Secretary of SO-

'#idl Servitss, Commofiwealth of Puerto Rico. R NN

Mr. Santiago, we welcome yon, we are delighted to Lave you here
You drd sche nfed first bevatiseiwe undetstand ;you have 'a(plane ¢on-

‘Yiection tommke back JIVe are. 'happy to haVe your ' testimony thls
_}mornlng ' : a .() HIRYAL R

'srArEthr’or I'I.ONORABLE ,EFRAIN SANITAGO, SECRETARY or

SOCIAL SERVICES COMMONWEAL’L‘II OF PUERTO RICO-

Mr SAN'I'IAGO Mr Chturman, I apprecmte t‘le opportumty of bemg
here; and the opportunity tlmt you gave me to be.the first,witness,
since I have to leave.

' *(2331)¢.
J
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I have with me our Washington representative, Art Borden, and
the Director of the IFood Distribution i’rogram, Juan Enrique Lopez,
from Puerto Rico.

Mr. Chairman, distinguished members of this committee, my name
is Efrain Santiago. I am the Secretary of the Department of Socinl
Services of the Government of Puerto Rico.

It is a great honor for me to appear before you to testify about the
Food Distribution Program which is operated on our island by the
Department of Social Services.

Tuerto Rico is an istand with 3,435 square miles with o population
of 2.5 million inhabitants. The relationship of the stated factors shows
that the population density is about 800 people per square mile, mak-
ing it onc of the most densely populated areas of the world. In fact,
it s among the first four.

I would like to add here that if the United States had the popula-
tion per square mile that Puerto Rico has, I think that we would have
in thie Nation about 1.2 billion persons living here.

If we were to analyze the population according to the available
farming land, we would have to place it No. 1 in population density.
"The income per capite, at the end of the fiscal year rose to $1427,
which represents approximately 37 percent of the per capita income
of the rost of the Nation. In addition, a total of 245,000 families, or
nearly 42 pereent of the total, have an income of less than $3,000.

AREA oF EXTREME PovERTY

Applying to Puerto Rico the national criteria based on income per
family, it would be considered as an arca of extreme H)overty.

Nevertheless, the prevalent cost of living on the island is higher
than auy of the contiguous States of the Nation. Proof of this is that
Tederal employees working in Puerto Rico receive a cost-of-living
allowance. Ono of the principal reasons for this high cost of living i3
that Puerto Rico imports most of the consumable articles, in fact per
capita it leads by far all other importers of U.S. %oods. According to
testimony reported to this committee last April, the same food items
surchased in a supermarket in San Juan cost 13.2 percent more than
in Boston, For additional information concerning comparison of food
costs between San Juan and other U.S, cities see appendix B.*

The picture that I have just presented, which is not too rosy, is quite
favorable when compared to the conditions existing in 1956 when the
program of food distribution was first introduced in Puerto Rico. In
1957 this program was implemented to H)rovide for the families re-
ceiving economic assistance, public health cases, and private and
public institutions. ' ' .

The program began operations under the administration of the De-
partment.of Health. In January 1969, it was consolidated under the
new Dopartment of Social Services. In 1968 the growth of the pro-
grain showed that 87,000 families were entitled to receive a viriety of
15 articles of which they usually received an average of nine, '

These foods represented a market value of $21,897,600 and $1,675,-
400 were used for ndminist_ration costs. At that time 80 distribution

*Seo app. 1, p. 2412,
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centers were operating across the island, supplied from two central
warchouses, located in San Juan and Ponce. The comparative data of
the last 8 years is found in appendix A.*

Procray IMLROVEMENTS

During the period that the program has Of)ernted under the Depart-
ment of Social Services it hasimproved as follows: .

There are 112,500 families now participating, an increase of
25,600 families over 1968, orahout 30 percent;

The number of articles available has increased from 15 to 21;

The average received by the family has doubled from 9 to 18;

The total pounds distributed increased from 77.6 to 136.5
millions. .

"These foods represent an increase in value of $13.3 million. The
cost of administration of the program also increased by $969,784,
mainly because of salary and rent increases. The distribution cen-
ters now number 86 of which 14 have been relocated 1mprovin
physical facilitics at the local level. In addition, three genera
warehouses have been opened in Humacao, Mayaguez, and San
Juan, providing for more flexibility and faster 1'esuppfy.

It shoul(]i’ be noted that this program is operated at a State level
under my direct supervision without any local government interven-
tion thus facilitating its administration. »

Other improvements introduced are the organization of distribu-
tion centers styled after the supermarkets and the use of a mobile
distribution system to areas faraway from the distribution centers and
to rural zones. This latest innovation reduces the expense of transpor-
tation of the clients und keeps the mother from Jeaving the children
alone while she looks for the food. '

The orientation of recipientsas to the use and better preparation of
the foods has proved to be very Leneficial. We contracted with the
University of Puerto Rico for training, and now we have acquired
three mobile kitchens for use in the demonstrations and cooking dur-
ing emergencies. In this respect, I have requested from USDA that
foods be included which are more desirable to Puerto Rican taste, such
as fresh vegetables and other locally produced articles—canned soups,
tripe, rice and peas, plantains, pineapples, stew, juices. ' - ’

n the administration of this program we encounter serious difficul-
ties. The raain one is lack of sufficient operating funds. -

I must point out that of the funds allocated by the USDA for the
operation of the program, Puerto Rico received $324,458 in fiscal year
1970, $822,937 in fiscal year 1971, and will receive $1,231,021 in fiscal
year 1972, This represents only $2 per recipient. On a national basis
the operating funds provided by the USDA average $6 per person.
If we were to receive the average, funds for Puerto Rico would be
around $3 million. )

The USDA uses a formula for calculating the operating funds
which go to the various States. In spite of the fact that there is no
legislative restriction concerning the participation of Puerto Rico in
this program, the Department administratively decided not to apply
this formula to Puerto Rico. Instead 12.5 percent of the operating

*Sce app. 1, 0. 2411,
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fund moneys were sct Adide fof the operating expenses of Indian
tribes, Puerto Rico and outlying aréas of the United States. This
amounts to n total of $2.4 million. Of this, Puerto Rico is to receive
$1.2 million for fiscal year 1972. The formula is based on per capita
income and the number of poor in the State, I have been informed by
the USDA. that we would receive $3 million if the formula were
applied to Puerto Rico. .. : ‘ '

DrcisioNn MApE oN ADMINISTRATIVE, BASIS

- This decision made on an administrative basis surprises me. In o
number of the programs of the Federal Government there are legisla-
tive restrictions applied to Puerto Rico which restrict the flow of
funds to the Commonwealth. When Congress puts these restrictions in
the law it is understandable that the Agency has to follow the law.
However, in every other case that I know of where tho law treats
Pnerto Rico as a State, the Agency involved treats Puerto Rico as a
State and the corresponding funds are provided for the island. Among
the many examples. that can be cited are the vocational rehabilitation
rogram and the drug programs of the National Institute of Mental
calth. Both of them arerun by my agency. : :
..‘There are even a few examples of legislation requiring the maxi-
mum of Federal participation dne to.-the greater needs of Puerto
Rico. An example ‘of this Hill-Burton program which finances:the
construction of hospitals,. The law provides that the Iederal par-
ticipation shall be- between. 83 and G6 percent. However, there is a
clause in this law that; states that the Federal percentage of participa-
tion has to be 66 percent, ;. - S e
Also this happened in the drng program where the matching funds
were 75 percent Federal Government and 25 percent State money ;
and, because of the conditions that Puerto Rico.has.right now, the
formula has been changed .to 90-10.. The Federal Government gives
us; 90.percent ‘of the money:-and we have to put in just 10 percent. -
1At present.the program owns 23 vehicles, some 9 years old,:but in
order to supply the netessary delivery.to its centérs 1t is necessary to
contract private transportation: In fiscal year.1971, $452,897 wete.used
forthispurpose, ., ..« . oo e g
"As for the .general stornge, the existing facilities only allow the
stornge of enough fsod for less than 1 month’s operation. Since
Puerto Rico depehds upon maritime shipment, it is indispensable that
we maintain reserves tolast for 8'months, thus being able to take care
of emergencies due tc strikes; hurricattes, floods, et cetera, Due to the
strike here in the States, the railroad strike, we were not able to get one
of the articles that.we use the most—that is rice.;We were without rice
for quite a bit of time.; . - - ST e
_ ~* wn . - Reporr Crtes NECESSITY .
I také ndvantage of the occasion to inform you that the study sub-
itted by A.T. Kearney & Co. to the USDA. includes, as'a neces-
sity, that Sufficient storage be provided so that these objectives may be
attained. These include, among others, that the foods be at the proper
time and place when needed, be palatable and acceptable to recipients,
and relevant to their dietary nee(l)
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Other immediate needs of the program are enlarging local centers to
cover the minimal needs. We are confronted also with the needs of
personnel to take care of clients efficiently. We have determined that
an attempt is required for every 80 families. Actually we have 173
cmployees to take care of 112,500 families. o

In addition to the limitations that we have expressed we have pro-
jected our program for the next year and have included in my ap-
pendix A* the pertinent tables. .

President Nixon has stated the need to eliminate hunger from this
Nation. Therefore we are planning to alleviate melnutrition among
the working poor by expanding the actual program to include families
of five members who have an annual income under $2,100. This amend-
ment would add about 100,000 new families to the program. :

‘Should these 100,000 families be -included in'the program as-re-
quested in a reccutly proposed plan of operations, additional funds
will be required for its operation. ‘ . o

Tf Puerto Rico receives the necessary funds for the administration
of this proposed program, we will, among other things, expand from
182,000 to 405,000 square feet the storage area of the general ware-

houses and expand from 181,000 to 336,000 square feet the distribu-
.tion centers. - ' S :

' ' R R R UL
This projection.is based on the demons_tr'( ted experience that, in
order to serve efficiently the families, it is necessary tp provide 2 square
feet per family in general warehouses.and 3 square feet in local dis-
trihution centers. . P
Qenator Prrcy. Mr. Santiago, I wonder if you would mind suspend-
ing your testimony for a moment so that Scnator Eagleton can intro-
duca his witness and then he will excuse himself.. « B ‘
Mr. Sanrtiago. Mr. Chairman I would be very happy to... .
. Senator Percy. Senator Eagleton. - L o

STATEMENT OF SENATOR EAGIETON . .

o L S f RN Lo \ . \ [
‘Senator Jeacriron. Thank you very much, Mr. Santingo, and thank

you, Mr. Chairman, for permitting me to break.in at this awleward

\
[

‘time. We ave working on the water pollution bill and I am due over

there, so T appreciate the opportunity to present to.you for later testi-
mony Mr. Proctor Carter, the Director of the Missouri Division of
Welfare, who is aceompanied.by his.deputy, Mr, Roy Iferguson, who
is in charge of the commodity program, and they will testify with

respect to food disttibution in Missourd, - i e
- I sould like to commend you and:the :committee for holding this

sories of hearings.. Congress has devoted a great deal of attention to
the FFood Stam{) and School Lunch Programs. Very little attention has
fe. commbdity prograin, yet:thi§ programt' constitutes
the only source of food: assistance to families in almost one-third of
tho Nation's counties. ~ - =~~~ ¢ w0 T
- .The comiodity program looms even larger:in Missouri where, out
of a total of 114 counties, only 10 counties and the city of St. Louis
are in the Food Stamp Program, meaning that 100-plus are still on

‘thie commodity progiam,so it is of substantial jnterest to us.
—_— T T e T e e e T

T t R
*Sce app. 1, p. 2411,
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ConrusioN axp Crisis 1IN Missourr

My. Carter will describe for you the sequence of events that has led
to the present confusion and crisis in the funding of this program in
Missouri. I would like to preface his testimony with this brief state-
ment. ‘ C :

In May 1969, President Nixon declared that the time had come “to
put an end to hunger in America itself for all time.” Since that time
considerable progress has been made.
~ 'But now we see disturbing signs on every hand that progress is
being wound down.

P1A moratorium has been imposed on the expansion of the Food Stamp
ogram. - - :

Proposed .new ‘school lunch regulations would mean, at best, no
expansion—and very probably, reverse progress—in our effort to
provide free and reduced price lunches for all of the Nation’s needy
schoolchildren. - '

“We are told that welfare reform' will obviate the need for family
food programs. But welfare reform has been postponed. -

Twenty-two Missown counties have applications on file with the
Department of Agriculture for the Food Stamp Program. These in-
clude, for instance, Jackson County, which 1s our second largest
county—and incliudes Kansas City—which desperately wants to switch
to food stamps. But USDA can offér Jackson County officials little
hoge and no assurance that they will ever be included in that program.

oupled with this moratorium on expansion of the Food Stamp Pro-
gram, the State of Missouri will veceive $350,000 less this year than it
received last year to operate the commodity distribution program.

Therefore, Mr. Chaivrman, I think it is clear that if'we are to meet
the commendable goal set by President Nixon we will need to rely on,
improve, and expand the present food assistance programs for the
foreseeable future. And I know-that this committee will give this prob-
Jem its careful and judicial attention, as it has to matters of this type
in the'past.. . - S
""Thank you very much.” © .=~ ' .
“"Senator PEroy. Senator, we thank you very much for being here, and
.we will 160k forward to hearing from Mr. Carter.” '

( ~ Loxceeoxn or Conraoprry Foops
I invite you to attend our luncheon tomorrow. We are going to have
-the members of this committee have luncheon in room 318 immediately
after our hearings. Luncheon will be composed entirely .of commodity
food- as distributed .iri the program. We are selecting it at random.
‘USDA is taking it from the shelves in Richmond, Va., which is the
“clasest - warehouse.. It will be prepared by our chefs right here in the
Senate. And my young daughter, who is here and who-1s quite an ex-
rpeﬁt;gin ‘cooking, will; assist in that regard just-before. she leaves for
college. ™ .. v i Lo
Se;ator EAcLeron. Wonderful. T T
- Senator PERrcy. So we invite you. I hesitate to talk about cooking in
front of the senior chef in the Senate—the chef extraordinaire, I might

103
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say, Senator Ellender. And. Senator Ellender, we are very pleased to
have you here. Would you care to make any statement at this time?

. Senator ELLExpER. Thank you very mueh for the compliment. I have
to go to the Senate at 11, but I will stay as long as I can.

-.Senator Percy. Well, we are happy to have you. The need, we felt,
to analyze this program originated with so many complaints coming in.
Many of these complaints have been directed against USDA. T feel
this 1s unfair because they are restrained and restricted by a certain
amount of legislation we have passed over the years. But the lack of
variety in foods, the lack of 1esponsiveness to local conditions and local
food habits, just as in Puerto Rico, are examples of USDA’s responsi-
bility. When there was a shortage, you supply something else, because
you are losing one of the main food staples that Puerto Ricans depend
OII. e . ' . . D . Te

-So I am very pleased to haveyou here. We do hesitate to invite you
to lunch with someone else cooking, but tomorrow we would be very
happy to have you there, and we would love to have you supervise also
the preparation of these foods, - -

. Mr. Santiago, would you please continue, and thany you for the
interruption. . . o ~

.. CONTINUED STATEMENT OF EFRAIN SANTIAGO

Mr. Sanriaco. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

As I was saying, actually we now have orﬂy 14 local distribu-

tion centers that meet this requirement. Due mainly to the limitations
of space and adequate transportation facilities, in fiscal year 1971 out
of "191 million pounds autheorized for distribution only 132 million
pounds actually reached the recipients, limiting their consumption by
59 million pounds,: v e T o

~ The'above mentioned facts enphasize the need for more funds to
properly administer the program, ~ =~ .. . 7

“In addition to the particular problems which have been mentioned
¢oncerning  Puérto Rico, the same problems that éxist in other areas
also exist in Puerto Rico. For example, we have fourid some of ti:e pack-
aging inadéquate, particularly the canned milk. In addition, there is
a_great lack of refrigeration. As most of you realize, the climate of
Puerto Ricois quite warm and refrigeration is a necessity for some
of the items. Recently we received 3 months supply of cheese at one
time. Needléss to say, much of this could spoil before it can be distrib-
uted to the people. - . o
' “We'have also found that the packaging should be modified so that
smaller families and older people could consume the foods after the
container has been opened and before the food spoils. Many of the poor
families that receive these foods lack adequate refrigeration and stor-
age facilities. In fact I will say almost 100 '.‘Re.rcentfof them, they
don’t have refrigeration ‘and the storage facilities to keep it. Wit
large containers it is impossible to consume the foods' before they
PI would like to add right here that IT'come here not only as adminis-
trator of the Department of Social Service, but also as a man that grew
up and that went through lots of hardship, that knows what hunger

114
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;, is, having had to-go sometimes a few days without food when I was
} a little boy. I do not-come here as.a part of a structure of redtape,
! but as a man that-knows what suffering is because I lived it when I
: was a little boy. After that things have changed but I still remember
those early days of my life, how much I needed a program like this
; to satisfy the unger that I had, especially durmg the school years

¢ - Pur.m:o Rrcans Axe CrTIZENS

" A lot of people say that Puerto Rico doesn’t pay taxes and for that
reason shouldn’t be included. I will say.that we have, including myself
defended this Nation all around the world, wo are American cmzens,
we have shed our bloed, our ‘kids are ﬁghtmg in.Vietnam.

“And I would like to quote ‘a very Interesting paragraph that I
found in the committee report on the Economic Opportunity: :Amend-
ments Report No."H.R., 10-351, pave 21. They have a paragraph on:
Puerto Rico which says: . . .

This amendment to the act is in recognltlon of the extremely low standard
of living in this area, which is generally substantinlly lower than anywhere in
the United States, and a recognition of the responsiblhty which this Na,tion has
for the residents of this area. Puerto Rico, for instance, whose' residents are
citizens of the United States, has been a possession of this Nation since 1898,
some 73 years. The citizens of that Caribbean island, -however, have not en-
joyed increase in affluence and economic well- -being that the rest of the Nation
has, and this small increase in the allotment for .the. offshore areas is:a small :
token in recognition of their far greater need.” ]

" I would" also like’ to 'add ‘before I ﬁmsh ‘Mr, C‘h'urman,,that we
are included in the Food Stamp Program. As the distinguished Sen-,
ator said, we also are confronted with the fact that the Department :
says that they don’t have' funds to’ .give us for the Food Stamp Pro- 3
gram or the sup lemental food program: So taking this into. qonsldera-' :
tion, and remembering some, words that my, Governor said not too long
ago to the President of the United States, When you- treat us—yhen
some -people of the Department treat us hke they have, it is just like ;
giving a sick man an aspirin’ ‘wher he needs an operatlon. Anid I hope, ;
that through thesé Senate hearings the Department of Agncu]ture, if
it doesn’t have. enouorh funds, can somehow throuoh leglslatlon, get
enough funds, ", . 1

Mr. Chairmai;, dlstmglushed members of thls comm1ttee, I havq
gresented the facts prevalllnor in. Puerto Rico brleﬁ -and, conclsely.,

appeal to you1 .sense of mstlce that favorable consi eratlon of these.
requests for a group of U.S. citizens—although they, live: away from
the shores of this great Nation—are as much American’ ¢itizens as any-
one living in South' Dakata, Mlcthan, Tllinois, Cahforma, or. Ala-,
bama. That the words.of “one:Nation under God, with. Iiberty and.
justice for all” will.not only bé something we learned from a. great
man_and are wrltten in,our_history, books, ‘but, will: also . have the,
intended meanmg in. these uncertam days of. turmou in our Natuon,
and in our world, g

- Thank you" very much "Mr. Chalrman, and members of this qpm- !
mittee for this oppprtunlty I wﬂl be happy to answer any questlons ?
that'you may haye. .1 e

..Senator J’Bncr We thank you very .much mdeed ThlS has h
a 'very helpful body of evidence’ you presented and you have's given us
some hard facts to work from.
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'
... X think we (all_'lfeqognize that the future-of Puerto Rico lies in its
econiomic -development, not in the relief that can be provided to:it.
And-I would .like to-say, from my otn.experience having: recently
‘been down there talking with your very able Govérnor, that a remark-
‘aple program of economic, development has been: going-on for some
leeand is,continuing..One of the last acts:I.did m private business
_Was to,put a plant in Puerto Rico. I am happy.:to say that my:alumni
inferest informns me it is one of the most successful-and skilled tech-
nical .operations that,we;have opened i1p—and it'lias been a very great
"benefit to Bell & Howell Co. - - o050 NIRRT S {
i But, in the meantims, you have-a problem of poverty. To get some
-1dea, a5 to, the extent of: it, you have indicated: that 42.percent of:the
ttotal population of families have an income of less than $3,000..- .-
- 1. Mr. SantrAGo: That iscorrect, My, Chairman. "7 - o7 e 0 o
.- Senator PErcy. And yet you pointed out very high costs that you
have, for instance, on food~—substantially' higher than. other.areas of
-the United. States.. What is the-poverty:level fér a-family of. four in
xRueI‘t_}pRiCO? L ""j“‘ LT SRORTE L ST S IR T L - 4
M. Sanzraco. Well, I think that we will. need’almost: the same as
:the United States. . L P TR T o
Senator PERrcy. Less cost for housing, heat, things of that:type, of
jcourse. Some costsarelower., . .. caitevi el T e e
Mr. Sanrtiaco. That's right. But since we have to buy most every-
;thing. from here and we have to pay- ocean freight—and this is one
of our problems—since we have %o use American ships to transport
what we buy, it is:very high' cust. ‘W.e.cannot use-other ships from
other nations. This expense is very.high,and:thisis one of our main
‘-‘P.I‘Oblems:actua;llyi»' A AT AR S IRRTAS P T
Senator PErcy. Is the average family size in Puerto Rico higher
.than in. the United States? - vor o il oo stz o 0 oo
Mr. Santraco. The average family riglit-now is 4.5 on-the welfare
programs. The-dverage family on: the.regular: program is about'4.8.
Senator PErcy. Is family planning. making any real progress in
Puerto Rico?: .:# - o0 0 o e 0 o
- Mr: SaNTIAGO. Yes, sir. In fact for the last 214 years we have a very
.strong: family: planning going. This, as you know,:takes time to show
:the real effect. But-we have for the first.time in any part of the Unlited
States a family planning program on TV, radio, press, and public
conferences. In fact, we have mobile units that"go all over the 1sland
giving conferences to women and to-men also, and for the first time

(o .. - FOTURE IN EcoNoMIC - DEVELOPMENT

IR EN ! :

-to men; because I don’t think that:family.planning is just foi* women.
.. Senator Percy. You have the implication in your testimony that you

feel that. Puerto Ricans are-treated as second-class citizéns in this-pro-
“gram: Can you compare the relationship that you have in Puerto Rico

. with other departments and agencies:heie in'Washington? Are you; in
-any way, discriminated againstin the administration-of that program?
iAre you tréated just as any State of the United States would be?.- '

. o . R ': v ' o

IR T § HEN S SIS S SR P

SRR AN “ ‘.'”:-’:' Shats e o

Poor HEW LEGISLATION FoR Purrro.Rico 1 .

Mr. Santraco. Mr. Chairman, I never have felt like a second-class
citizen. I am an American citizen, I carry an American passport to
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every country I visit. I worked in a very sensitive program when I
was in the Army, which means that they had lots of confidence in me.

I will say that every program treats us just likz we should, except
that there is some HEW legislation that does aflect Puerto Rico. They
have been more than good with us, but they have some poor legislation
for Puerto Rico. I hope that this will be changed by new legislation.

But nevertheless I will say that many agencies try to help as much
as they can. There are people in the agencies that treat us as second-
class citizens. That doesn’t mean that the agency treats us as such. But
despitc those— : -

Senator Percy. The agenzy is the people that make up the agency.
The only thing that is left isbricks and mortar.

Mr. SantIaco. Well, you take an agency like mine, we have 7,000
employees. I will say that maybe some of them dislike other nationali-
ties, but that doesn’t mean that the 7,000 dislike everybody. And I
feel the same way with the agency. I think that all of them try to help
as much as they can, but once in a while we find some person that trics
to stop prograras that will benefit Puerto Rico. :

Senator i)ERCY. Have you ever calculated what it would cost if
Puerto Rico were on food stamps and were eligible for food stamps?

Mr. SaNTIAGo. We haven’t really come up With numbers, but the
USDA. people have figured that it will cost about $129 million, if I
remember right. ’ : ‘

Senator PErcy. That is against how much cost for commodity food
distribution?

Mr. Sax1raco. That is against $42 million that weare receiving right
‘now. ’
Senator PErcy. Soitisabout one-third the cost ?
* Mr. Santraco. That is correct, Mr. Chairmnan.

Senator PErcy. Will USDA give you more food than you now
-distribute ¢ e T ' '

Mr. SanTraco. Yes, sir. We will get more food, but we don’t have the
facilities to distribute the food. The problem is— :
""Senator Peroy. Warehouses, trucks, personnel to handle it?

" Mr. Savrtiaco. Transportation. . :

Senator PErocy. I noticed the dramatic increase in the amount of
whole milk distribution. You rose from the 1970-71 period from
785,000 pounds to.4.8 million. Could you tell us what that increase was;
‘and, how you were able to step it up, and how you, physically, could
handle that kind of increase? .. - . S o C

Mr. SanTraco. Thisis projected for next year.

Senator Percy. Thatisa projection for next year? . :

Mr. SaxTraco. Yes, sir. One of the assistant secretaries to:the
Secretary of Agriculture went to Pueito Rico and talked with .the
Governor and the Resident Commissioner here in the States, and with
me personally, and he offered to purchase all the milk that was needed
for children from zero to 1. Children that would be in families earn-
‘ing less than $3,000, and so that is the reason that'we are projecting
this. That- doesn’t mean that the 40,000 would. be in the program.

But we hope to have quite a few children in the program, and this
will help tremendously. * A B

R
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DEexoNsTRATED NEED BrouGuT INCREASE .

Senator Percy. But it was the physical visit down there, and the
demonstrated need that you were able to show, that brought about
this increase in availability of milk ?

Mr. SanTIaco. That is correct, Mr. Chairman., :

Senator Percy. I notice that you have a schedule here of relative
commercial prices for comparison purposes.

Mr. SANTIAGO. That is correct.

Senator Percy. And for the most part they certainly are higher.

Mr. Santiaco. Higher.

Senator Percy. Before I yield to Senator Ellender, oiie more ques-
tion, and then I will come back. Could you comment on the types of
foods available in the 21 commodities you have as related to the
dietary needs and the experience of Puerto Ricans 2

I ask this question, Senator llender, because I mentioned the other
day that when I was in refugee receiving camps in Pakistan—in East
Pakistan—I interviewed families to see why they were coming back.
Why they had incurred the danger of going down the Indus to refugee
camps and then coming baclk. A grandmother, whose son and whose
husband had been shot by the Palistan Army, said to me she had
fled with her five grandchildren and daughter to India. She said “we
got down there and though there was enough food, we had to stand
7 or 8 hours to get it. There was enough food, but the change in the
type of rice and the diet that we had was so great for onr children
that they had dysentery and were getting sick, and we saw children
dying around us.” So she decided that if her grandchildren are going
to die she would rather they die at home than down there, so they
left the camp and came back. And it was an illustration of the effect
of a change in food.

Do Puerro Ricans Aparr o CoxnroNiTy Foops?

How did the Puerto Ricans adapt to the 21 commodities available?
What could be done? Would it be desirable to lave more Puerto Rican-
produced foods available for distribution in Puerto Rico ? Would this
add also to the economy of Puerto Rico? Co . o

Mr. Santiaco. Certainly will help, Mr. Chairman and members of
the committee. Some of the foods that are given: to us- are accepted
very well; rice, lard, beans, the meats, some of the juices, are very
acceptable bystile(people. However, we have problems with some of
the foods and in respect to this I have to say that when we haye prob-
lems we have told the Department of Agriculture and they have re-
moved the articles from the list of things that they are sending to
Puerto Rico.. . . _ ,

‘The main problem that we have is not only the items that they are
sending us, which, like I say, most of them are well accepted, but is
the money to operate the facilities and the warehousing and the
transportation. o e o s -

‘I would like someday, if this will be possible, since we are included
in the law—and nothing has been done sbout it—that the Food Stamp
Program be implemented at least in part. They' say that it will cost
$200 million. This is what they have figured. I have figured personally
in the Department that it would cost them about $129 million.’

15
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And I would like 'to say that, in answering your question for the
second time, even though we are not treated as sccond-class citizens—
and believe me, I would never go anywhere and say I am treated as a
second-class citizen—I feel as anybody that was born in Micliigan or
your State, the great State of Illinois, I feel at home anyihere n, this
Nation where I go, and T feel part of it. But even thougli we are not
treated as second-class citizens we are not receiving an equal sliare of
the treatment. In some programs, such as vocational rehabilitation,
we are receiving equal treatment. And for drug abiise we receive every-
thing that we canj in the Hill-Burton law for hospital cohstructiqn e
receive all the. money that they can give us, just like any other State.
But in.some prograins, especially this program where we are in the

Iaw, we'are not treatedasa State. ... . . o

Somebody decided that this is what we are going to do. for the In-
dians,.and this is what we are going.to do for_thei’.uérto Ricans and
thisis what we are going to do for ale Virgin Islands.and for Guam,
and this has been our main problem. : T
.. So, I hope that ‘in, treatment of. the operating expense funds, at
least, that we.can, be treated as a State. Like you say, I don’t’ waiit
the program to be any,larger than it has to be; put I_{ihte,_to see peo-
ple-hungry: because:onte, as I say, I went through'_timt also.- ~
. In fact, Mr. Chairman, I have some pictures that I woiild like to
leave. with you to see when you have time, and the members of the
committee that graphically depict our problem.* .~ . .
.. Seriator: Percy. Thank you. . . e '
_:Senator Ellender.,, .- .. . . ., L ,
"-Senator ErLeNDER.-Mr: Chairman, it has been my privilege to-visit
Puerto Rico on quite.a few occasions. I was there during the war when
things were pretty bad and food was scarce because of the submarine
menace. But I am disappointed that the government of Puerto Rico
doesn’t provide facilities to preserve the ?ood,t_:lm_tjs made available
by our Government. People of Puerto Rico pay no taxes to the United
Sthtes:iAll‘taxés collectzd remain on the-island: And;as you said, you
receive from the Federal Government as rhuch as any State to assist
with housing, agriculture, and things of. that:kild. Your tax rate is
evidently very low. If you do obtain any form of taxation I.am just
wondering what isdone withit. = .ot e
"Mr, SaNTIAGO.-AS you know, Mr. Senator,we haveJots of problems.
This is nothing that hias started just now. We have, as the chairman of
the ‘committee has repeated many :times, grown continuously, . we are
trying to'do the best we'can, ..ol '
N T T e R VP

.. InpustriaL: Expansion. Must Have Heweep . .

. Senator ELLeNDER, That ought to bring prosperity. There has been
a lot of business established there lately, as I understand. I cannot re-
call, at.the moment, “he number of mamifacturing establishments in
Pnerto Rico, but it is quite a large invéstment over the last 10 years.
Why, that shouldn’t bring prosperity. to your area, I don’t know. You
have only. 2.8 million people there.,: . .. i oo
- Mr.;SaNTIAGO. - May. I say something, Mr. Senator! If we had the
e BT T S S . oot ".‘. ‘ B N
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economic level of the United Stites, we would be more than happy to
pay taxes. In fact, this has been—and I-gm pretty sure you know
about. it sincé :you'have been there—one of our main arguments; that
we should p ]b y a8 we go along. Also, it'is very true ‘that we don’t pey
fair taxes; but, itis also'trile that we have to purchase from the United
States: everythmg ‘that wwe have there.:Also it'is true that in transpor-
tationivaloné,! Piierto Rico' could ‘sevehundreds of mllhons of dollars
if wwe W111 use transportatlon other than that of this Nation:li - v
-1’ Sendtor LLLENDER You'have people there 11ch enourrh to bulld
dorift you thin du g - T T o
<M. SANTIAGO. The Iaw; as you knotv;. tleats us as’s’ State in th‘lt
because for some things we are treated asa State, for others we are not

Seiiatot PercY. Youfa.re requlred to shlp‘Ameucun bottoms?
“+ Mr; SaNTiaco. That's nght A o

-+ Seénator Perdy. Whichlis4 premiuin cost over woﬂd s]uppnw cost

Mr. Sanrraco. That’s right. . .

Senator Perdy. Ofwh'xt,45 percent? ot e
< Mrs SANTrAcb"thdles indicate that shlpplnor in' U.S. ‘bottoms in-
¢crenses the'cost: pfbur tiade by as muCh as 60 percent above \\lmt it
\t'ould cost'if wésed foreign bottoms, '

- Senator ELrenoer, But, I really and tluly thourrht thet’*“hen a]l

vof these manufacturing }i]lants moved into. Puerto R1co, and all'the

tolirist biisiness tlat bu ave;; conditions wWould improtve.'T fear’ that
only & few get’ the beneﬁts from that and it'is'nof. prbperly divided.
UMY Swrm( 0. T wdiild'say’ qulte a few I thmk if you, mal\e a study

ofiit; it is quite well divided, o A

' Th 1938 a commiission was sent from W hlnoton in fabt.a’ cominiis:
sion from’the Séna'te r{nd ‘the ‘House 'an ' $rom the Presuient of the
United States; “to chedle'6n’ condltlons m,Puerto Rico, 'and “at ‘that
time they ceine back, and "they ‘told theé’ President that there 'is 0o usc,
there is nothing that’ can be ‘done o thut island. We have increased
from $100, per, c'v,plta income, to $1;427 through the years, ‘ond we gre
§till going: up, 'md we hope that_,we w111 be able to ‘get to. Where we
wantto be o

Howevel, problems a.re1problems We dre’ trymg and we conslder
our effort in this prograni is greater than that of any other State in
theNation,.. v . .v .. ... o oo

30 PmoENT OF! POPULATION ON Foon PROGRAMS

. Senator. ELLENDER Of the entlre populutlon, I notlce here 9. 8 mﬂ-
lion, you, have 872 000 r0]ected for 1972 that will be’ recervmo' someé
kind of welfare. That 18 quite. & larg proportion, almost 30 pelcent

.- Mr. SANTIAGO, PrOJecteg to get food programs, not on welfare. ',

Senator Evrvenorr: That’s What Tam liklng about, food pr ogr QImS.
That’s what, we, are- talkmg about now And. I presume; a, lot are
getting welfare, too - [

Mr. SANTIAGQ Yes, we have a O'reat number In fa,egell that are
on welfare also receive the food programs e

-Senator ELLENDER You, know, in most of our. programs here the
local ‘people, the. State or the_county, or (the -parishes.in' my State,
furnish the moneys to buy the fuc111t1es to store food.. Now why
can’t you do that in Puerto Rlco ¢ RIEES

17
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Mr. SaxTIaco. We are probably spending a higher percentage of our
scarce budgetary resources on this program than most of the States.

Senator Briinper. Evidently you don’t-have enough of it. You
say there’s a lot of foord-that spoils because of the lack of) refrigeration.

Mr. SanTiaco. The problem has been—I don’t know if you really
understand what the problem is. But the problem has been that even
though the law says we are supposed to get so much, we are not getting
that part that we are supposed to get from the legislation that you
people approved, and I am preiiy sure that you were one of the Sena-
tors that voted for the law. And this has been because the Department

of Agriculture says we are going to put aside a part for Puerto Rico

and the other islands. _ :

Senator ELLENDER. All we approve is the money. The administration
is the responsibility of the Executive. But I hope this will improve
some, and I will do what I can. I am sorry, I have to go to the Senate
right now.

Senator Percr. Thank you, Senator, very much indeed.

On one or two occasions when I was in Puerto Rico the docks were
tied up. Does this happen very frequently, and if so, how do you bring
food in? What alternate means of transportation do you have an
}vh:(xitedoes it cost? Does this add considerably to the cost of importing

ood ¢

Mr. SaNTIAGo. Mr. Chairman, that has been another problem, that I
am glad that you asked me the question, because definitely we have
lots of problems with strikes, and when we don’t have the type of
transportation that we usually use—that is ocean freight—then we
have to use planes to bring the food in, and this also raises the price
three or four times higher than what it would cost. So all these com-
bined are a redl problem in‘the o})eration of our program. :

And my only request is that if the law says that we should be treated
like a State that we should get the part that belongs to us. This has
Leen my only position thismorning. ..~ =~ L .

Senator Percy. What effect does tourism in Puerto Rico have on
food cost? At the height of the tourist season are all costs jacked up?
You get more income 1f people are serving.and working in the tourist
industry, but does that also increase average living costs at the time?

Tourist SEasoN Dorsn’t Arrect Locar Costs

Mr. Santraco. No, sir, Mr. Chairman. The tourism helps us, and
it doesn’t really do that. To the tourists, of course, it does, because dur-
ing the winter months the pricesin the hotels are higher than during
the summer time. But. it doesn’t affect at all the local people.

Senator Percy. Senator Ellender has made the point that Puerto
Rico ought to domore for itself. I wonder if you could furnish to this
committee Some analysis of the degree of effort Puerto Rico makes to
take care of its own needs as measured against any standard you might
select in any other State. I think this is an important point and it
should 'be answered, ahd I am certain that you could provide the com-
mittee the factson that. S e B e

~Mr. "SANTIAGO. Senator, we'will be‘glad to furnish' this informa-
tion.* We have tried very hard durirg the last 20 years to do the best
RS T A Sl S etz e

, *See app. 1, p. 2421,
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that we can to upgrade the salaries, upgrade the nutrition needs of the
people. We have Tegislation that is as good as any State has. We pay
taxes, and the only reason, like you say, that we keep it is because an
arrangement has been made with the Federal Government and the
Congress. When Puerto Rico reaches a certain level then we will have
to pay Federal taxes just like anybody else, and we hope that this will
be very soon. In fact we are working right now on this with both the

‘President and Vice President, and I hope that will go through both

in the States and in Puerto Rico. And I hope, and I can dream of the
day when I see Puerto Rico as the 51st State of the Nation.

genator Percy. Well, that is a hope expressed in the platform of
your very able Governor, and certainly I would pledge to you my indi-
vidual support for that aspiration. v o

I want to thank you very much indeed for being with us, and please
give my best wishes to your Governor. We appreciate very much your
colleagues being with us this morning. .

Mr. SanTtraco. Thank you, sir. We want to thank you and the com-
mittee for listening to us, and I just hope that something can be done.
Thank you. ‘ L

Senator Percy. The Chair calls Mr. Proctor Carter from the great
State of Missouri. ' -

Mr. Carter, go right ahead. We have your testimony, if you want to
read it in its entirety. If you want to summarize it, you can.

Mr. CarteRr. I think I will read it. It is very short.

STATEMENT OF PROCTOR N. CARTER, DIRECTOR, STATE DIVISION
OF WELFARE, MISSOURI

Mr. CARTER. My name is Proctor N. Carter. I am the Director of the

State Division of Welfare, Missouri Department of Public Health and
‘Welfare, Jefferson City, Mo. =~ . ' . . .

For the benefit of the committee in its inquiry, I submit a state-
ment describing this program since its inception, I am not here to
offer criticism, but rather to describe the sequence of events which has
lead to a serious’financial problem in Missouri, both for the State and
the counties in conducting the distribution program, I might add that
we have ‘had fine cooperation in' establishing ‘both the distribution
program and the Food Stamp Prograin from regional representatives
of the Department of Agriculture. "~ "~ =7 . .0 ,
The Food Distribution Program has been of great help to poor per-

sons’in our State,’and the fact that its exiztence is threatened now by

inadéquate Federal funding is to be deplored. . . ,

~-Prior to 1968, the payment for local administrative costs was fi-
nanced entirely by the State and those counties participating. The
program was based on a law passed by the State legislature in 1961
which provided that any county desiring to distribite food would be
reimbursed by the State for 50 percent of the cost. of distribution.
Acceptance of the program’was entirely up to the counties and the
number of counties partici%atin varied from 34.to 39 during the
“thr ;Both St. Louis and Kansas City partici-
pated, although St. Louis went under the stamp program on a proj-
cct basis in 1963. Kansas City still participatesin the direct distribu-
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tion’ ploﬂlam. Ten counties and St Louis mty are now -under the
stamp plan Twenty-two othercounties ave indicated that they desire
to.enter the Food Stamp Pioaram, which is nov blocked, evidently.
‘The 1equest of these counties is bef01e the Sécr etary of the Department
of Agriculture.
In “the fall of 1967 ive Were advased that the USDA would pay
100: percent ‘of the dlstrlbutlon ‘costs in 831 couuties in the Nation,
including 27 countles in Missouri. The formula for sélection of the
couiities was' devised by the . USDA, Wlthout consultation .with the
-States, At least theére was no, cousultatlon in Mlssourlc e
_ rWe got . toaether on how. to' put, the' program 'in these 27, so- ‘called
10%-income’ countles, and ‘we déter mmed) that the Dl\'iSlOll of Welfare
.Would supervise , the - administration. of the program -and . that *the
lbyees would be selected, under the Missouri merit system,, And,
‘that point, I asked 1f this 51tuatlon involviiig 100-percent ﬁnancmﬂr
by the USDA wag going to he 4" temporary proposmon or was going
to be contitued, and was told that it would be on a continuing basis.

“T Tiave listed the counties af that time that were selected -and I
haye listed the counties that were at.the same time carrying .on, this
50-to-50 program, so-called, whereby the county paid 50: percent -of
She. admlnlstratlon cost, and 50, percent paid by the State

I ]9@(—03 COUNTrr.s W’ITHOUT PROGRAM Sy
.., At that point.in 1967 we had .53.counties, without either: food: pro-
‘@iam, distribiition program or commodlty program '

When the President announced in-1969, that there would be a food
program in.every county in every State in; the Nation, USDA. then
‘told v’ that" we cou]d eyelop a. pro«rram in. "‘these. 53 counties that
weré rithout a' prograrm and that’ these counties wou d.be financed
Eimdl the standpomt of local dlstrlbut;on cost, ent1re1y from USDL&

ndsi

' At thetime Governor Hearnes announced thls extensmn of the
“food ° pro«rram 'he made’ this’ statement and 1t is prophetlc as, far.as
“roare now t:oncerned

are G e e ) e
e 'i‘he federai grant wiii enable us to continue our eﬂforts to: eliminate; hunger
in Missouri, It would appear to me. that. the U.S.. Department of Agriculture
*should ‘eventuaily '‘take-over 'the payment of administrative expenses - in those
counties where the program is now ﬁnanced on a 50—50 state iocai basis o -

MR ,'(

Incldentally, Tthig 1ust d1dn’t apph7 to Missouri. There were . 20
States in the Nation that ‘were in a sumlar situation—with part of the
counties ﬁnanced ent1re1y by.USDA and, part either. local or’ State
nd'local. e e
“l-lThe 1G0vern0r Co_ntln._ued ’I i“q'. -'-.’je'.fli RIS ) ' ‘(. TP S T M

If the Department of Agrrculture will pay the: fuii cost in 69:counties sin- Mi:-
SOuri, I think it only, fair that sufficient funds be ,granted the.Division of; Welfare
‘to-cdver full administrative costs in the remaining counties in Missouri where the
iood 'programi$ in éifect witiout anylfederal ﬁnancral participation "; ' lﬁ o o
u So by May 1970 we had all the: countles sither on Eood Stamp or the
Food 'Dlstrxbutxon Program, Wlth 69 of them complete]y ﬁnanced bv
thd USDA. -~V " .

FOné of the stlpulatlons set up bv the USDA in the espendlture of
Federal funds was that such funds could not replace State or local

1 20
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funds previously expended, This nieant that-the counties that were on a
50-to-50 State-local funding basis could not participate at all in any,
of the Federal payment. .~ . ' L

" Now here comes ‘our problem, and this has actually placed the futire
of the Food Distribution Program in Missouri in jeopardy. During fis-
cal 1971 we spent $1,603,000 plus in Federal funds in these 69 counties,
This year we received $354.000 less. And at the same time tlie Federal
Department under urging by some of the U.S. Senators, and others,
I"am sure, got' away from this icdea that you couldn’t replace’ local
funds, and said, “Ilere is your grant, you can spend it as you sce fit.” -

" I'have filed with the committee a letter* addressed to then Secretary
of Agriculture Clifford M. Iardin which sets forth the situation about
tiie policy as we considered incquitable between paying full cost and
no cost in other counties. And that letter was signed by Senatois Sy-
mington, Bagleton, McGovern, Proxmire, Hart, and Cannon. And they
in'the statement mentioned that theve were 20 other States in about the
sdme situation. The Senators wound up their letter by saying: "

. I£ it shquld be found.that such an assistance formula would not’ be consistent
with the goal of ebtablishing & food assistance program in every county, then we
would-urge the Department to use’the authority available to it uhder section 32
of. Public Law 74-320 to assume the full operating cost of the'commodity- distri-
bution program in:every county. - . . T ... Tt it

- Now, when the:U.S, Department of Agriculture changed its policy
and gave us a-gratit~—which was less by $354,000 than  the previous
fiscal year—we'devised 'a'formula of distribution of ‘this :money to
make 1t equitable for all counties. 'We did this by comning-upiwith a
figure of 20 percent that it would' require to make up the difference in
the “Federalsappropriation.- We applied: it to’.every:county, which
meant.the gounties: paying 50 percént would .pay 20 percent-and coun-
ties paying nothing would pay.20;percent if they wanted to participate.

U o nps YARS DeptErEp T

A1l uit. about. 18,0f the-104 Missouri counties distributing food will
carry the:distribution :program throigh the months ofiNovember and
Degémber. Thers will bé ho’distribition in those 15 Counties:Buty
beginning, in January, it is very, questionable how. many  conties in
Missouri -willparticipate. To. get ‘through’.November. and.. December
some ‘of -the"courts are: accepting - donations. ‘And;+incidentally;.the
cotinty coutt in'Missotiri i an administrative body rathier than 4 judi-

cial body." .. -

Bt A BN (i oy

Just ast ‘weels, Thursday and Friday, 250 county fudzes of the Miss

[IETTRRN

souri {County ‘Judges ‘Association ‘met:1n-annual:session~in Jefferson
City, and they'dinnouficéd 'that the counties will ngt'be financially-able
to pay 20 percent of the cost of financing the local distribution of fed-
erally donated. foods after January;1,-1972.: And the association.in &
resolution -expressed the belief:that the Federal (Government.should
pa .tl'le diStI'ibuthDCOSt- 1 . " -‘\.A_y.'.::'ur;": -".‘ ‘ f'rr“:h‘ iy !A:U'\"‘I'A.,'”:'f,l_'_' r f: f'».:'
6 c “there yvag an atyful uproit and howl from these

I
...... .

Of course,-Senator, there yvas an airful uproat and howl from these
counties that were paying 50. percenfof;the cost in our, State; when

they -would look next door-:at-a:county:in: better: financial. condition

: viaih iy edy r g gty iy

gettinga'free ride. - -

*See app. 1, p. 2421,

G821
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So that led to all this disturbance and trouble and effort to change
the policy. Then we run into the business of reducing the grant; and
it appears to us that it is the old tactic of the federally presented pro-
gram which is enticing—difficult for the States to resist—and then the
Government lowers the boom on the States by either backing up par-
tially or wholly. The States then have the choice of walking out of a
good program or trying to find money to finance it.

I have a.few recommendations I would like to leave with the com-
mittee for consideration: o

1. That the Food Distribution Program, the School Lunch Pro-
oram, and the Food Stamp Program be transferred from the U.S.

v T)epzu’-tment of Agriculture to the Department of Health, Educa-
tion, and Welfare.

2. That the Food Distribution Program be financed 100 percent
with Federal funds and that special attention be given to such
vulnerable groups as infants, preschool children, pregnant and
nursing moﬁlers, and the aged. o ‘

- 8. ,',Tiat‘ there be developed, through improved Federal-State
.. and local cooperation, more effective State and local delivery sys-.

- -tems and organizations for food programs. .

4. That there be adequate funding by the Federal Government

~ to provide free, or reduced price lunches and breakfasts to schools,

- summer recreational programs and day:care centers.. . - . . -,

_ i5. Removal of existing administrative provisions prohibiting
. counties and cities from participating in both the Food Stamp
- Program and Federal Food Distribution Program. - R
- As I said, T don’t think it necessary to read the letter from the Sen-
ators. It is attached and available for perusal by the committee.
.That concludes my testimony, Senator. - - : : '

PREPARED STATEMENT OF PROCTOR N. CARTER

My name is Proctor N. Carter. I am the director of the State division of welfare,
Missouri- Department of Public Health and Welfare, Jefferson City, Missouri. I
have been asked by-Senator George McGovern, chairman of the Senate. Agricul-,
ture and Forestry Committee to testify at this hearing.on the food distribution
program of the United States Department of Agriculture ag'it relates to Missouri.

"For the benefit of the committee in its:inqury, I'submit a statement describing
this program since its inception. I am.not here to.offer criticism, but rather to.
describe -the:sequence .of events which has lead to a serious financial problem in
Missouri, both for the State and the counties in conducting the distribution pro-
gram. I might add that we have had fine cooperation in establishing both the
distribution program and the food stamp program fl;om regional representatives
of the Department of Agriculture.. - R
The food distribution program has-been-of great help toipoor persons in our
State, and the fact that its existence is threatened now, by, inadequate Federal
funding is to be deplored. A S .

"Prior to, 1968, the payment for local administrative costs was financed entirely
by ‘the State and-those counties participating. The program.was based on a law
passed by the state legislature in 1961 which provided that any. county desiring
to distribute food would be reintbursed by the state for 50, per cent of t_h_e cost
of distribution.. Acceptance of the program was entirely up to the counties and
the number of counties participating 'varied from 34 to 39 during the period
1961 through 1967.'Both St. Louis City and’ Kunsas City 'participated, although
St. Louis went under the stamp program on a project basisin 1963. Kansas City
still participates in the direct distribution program. Ten counties and:St. Louis

2
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City are now under the stamp plan. Twenty-two-other ‘counties have indicated
that they desire to enter the Food Stamp Program. The request of these commes
is before the Secretary of the Department of Agriculture.

~In the fall‘of 1967, we were advised that the USDA would pay 100 per cent
of the distribution costs in 331 counties in the Nation, including 27 counties in
Missouri. The formula for selection of the counties was devised by the USDA,
without consultatlon wrth the stfltes At Ieast thele was no consultfltlon in
Missouri. |

In October 1967 Representatlves from ' the USDA midwest reglonfll office in
Chicago met in' my office in Jefferson City to discuss the 100 per cent federal
funding of the 27 Missouri counties designated. They suggested state and local
contributions in cash or kind be obtained where possible, They dlso proposed
that grants be made direct to the 27 counties selected by the department. I rec-
ommended, and the dcpmtment agreed, that administrative funds for the 27
counties be handled by the division of swelfare; that all payments for Services
be made by .the state; and that employes in those counties be chosen from com-
petitive exammatlous administered under the Missouri state merit system,

Following this meeting, I'raised the question with' the USDA as to whether
the 100 per cent federal financing was teniporary or emergency, and was advised
that it was the intention of the department to provide .financial assistance to
the 27 Missouri low-income counties on a continuing basis.,

We proceeded, with the help of the USDA, to initiate the program in -the
27 counties designated by the department. I, advised the govemor that we were
assured that federal financing would be on a contmumg basis in the 27 countres
and that we did not plan to seek additional funds from the legislature, The
27 low-income counties in Missouri selected by the USDA to receive full federal
finacing were as follows:- .

-1. Benton -1 '10. ‘Howell C 19. St.‘Clair
2, Bollinger : 11, McDonald - ~ 20. Schuyler
3. Christinn . =~ .~ 12, -Maries:: - '21.-Shannon
4, Caldwell o 13. Oregon - 22, Stone’
5 Dade - 14, Osage - © 23, Sullivan
6. Dallas 15, Ozark” = - 7 24, Texas
7. Dent .- . : * 16, Polk T 25. Webster
8. Douglas - 17, Putnam’". - 26, Worth
9. chkory g s 18 Ripley U '27.' Wrrght

‘In’ 1‘)67 34 Mlssourl countles were carrymg ona (lnect dlstributron program,
with the State and countles payrng the- local cost of dlstrlbutlon on a §0-50
basis. They were as follows :- S

. Buchanan Lo 13.- Jackson o 24 Putnam

1

2. Butler 14. Jefferson . 25, Reynolds -
+ 3. Cape Girardeau " "+ .15. Linn 2.0 o 10 .26 Ripley

4. Carter -+ 16, Livingston' * - .* " +27; St..Charles
6. Clay 7 17, Madison !.° . i.....:28,'St. Francois::
6. Daviess:- i~ . - i .18, -Mercer ! -’ .i' .« .. 20,8t Louis -
‘7. DeKalb - ‘ . 19.. Mississippi -~ 0 80, Seott ;¥
‘8. Dunklin... - . ... 20.-New Madrid = ': - 81. Shelby ‘
9. Gentry 21. Nodaway - * '+ . 32, Stoddard’
10.-Greene . ,.’- - 22.Pemiscot - ‘- - .. 33, Washington
11. Harrison" TR 23. Perry L --'34 Wayne '
12, Iron -+ : - UREEREARY e :

' In 1967, 53 Missouri counties were wrthout a food program

“In the latter part.of 1969, President Nixon announced there: would be'a food
program in all counties in the United. States that did 'not have .a food program
or issue stamps. The USDA lndicated ‘that the 27 Missouri countles prevlously
financed 100 per cent and those at the first of January 1970 ‘that did not have
a food ‘program, would be financed 100 per ceit with Federal funds. All the new
programs were to be established by July 1970, USDA stated that whatever funds
Iy]vere i:iustlﬁed as necessary would be forthcoming for 100 per cent Federal

nancin

At the time the Federal department announced that' the npn-participating
counties would be brought into the food' program with' 100' per’ cent Federal
financing, Governor Warren B. Hearnes, in a press release i January 1970, made
the following statement, and I quote :

.
* .
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. -“The-Federal grant will enable:us to continue our efforts to-eliminate hunger
in - Missouri. It .would appear to.me that the, U. S. . Department of Agriculture
should eventually take over the. payment of udmmistrutlve expenses in those
counties where the program. is now ﬁnunced ona. 50—50 State-locgl basis. If,the
Department of Agriculture will pay the ‘full cost in 69.countics in Missouri, 1
think it only.fair that sufficient funds be granted the division of welfare to
cover full administrative costs’ in'the remaining counties in Missouri where the
food program is'in effect without any Federal financial participation.” | .

By the end of May 1970, 69 counties in Missouri. were federally, ﬁuunced 100
per cent and’ 39 counties were ﬁnanced by the State 50 per cent, and county 50
per cent. Six counties and. St. Louls City then had a stump progrum Poui addi-
tional counties have since been shifted to stamps.

‘One of the stipulatlons set up by .the USDA in the expendrture of Tederal
funds’ was 'that such funds could not repluce State or local funds previously
expended This meant that the ‘counties’ that were on & 50-50 State-locul fund-
ing busis could not participate at'all in any of the Federal puyment Ao

"Now, here’ comes the rub dand the situution which has placed. ‘the' 'future of
the food distributlon progiam in Missouri in’' Jeopurdy During’ the fiscal year
1971, there was a total of $1 603 127. 92 in federul funds spent in the 69 counties
which' wete financed 100° percent fedemlly .This included a specml grunt for
assistance to 14 counties.that’ were paying 50 per cent of the cost und hud 1un
out of money for the months 'of April, May und Juhe 19 11 """

For the’ ﬂscul year 1972, the USDA has grunted the state ‘of Missouri $1,248,220
for funding the direct distrlbutron program, 4 reduction of ' $354,907,92. It elimi-
nated" the 1equirement thut federal’ funds couId not’ repluce state or lécnl funds
'l‘he depmtment ‘'said thut the’ division of ‘welfare’ .could spend thc 197" grant
any’ way it cliose; as long as it was for direct dxstributlon‘ e

For montlis we have been protesting the inequity of lunitmg ‘federal monev ‘to
certain counties with other'counties continuing tofinance local distribution with
state and local -funds. "The- protests about,this:inequitable federal policy for
distribution of federal ;money was refiected.ina’letter signed by United States
senators Symington, Eagleton, McGovern,;Proxmirc, Hart and C.innon and
addressed to the Secretary of Agriculture on June 5, 1970.

Finally, and only recently, the USDA changed: its policy and decided we could
use the federal money any.way we cared to, and-at the same time reduced the
federal allotment by:$354,907.92. We figured:all:the state money andnfederal
money we had available and came up with a.distribution formula that required
a 20 per cent contrrbntion toward local distributlon for any county, desirmg to
pu1 ticipnte in’ the progrum This made’ up ‘the reduction in the federal’ «runt

“It now appears ‘tha't all bt sbout'15 countiés wili’ carry .the’ distribution pro-
gram through the months of November and Decembet.” Even®to ‘get’ through the
months of November: and December 1971, privute donations are being uccepted
by the courts in:some counties. o=ty gt b RGN LRI

Approximately- 250 county judges of the :Missouri judges-association met. in
annual session:in Jefferson City last Thursday and Friday, September16-and 17.
They announced that the: counties will not:be:financially able to pay 20 pef.cent
of the cost ofifinancing .the local distribution ‘of .federally donated foods:after
January 1, 1972, The association expressed:the. belief that the federal govern-
ment should finance: entirely the food: distribution program for the slmple Teason
that it is a federally instituted program. i nb .7 .: G il

Under the: original” Missouri progrum,lthe county determined its own destinv
as far as distributiou ofi!federally donated foods was concerned. No:.countyiwas
denied entrance into the program; the only requirement being that thecounty
share with the state on a 50/560 bagis the cgst. When. the USDA took-over, abput
two-thirds, of tl)e counties and ﬁ', le .cost, entirely, those qounties huving
to put. up locul ﬂunds Were vehe t in their ind{gnution And i' ghtly §0,,. 0’ Iy
opinion ﬁ’ow that funds, allocnted to Missouri by 'the, USDA are, reduced, we
find- tlmt many, of, the counties arg. still indimunt because, Yas theynppt it,,\they
did not huve any choice n,bout entering the program, and qre DOV, ¢ culled upan to
puy p'ut of the costs he al ernntive is l;i:o drop the prog}'amm BT 1 e

It Seems to'me thut t,18 the old, tuct of a, ederally, presented; l?pogrn;n,
which s enticing and difficult’ For the States to resist and hen the Governmem:
lowers; the hoom by backingout, partially, or. Whollv;,and,,leuviqu the, Sfates ‘the
choice ‘of. uban oning a; good, ,progrum‘gr\ try to, find money to ﬂnunce it; ,Here
we havetheclagsicexumple;\ DR E BTIONRERNYE IO (I / ST S LIPS R T

: »‘:-mz:;\ 1 ;'»v'!‘: Siarpager :;-:; ,Ix.\'i”i i

24




e — s e

2351

© I Would récommend file" fo“[lowing tor considerution by the Commlttee L
i1:1.4That the ‘food distribution program,! the séhiool: lunph ﬁro"rum ‘ind the
; food, stamp |programbe transferred: from the U.S. Depal‘tmeht of Agricul-
. ture to, the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare: - . i
R, Thnt the food . dlstnbutlon program be, ﬁnunced 100, per cent ‘with
Federal futlds ‘and thdat’special attention be élven to suqh vulnerable groups
as infants, pre-school children and pregnant and nursing ‘mothers."’

8. That,there~be developed, .through improyed': Federal-State’ ‘and’ loull
cooperation, more eﬂectrve State. and lodul deli\ ery(systems and orgamza-
tlon_s for food progrums .

‘4, 'Adequate funding by the Federal government to provrde free, or 1educed
price luncheés and breakfasts to schools, summer recreatmnal progrums uhd
day care centers.

5. Removal of existing provisions prohibiting countres und cities from
participating in both the food stamp program. and Pedel al food distribution
program.

Thank you for glving me an opportumty to appear, before.your- commlttee .

Senator Percy. We app‘reémte very. ‘much the; spe01ﬁc recominerida-
tions yon have made, and they celtalnly corlelate with- othel recom-
mendations wehavereceived.

If USDA ere to finance. the whole cost of the commodlty pLOOI"Im
for Missouri how much would be thecost? .- | .

My, Carrer, It is $1.2. million' now;: probably not over. $1 mllhon
more. L N S PR RS

Is FEpERAL TAKEOVER 'ONLY ALTFRNATIVD N N

M
SR

o

‘Senator Prroy. Do you, feel that the 100 percent Federal takeovel
of admmlstratlve func?7 ing is the only plternatlve, however, tlnt you
face in the current 51tu‘ttlon? o o

-'Mr. ‘Carrer. Well, 'Wo' have moved tow'trcl county ﬁnuncmg, and
of course, the éoiintied are not in gooa sliape. in, onr, State.. Many, of
them are really unable to do anythmcr -abe ut, thls 1'e<rardless of the
tieed ‘and of their desue The Mlssoun)Lemslqtule ‘1pprop1'r1ted
ériough, money ‘at! the' last-séssion’to ﬁn’tnce ‘the States B50-percent
obligation- for ‘those countles that” we1e p’llth]'p‘lt]ngt At t'lnt time
they did not know thdt'there’ wo_ul,d be a redqct;lon in I‘ederftl morney
for the counties that had been des"frnated b the I‘ederal Govem—
mefit, ‘dnid a Bill to provide that the State | pfty "all ‘the’ costs {01 the
countles 50 percent, for those counties that/were in the pr pﬂ'l s failed.
It ‘qidi’t get very | far ey e

- S0, ] it is'my. oplmon that unless ad&ltlon 1 F eral ) mo ey 1s forth-
coming or. the leO,ls_lftture an. be rey: iled'n on )to rhise the money,
food‘p rograms ‘will 'be’ cutbfték \or curt‘uled.‘ A Y ’e’m tell you that
the Mlssourl Le«us‘_leture is In _about, the same shane n:momllv 'IS,
many ‘other Stfttes We are eufi:mcr t\\h welf'tre,«rr'mts in Ooto'ber e

"Senator Peroy. If you’ had ' Fedé ul revenue s‘”armo grogram
Wl?lul?d thlS p1 ogram 1ece1ve hlgh prlorlty 1f you ‘dld have fun $ avail-
able s

lty Whether it would ornot I don’t kno‘w I can’t answer, .
oenator ‘Percy. Did any of' the '50-50 countles ever drop out before
Jafnar: 1,1971 because of the mequlﬁy in'the program at that [t(lme?
“Mr. CArTER: Yes, 8ir} around, 10, And'T expect'they Wil all}ibe‘bgt,ek
in now because,of the fact——— e R

“Senator Pircy Hotw Werethey brouohﬁibhck"""; RRVC IR AR AR ﬂ y

(CRCTT O e
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Mr. Carter, Well, I think they will come back in, Senator—becaunse
we equalized what money.we had and now their payment-instead of
50 percent is 20..They didn’t drop.out, most of them, because of in-
adequate money to pay this amount, when they chose to come into the
program—they dropped out because they were indignant at the way
the thing operated. L SV
- Senator Prrcy. When you were told that this program would be a
permanent {)rogram and advised that it would be on'a’ continuing
basis what did you really think that meant? What assurance did you
have and what authority did those that advise you have for making
such a statement? ' B

" Dusnrous' STATEMENTS, BUT .. . _

Mr. Carter. Well, Senator, I am dubious of statements like that.
I didn’t put too much confidence in it. But'at the same time here was
the grant, here was the money, here was the money to put food in the
mouths of people, and it is impossible to turn it down. But I have had
too ‘much experience with these things that start and then pull back.

Senator Percy. What has ‘been USDA’s attitude in bringing the
nine delinquent Missouri counties back into the fold ? ‘

Mr. CarteR. The ones that dropped out?

Senator Percy. Yes.- Lo R

Mr. Carrer. Well, the change in policy—and, of course, I think
the change in policy was influenced to a very large extent by the efforts
and action of interested legislators, particularly Senators. .

Senator Percy. How many countles are there as of the middle of
September ‘that were not participating in the program? .

Mr. Carrer Around 10 ; nine or 10, } 5

Senator Percy. USDA indicates that there are about 13,500 people
in these counties who are not now receiving commodities. How do you
suppose these people are getting by? What are they eating?

' Mr. Carter. They are not eating as well as they were when they were

receiving commodities. That’s for sure. : o

Senator Percy. Have you made a local attempt to-get them back
into the program? .- =~ . . . ..
" Mur. CarTer. Y¢s, sir. In Missouri through the effoits of a nonpoliti-
cal or an organization not allied with the State government they
formed groups called Volunteers Against Hunger, and they were very
effective and they go out and function in'these cotinties doing things
like getting food to people that are shut in, people that-dre old and
crippled and unable to come to the commodities depot, carry them there
and back to see that they receive them; and a strong.effort was made
on the'part of these committees.. " . i T
~ Senatér Percy. We had evidence, Mr. Carter, tliat in the State of
Olklahoma—we have hard evidence—that county commissioners were

using the Food Distribution. Program for political purposes.. They
much ,preferred to ‘dole out food because il was their. own personal
largesse. It was their decision, tis.t;l;cy.p@ipted'cjut, and it wasas if they
personally were making this contribution of food to the recipients who
should be grateful voterson electionday. = .. oo .o -

Have you any evidence at all that there has beeiy political usage of
this program in counties in Missouri?

26
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‘Mr. Carter. No, sir. In the 69 counties that we set up with Federal
money We’gmplgzlyed the people, and in the other counties we have
closely supervised the program, and we have had no record or charge
or intimation of anything on that order. ) _

I will give you an example of the only thing I ever heard mentioned.
One of the State representatives called me the other day and said:

We are going to have a bond issue down here vwhich.will'i‘;lclude some mone_v

for commodities. Would it be all right to enclose with every commodity. recipient
a statement “vote for this issne”? T '

And T said:

I -.think you will get in a hell of a lot of trouble if you do; and I will advise
against it. . A ‘ e

He said: = =

OK, I won't do it.
Isaid: ' , S
" Publicize in the paper as to the advantage, but don’t talk to them and hand
them a card when they come for commodities or a poster and do. any politicking.
-And we just haven’t had it there.. - ..~ e ..
Senator Percy. One last question, Are there:any lien laws in i

e gt e

-

Missouri? :
Mr. CArTER. Lien law ¢ o
Senator Peroy. Asit affects welfare recipients.
M. Carrer. No,sir; there have not been. o
Senator Percy. Mr. Carter, we thank you very much indeed for
being with us. We appreciate it a great deal. " S
- Mr. Carter. Thank you, Senator:

_ Senator Percy. Mr. David McCullongh, dirvector of direct distribu-
tion, County of San Diego, Calif.—a county that a lot Of’Rcl)llbllcan

Pyt

are going to be'in during August of 1972,1 guess. o
My. McCurrougit. We are expecting a few, Senator. ‘We are getting

ready now. Pt S o ' §
Senator Percy. We are very happy to have you with us, and you

proceed with yomr testimoniy. = C .

1

STATEMENT OF DAVID McCULLOUGH, DIRECTOR, FOOD DISTRIBU
TION PROGRAM, SAN DIEGO COUNTY, CALIF. - *

Mr. McCuiioveil. As your committee considers the' total effective-
ness of tlie direct distribution program, and the delivery system-util-
jzed by San Diego County, I think it is important to'noté those areas
in which the volunteer §ystem has been responsive-ih answering some
of the recurring criticisms of the Food Distribution'Program.* = =
- I think it is equally important to recoghize that thiere are innate defi-
ciencies in the Food Distribution Program; and that tlic delivery system
utilized in San Diego County has only touched the'swface of the prob-
lems encountered in the delivery of donated foods to-néedy persons. *-
" Traditionally' the’ commodity distribution program'has operated
under a soup-line delivery system. To date, the variety of delivery sys-
tems notwithstanding, people still line up to 'ilndé;rgo’the dehumaniz-
T e O L L S CAME I I R4
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ing experience of receiving their bowl of ‘Soup, only in this case it’s
not.a bowl.of soup, in San Diego County it was over 87 million pounds
of food and in_the:State of California ‘an ddditional 175 million
pounds. To éfficiently and effectively distribute volumes of this-mag-
nitiide is éumbersome in theory and is costly, in reality, both in-terms
of responsiveness to the beneficiary. and in  operating eéxpeises, San
‘Diego  County. recognized the inheren ddministrative- and- delivery
problems earlyin its consideration of #* .s program. It recognized that
it alone‘could-riot at o réasonable-cost, assure convenience to all bene-
ficiaries, ‘tran§portation'to the 'aged and disabled, an outreach pro-
gram for the potentially eligible, a fnll range of food to eligible par-
ticipants, and effective nutritional education. It recogiized that in
order to 1mclude these and other necessary components.of the commod-
ity distribution program it would be necessary to achieve participatory
involvement from interested groups and agencies. It was on this basis
that the county entered into a partnership with churches and private
agencies for the distribution of U.S. Department of Agriculture-
donated foods. The alternative to this cooperative effort was-exclusive
‘operation- of the!program-by county government..If-the county had
undertaken’ this program alone,:it would not have had the benefit of
the resources and cooperation of the other organizations: Thus, the de-
livery capability would not have been as effective.: . it -~ ooy
Now, what are some of the areas where voluntary participation has
contributed to program effectiveness? R ST BSOS WETa

3 ;

[

e
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ConrriBUTIONS MADE BY AGENCIES | ..\ .0+ =
SRR Y U T T R R Y SR R PR R TS T AR T SRV ICR

Probably one of the most significant pontribugiqns made, _by,.’.partlcf
ipating agencies has been the 17 buildings made ayailable to the county
for, distribution: centers, This contribution has been vitalin that it has
:provided broad geqgraphic coverage of the county’s 4,200 square miles,
The convenience of proximity of beneficinries to distribution outlets
-has obvious-benefit, 1n teris, of .their.ability to acquire food. There
is, however, an additional and more subtle benefit that is equally
important; and, this is the.,psychological convenience. to potential
beneficiaries. Tt has been my observation. that. those,who may haye
been fearful or reluctant to seek assistance through Government
agencies seem;freer to contact;churches;or other organjzations- that
are familiar,within theirenvironment. . .., - oo wnim

In addition to thie “obvious ‘¢conomic benéfits to the county—the
value of the contributed facilities used .as distribution centers trans-
lates. into, approsimately, $15,000. per year in actual space and facili-
ties, and: an, additiona] $300,000 to:$350,000,.per year; in volunteer
man-hours—the .country has; also, benefited from. a broadened base of
participatory.commitment, It’s an, interesting and:unique. experience
to have. those, who:would. tell. Government, what shoyldqbe .done, to be
involved, not:independently, but with a, Governmentagency, in, the
.doing. . One .specific aren,wiere:the . private agency.involvement: ‘has
had,a very positive effect is in the:communication  and. interpretation
:?f' the, program, not. only; to; participants,but. to;the: community at
' al,' e‘[',-’ Gt ‘_1"‘ ALY ; ."'(j’:- o v .A'!,‘ Vot "':'.'E';" ‘”1":.? ¢! :
-xiIg;WQl.ll@if-like;tog,bréeﬂy enumerate and discuss so

2l SO G
scuss some of the additional

areas where the “private agencies and voluntéers have been partic-
ularly effective.
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s/ HOURS. AND DAYS OF DISTUBUTION. ..\ .. i,

e . T TS T T P T ea el gy b
"It "has beeft’sibmitted as ‘eriticisii of the’ commodity distribution
grpgra@"x_f‘ that with'few ex¢eptions, distiibution centers are opén only
during normal businéss hours and that this is'a barrier to ‘participa’
tion; especially tothe working poor.” .1 - T iU R R
‘Because of the flexibility of ‘volunteers, we have found that week-
end and evening hours of ‘distribution: can be ‘edsily implemented.
At this time, eight of ‘the 17 centers’in’San'Diego County have'dis-
tribution ‘schedules which ‘include’ ‘Saturdays ‘or. évening” hours of
distribution, =« i BT et am T
© " ¢ "LANGUAGE BARRIERS - S E e

An additional recurring. criticism has been the language barriers
‘which have made participation difficult for the nqn-EnglisTl-speaking
population: It has been suggested that many persons do not apply:or
participate due'to problems in communication with either certi]f?ication
or distribution officials.: - R U R
As mentioned earlier in my comments, the participation of agencies
and persons indigenous to the areas being served has responded to the

~communication;%1/'loblem. In:San Diego County, Indians are serving

reservations and Mexican groups are working in the Barrio. . - - - =
- An-additional factor in this whole area of communication which is
.quite important is that volunteers have shown'to be effective advocates
for.the participants. If certification ‘or delivery procedures are not
responsive toa' particular household, volunteers use the accessthey
have to myself and my staff to clarify the issue, and to communicate

with the applicant or participant.. . . w0 o n T
' PR FTENE o SR .‘y,-t.f..' T ;‘5.2‘ P o L o
<y -y TRANSPORTATION. PROBLEMS . . . = il wao

The particulir program criticisi thit T have been‘most interested
in is the tiansportation’ difficulties of béneficiaries’ which are all too
often barriérs to participation, I think the reason that 'I-am so inter-

1
.....

ested is‘that the concerted ‘efforts of 'all thé agencies and‘groups worlk-
ing within' this'program’ haye not'solved this problem; It is' isheart-
ening to'riote that'even with' 17’ ceriters and' the'attempts’ of variojis
agencies'ts paiticipate in’transpottation) there continies to be needy
persons who either'dd not participite, or wligse participation is'intert
riipted becausé of transportation problemig, ' "t e s
g R‘hére“are certainly other activitiés whére the utilization of: volun-
teers has'mads significairt contribution’ to' the overall effectivenéss'of
the program. However, as Iindicatéd early in Iny comments, it hasonly
touched the surfuce proklems, dnd'T would like'to'comment'to your
committee on some deficiencies that I see as innate in the commodity
distribution’ program and ‘whichyin'my jidgment; are amendablé to
solution only by i radicil chande ir;grqgmmfﬁeli'very. The transporta-
tion 'ptb,blems‘?Iihafvé just nientiotiec ‘arenct confined to vehicular un-
availiability; biit ‘quite often’dué to ‘the volumes'of food -which must
be transported. For 'qxd;ngle;' ‘public transportation may-bé convenient
to 'rnother ; however; transporting'a‘month’s supply- of ifood which
_may_"alm'o'u'nt?to‘_-hiinqreds"of péunds: may'preclude the use’ of public
transportatioti; This'is the type of difficulty I' refer td when I usethe
term innate deficiency in the commodity distribution pfogram.: :i-

‘.
ES




et o At A 04 ATYY o7

T e

2356

To digress for just one moment’; it 6ecurs to me that over the past
few years there-has been great activity and investigation in order to
bring persuasion and cognizance of the fact that hunger exists in
this Nation. It secms to me that there is no longer-a ‘pressing require-
ment for persuasion to recognize and admit the problem of hunger,
but rather, » pressing requirement to find the system that can adminis-
tratively and operationally respond tothe need. .- .= .

* I havealluded 1 my preceding comments to the volume and magni-
tude. of the commodity distribution program and to the cumbersome-
ness of direct distribution. Let’s look for a moment at the incredibly
long chain of events that ultimately provides food to needy
households. _ , '

: e A NACHRONISTIC SYSTEMS -

' Basically the initial link.in this.chain s the procurement of foods
for family distribution under. authority. of Sections 32.and 416 of the
Agricultural Adjustment Act. Included in this.initial 'step is the
preponderant innate deficiency. of:the direct distribution program. I
refer, of cowrse, to the manifest purpose: of the -legislation which is
directed at aiding ‘the agricultural economy: through. prics support
and surplus removal programs, and the delegation of family and child
feecding programs to a latent function of this purpose. I would submit
that it is inherently difficult to achieve any goal, and in this case, the
goal of insuring. an adequate diet to. the Nation’s poor,when there is
a priority of purpose which even peripherally deters from the ability
to.moclify anachronistic systems, . ccarhoa b

Following this step is the processing and _transporting. of; food
throughout the Nation. I could not estimate the sums and logistical
coordination necessary: for procurement, processing, and transporta-
tion on a national basis, but my guess is that the amount and man-

hours, necessary. is staggering ; and the costs do not end there, In fis-

cal 1970-71 San Diego County expended $228,650 in warehousing and

trucking costs in order to maintain adequate inventory, levels in ad-
dition. to the.other administrative and operating costs necessary to the
program, I point this out to .your.committee to em hasize. that even
with the economies realized through volunteer contributions. of facili-
ties, and time, the total cost of San Diego’s program, inclusive of the
revenues received throngh the U.S. Department,of Agriculture operat-
ing .expense fund; is close.to.a $0.5. million. -And wt,’hab does all this
effort. and.cost ultimately.lead to? An opportunity for thousands .of
persons to stand in. outdated. distribution center, lines and -acquire
foods .that,are intended to insure,an adequate supplement to their
dlet- L L S A R RO 'r ST e i,

I bring these points. up to,emphasize that the efforts being,expended
in. terms of cost and commitment, to the, program are not; inadequate
but shackled by .cumbersome delivery systems;and, diluted legislative
authority. As, I cconumented -earliev, in my. associations jwith’ U.S.
Department of Agriculture and State officials. I find no lack of commit;
ment, or.requirement for persuasion. What I .do find.isan.overwhelm-

ing requirement for.a'program delivery system that affords considera-
tion. to the.: beneficiary a,ndjequa‘lly_- to the;,State and local

LIRS B DELRES SR TS A TN

administrators. . -
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tribution system ritilized in the State of Arizona. In.a recent discus-
sion I had with the program administrator from that State, he com-
mented on the proposed national eligibility standatds; there was no
issue in reference to the liberalization of eligibility requirements and,
in fact, support of many of the new eligibility provisions found in the
amendment. However, there was real and valid concern over how the
State could respond to a potentially doubled . recipient. population
off the redrendof a truck.” - - . L
T usethis illustration to point out that many - of the criticisms.di-
rected-at this program are valid today only because, for some  un-
known reasori, we'are locked into the. traditional methods. of dis-
pensing surplus foods. o oo '

For example : ‘Some of you may be familiar iviflx‘tlig ta'ilgaf‘e' dis-

"¢ L4 NEED .Rf(DICAt‘iCQXCEI:TﬁAP' 'C},IKI\*_G'I':-'S ,',:‘_"‘_ ',“.f:‘_ BT
I would: respectfully recommend to your’ coin'rpitféé?'thsit, serious
considerationi-be'given to radical conceptual vchangeés ‘iri'the diréet
distribution’delivery system. - - n T R L
I suggest that neither of the USDA“food Programs’ cirrently“in
use respond to.considerations necessary to the beneficiary nor'to those
responsible for their administration; '~ s e S
I suggest that without major changes, or the need- for these pro-
grams negated by a totally adequate amily ‘assistance program there
will continue to be criticism and deficiency. 't . st 7o b
Consider, if you will, that the commodity distribution program
parallels the most efficient food delivery system in the world, I refer
to the retail food stores of this country. o e
- Without'going into great detail, I'can visiialize h program whereby
‘comparable. foods in the-same volumgs could be-:(%)istribil,ted_to the
needy through the retail system. From'a fiscal’ perspective, cost sav-
ings in.procurement,; ‘transportation,” and’ storage ‘would amount to
_mﬁlions'off dollars. From 'ah' agricultural utilization point of view,
‘the. cost savings ‘could’ be: diverted into. expanded ‘institutional and
:school”lunch ‘and' breakfast programs. From ‘a local - administrative
point .of ‘view,: we! would ‘get oiit. of ' the “warehousing 'and grocery
business and simply provide certification and authorization to acqiire
certain:i foods” through ' participating ‘retdailers. For' ‘the' beneficiary,
there:would be no'needl for:an imposed buy-in: provision. There would
be: convenience-anid proximity: and’ gréater flexibility’ and dignity in
‘acquisition. In tessence, what'T:am suggesting is that “Wwe take those
components of the Food ‘Distributiofi"and Food" Stamp Program
‘that have shown to be'workable and meaningful, in terms of program
goalsiand by this:develop a’ delivery vehicle ‘that"fulfills the purpose
of‘this. program ‘in "a ‘rational and contemporaty way! MU
~~In-spite 'of the program.deficiéncies' I *have: been'ic liscussing it is
important to recognize' that San"Diego County and the participating
agencies and vohinteers-are: proud of ' their '_',aCc{)mplishinfer;!;s ‘in-this
program. We do take some sati‘sfaqtibn in'the Kknowledge' that 786,000
needy persons received food during the past ‘year; It is ‘gratifying to
mote that there was ‘an increase of. 100,000 persons Served over the pre-
‘ceding program year.:And it ig‘noteworthy:that a 'r'nsijdrit'y' ‘of orga-
nizations representing the poor communicated to our boird: their
0y
AR ]
. q.','( N

9 '




o S v oy ey

2358

prpference for continuation of the Fpod Distribytion Program when
our county ‘dorisidered conversion to the Food Stamp Program,, ... -
“*The’ ¢ominodity  progrdm, within San, Diego, Gounty . has demon-
stiatedl'in’ o visible|way the meaningful contribution. additional foods
can® make to. low:incbme Tamilies, And, it;is . our purpose to suggest
that the conimodity prokrim ‘can reet the food needs of this Nation’s
poor, if'we can only be fiexible'and innovative in our approach to do-
g T Have suggested. consideration of the use of retail outlets for
food- distribution to tlie"poor, and I have also.commented. on the:con-
tributions private agencies.and citizens con 'make to improve an ex-

panded program delivery. I do not ‘presume .that these arethe only

avenues'to improve delivéry but suggest that we formulate,.consider,
and test’new methods of delivery that could effect greater efficiency,
economy, and responsiveness to the poor. ' ‘

Senator, that is the end of my prepared statement, and I would be
delighted to answer any qtie‘s'tiOnS't%zit you might have,
..Senator Prroy. This is a.very discerning:and helpful body of testi-
mony. I:am a little confused, about soine of the.conclusions that were
reached "as against this phrase that you-.use; “radical -conceptual
changes are, required in the progran.”; I'really. felt when you said that
that you:were. implying. that-food stamps’or:soine improvement on
that program would be the answer,; and yet jyou:report. that local
sentiment, expressed,.through. organizationsrépresenting -the: poor,
when given the alternative.of going;to. food 'stamps still: prefers direct
distribution, How do you a¢count. for that:sentiment on their part?
T THC T Tot PRI YOy T ST VANITY RV TTE BRI LR e
2y DISSATISFACTION: WITH»,.Foonf.STAMp.’%PRorGRA_M_._ R

: sl oot Tont i e 1

rl\.I,r,-fM‘?,CFPROHGH-.-.S..e.%'?qr,|doﬁ*t§interﬁnef;;this as-total satisfaction
with'the commodity program,-but also,a.very, very strong. dissatisfac-
tlon WlththPFOOdg,tanimegrm dgvieys Lindn ol et
.. We have gver the past 214 years since.entering)this program.met
formally \with the representatives,of various-poor organizationsiand
with;program beneficiaries at, distribution outlets. We-have attemptéd
Y0 keep,thein advised regarding both programs. We need their iipuf in

AT LI

Jorder. to;make certain, decisions,,Afid there.is. still-great:disenchant-

ment Wifh thebuy-m provision of the Food Stamp Progtam the provi-
sion.in the amendment. that allows: for ireduced purchase requirements
‘also reduces program. benefits. ;So. there is-really,no answer; there..In
San. Diego;, and. 1: think; in,California, the;level of public.assistance
grants are such that;purchasing: food st@mFs becomes af very :difficult
thing for 3, familyto deeach and everymonthan'l nd} o wiaoni v
.,Senator, Percy; Well, when they are.giyen the.choice of food stamps
or, commodity; distribution, it is -an,unfair choice becsuse icommodity
distribution 18 ,W‘ithqut;((;(').s_t ,whilerwitli £ood:stamps they have tobuy
commensurate,with their, shility,to pay: Are they;then saying in-éon-

.trast with requirement to,provide;a’certain,gmount of.cash for buying

that they, feel: food, distribution iy better.even: though they point-out
many.deficiencies i.n.)food;dis.t.ribuhigr}:?it&,~,-.». ngcion adet ofy 7T ooy
+1 Mz McCurroven. Thatigexactly 11y oot horivw ey oo
Senator.. PERCY. Given the: choice\between;food:stampswhich may
e without'.costand, food, distribution’ without.cost where would!the

> le
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Mr. McCurroueu. Given that choice I am sure it would be for food
stamps without cost.

Senator Prrcy. I suppose, going back to the Ben Henemann studies
and other studies, that given a choice between food stamps and cash
they will always choose cash.

Mr. McCurroucu. Certainly.

Senator Perey. Of those eligible to participate in San Diego County,
what is the level of participation? What percentage of participation
do you have?

Mr. McCurrouarr. I really don’t know, Scnator. It is very difficult
to get accurate information on the potentially eligible. The economy,
if yon will, creates eligibility through labor disputes, if you will, and
then the eligibles are removed cue to settlement. My guess is that prob-
ably 80 percent of the potentially eligible in San Diego participates.
Some who are eligible don’t participate on a consistent basis. They hit
and miss, and I think this has-to do with the convenience of the pro-
gram to them.

Senator Percy. Why is the income limit so low in such a relatively
high income or expensive avea as San Diego ?

Mr. McCurLoucr. The income levels are really extensions of USDA-
approved operations. The income level is in the process of being re-
vised upward. However, we have been advised in the State that no
amendments to the income standards should be submitted until such
time as the national eligibility standards are promulgated.

Senator Percy. Could you give us a comment on the quality of food ?

Mr. McCuorrouart. Yes ; I would like to.

Senator Percy. And, have you experienced any difficnlties with the
packaging, and so forth, of it? '

Myr. McCurrouen. Yes ; we have had consistent problems with pack-
aging in given items, and I think that these problems have been com-
municated to appropriate officials within USDA.

We received, let me just say, very interesting press, to use a euphe-
mism—Iast week, after the first day of testimony—regarding rusty
orange juice. During the last week I have been up to my ear lobes in
ovange juice, I want you to know. '

Desrroy Dadragep CodMODITIES

- But I want to make it clear that a damaged or out-of-condition prod-
uct does not: get to the beneficiavy in San Diego County, and I can
only speak for this country. But anythirig that is vusty, that is torn,
that is ripped, is never made aviilable for distribution. It is destroyed.

“Senator Prrcy. What do you do with it, just throw it away?

Mr. McCurrouah. Destroy it and report it. : '

Senator Percy: Do you-think:other counties are as careful as you
are in this respect ? b e ' ' '

Mr. McCurrouex. Senator, I think they have to be. And I think that
they are.

enator Percy. What is the frequency with which you must dispose

of food ? Have yon had bursting of cans ov cans that were rusty and
labels torn, and so forth? ™ o : o
M. MoCuLLovenL. Yes.

a
0]
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Senator Purcy. How frequent is that, or is it relatively infrequent?
That will happen in any retail store also. C :
- Mr. McCurrouen. The incident with the orange juice was the first
occurrence of really bad packaging in this product. And during the
last quarter wo destroyed somewhat over 500 cans in the distribution
center and an additional estimated 70 cases within our warehouse that
didn’t even get out to distribution centers. . . -'
I was with the USDA inspector Wednesday morning, and his spec-
ulation upon looking at this product was that—let me just digress for
a-moment. I am.not an expert here, but the product is put into the
can warm, it is then sealed and sent through a cooling water stream,
then blown dry and labeled. Routinely the can. would sit in a ware-
house for a period of time to dry. This particular shipment ‘went di-
rectly. from the labeling process: directly to.casés and then directly
shipped. He.suspects.t?mt..there was a great amount of condensa-
tion due to water left on the cans, and this ultimately resulted in rust.

.No InsPECTION 1IN WAREHOUSE ~

In addition there was no individual inspection of cans as they stood
in the warehouse, and therc were some cans that were leaking, and
this also contributed to the problem. .. =

Senator Percy. How do you file complaints or bring these conditions
to the attention of the Department of Agriculture, and what has been
their response? L L :

Mr. McCuouroven. We submit letters to the regional office through
Los Angeles County which acts as our distributing agency. We have
sent samples, for example, where we have had consistent problems
with polyvethylene packaging; we send tliem bags to show them the
problem seams. We send them contract numbers, delivery order num-
bers, all of the backup information. that they would have to have
in order to determine who the processor or vendor was. I must
say that response from the regional office has really not been forth-
coming. We give them the input, but we don’t know what action is
being taken. Informally we are advised that appropriate people have
been notified of the packaging problem. '

Senator Percy. Do you think it advisable for them to respond and
reply to you and let you know what they are doing ¢ it reminds me of
the State Department—a great complaint that people make in em-
bassies aroung the world 1s. that when they pour the stuff into the
State Department, they very seldom hear anything back. They don’t.
know where it goes, into whose file or which wastebasket, or even what
it is, and when they get a reply they are so grateful that someone on
the other end has received it and done something about it.

As a person working in the field do-you think it would be worth
their while to just drop you a note, let you know they have received
your complaint and here is what they have done about it ¢

Mair CoxaroNicaTioN. Nor EFFECTIVE

Mr. McCutiover. I certainly do, and I think—go even a step
further—I think it would be quite beneficial to have representatives
of the processor come out and take a look at this stuff once in a while.
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I think that in commercial business, for example, where thers is a
bad product or problems due to packaging, the representative, of the
manufacturer takes a look at it I.don’t think this is a bad idea. Let hi -
talke his observations and recommendations back .to his people—I
think theé more input that we can.get on this the faster the problemn
will be solved. . What we are-doing now is communicating through the
mails, and you know that at times is not very effective.

Senator Percy. And lastly, I would like to commend you on bring-
ing volunteer groups in. I think this is a highly innovative part of
your program and helped contribute toward 1its success. How would
You suggest other counties. involve volunteer groups? Do you think
they ought to place high priority on doing this? . L

Mr. McCutroucu. Well, I.think that they should, Senator. We
have had a trenmendous amount of success utilizing voiuntecrs, and I
think the first step is to create interest. We have found where there
was interest there is now commitment. There are certainly the classic
agencies that you would look to, the Salvation -Army, the hunger
groups that are forming in many communities across the country, and
deve op firstly, I thinlk, a base, one or two agencies, and these agencies
rub shoulders with other agencies, and the thing just kind of com-
pounds itself down the line. This is how we began. And one of the
things that is very important to my mind is to male those that want
to volunteer time and resources an itegral part of the program. They
can’t be outside, they have to be involved. : -

Senator Percy. We thank you very much indeed for being with us.

Mr. McCurroverr. Thank you. | , R

Senator Percy. It has been very helpful,-and we look forward to
seeing you some time next year in' San Diego.

Mr. McCurroven. Fine. Thank you. o

Senator Prroy. Our last witness this morning is Mr. Warren Bre-
g.rig, former director of commodity distribution in Nassau County,

Mr. Breland, I must excuse myself for a few minutes to' make an
urgent phone call for which I have just had a message. Mr. Sommer
will take the chair, and if you just carry on I will be right back to
you. . - .

STATEMENT OF WARREN H. BRELAND, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
FREEPORT, LONG. ISLAND ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY COUNCIL,
INC. ~

Mr. Breranp. Good morning, gentlemen. My name is Warren H.
Breland, presently executive director of the Freeport, Long Island
Economic Opportunity Council, Inc. I am here today as former direc-
tor of the Long Island People’s Association, an organization which
existed for approximately 1 year, from July 1969 to July 1970.

In July of 1969, the government of Nassau County, contracted with
the Long Island Peogie’s Association, to administer its commodity
distribution program for all eligible families in Nassau County and to

gjrovde consumer, nutrition and health education services through the
stribution network. g . :
Prior to July of 1969, the County of Nassau had handled the cor-.
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modity distribution program itself, distributing from eight centers,
widely spaced throughout the county. As that system was set np, indi-
vidunls eligible were required to personally visit the distribution points
to pick up their monthly allotment of food. Because of the inadequacy
of public transportation on Long Island, the unavailability of private
transportation, many who were eligible did not use the program, and
those who did suffered severe difficulty in reaching the distribution
pomts.

As incorporated in 1969, the Board of Directors of the Long Island
People’s Association, Inc., consisted of one representative of each of
30 communities, with the town of Long Beach having two represent-
atives. In addition seats were reserved for representatives of the fol-
lowing 14 community organizations:

1. Welfare Tenants Coordinating Committee;

2. BEconomic OQpportunity Commission of Nussau County ;
3. Long TIsland Council of Churches;

4. Long Island CORE; '

H. Regional NAACP; -

6. Tri-Faith Committee;

7. Diocese of Rockville Centre;

8. Long Island Rabinnical Association

9. County executive oflice;

10. League of Women Voters; .

11. Nassan County Cooperative Extension Service;

12. Department of Social Services of Nassau County ;
13. Health and Welfare Council of Nassau County’; and
14. Nassau County Board of Supervisors.

During the short lifetime of Long Island People’s Association a
concerted effort was made to involve consumers of the running of the
organization and shortly before the phase out of this program with
the advent of the IFood Stamp Program, a community-wide election,
was held to elect a consnmer board which assumed operating responsi-
bilities for the organization.

Disrrisurion SYSTEM

One of the major difficulties and the chief deciding factor in the
county of Nassau’s decision to subcontract its commodities distribu-
tion program to the Long Island People’s Association. Inc., was the
fact that there were few distribution points, and these were all at
considerable distance from those cligible for the surplus commoditics.
Asa result those for whom the program was designed were not utiliz-
ing the program. . )

Long Island People’s Association immediately set up a network of
local distribution centers in 31 selected communities throughont the
county. These storefront distribntion centers were open daily from
9 a.m. to 5 p.m. to serve welfare recipients and low-income residents at
their convenience. Efforts were made to create the atmosphere of a
retail establishment so that recipients could feel at ease in visiting the
stores and picking up their allotment.

Commodities were centrally warehoused at Mitchell Field on Long
Island, and trucked to the neighborhood distribution points of a sched-
uled basis by LIPA employees using vehicles leased by LIPA, Inc.

.3
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Administration of the program and supervision of the 31 distribu-
tion points and their employees were conducted from a central office
of the association at ITempstead, N.Y.

Cosr

As subcontracted from Nassau Comnty to Long Island People’s A\s-
socintion, total budget for the year of operation approximated $990,000.
Of this, the Inrgest portion covered salary costs of the 115 LIPA em-
ployees, both central sta i, warchouse personnel, and community store-
front stafl in the mmount of $780,000 per annum. This cost was entively
reimbursable to the county from the State. Approximately 100 of the
115 employees were former welfare vecipients. In addition, rental costs
for the distribution centers were $110,000 which smns went divectly
into the private sector in the form of monthly rental payments from
the county, through LIDPA.

Cost of the foodl delivery system, covering subcontracting with pri-
vate trncking firms and equipment rental firms amonnted to approxi-
mately $70,000. Overall adninistrative costs amounted to approxi-
mately $40,000 per annum,

SrarriNe

Central administrative stafl of Long Island People’s Association con-
sisted of an executive director, community organizer, and nutritionist.

When considering the effectiveness of decentralizing the distribntion
of surplus food commodities, the accomplishing of the Long Island
People’s Association in its short lifetime should be considered:

1. Availability of the distribution service to consumers in their
owll or near communities on a regnlar, daily basis.

2, Distribution of a million pounds of food each month.

3. Doubling of the number and variety of foods being distvib-
uted to consumers.

4. Enrollment of 7,000 new participants within 3 months of
the program’s inception, mor: t]lmn doubling the number of fam-
ilies receiving food. Maximum number of families served reached
12,000 monthly. This figure represents approximately S0 percent
of the then eligible resident welfare popu‘ution.

5. Reernitment countywide of volunteers to aid in the delivery
of needed commodities to the elderly and disabled who could not
leave their homes.

6. Employment for 100 people who were formerly totally or
partially dependent upon public assistance.

7. Training of neighborhood store personnel to make veferrals
to social service agencies in the county and to distribute health,
mutrition and consumer edueation information.

As can be seen by this list of accomplishments. the aim of the Tong
Island People’s \ssocintion was twofold. Not only was it concerned
with the vitally needed eflicient distribution of commodities to those
in need It in addition, it was concerned with and snccessful in in-
volving to a high degree consnmers at all levels of the operation of
the program.

As has been mentioned earlier s commnmity bonrd was elected shortly
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before the demise of the program was dictated by the institution
of the Food Stamp Program. This consumer board was the result of
community orgamzation eflorts on the part of central LIPA staff,
which aimed at organizing those utilizing the neighborhood distribu-
tion centers. Each center was designed not only as a depot for food
commodities, but also as & community information and referral center.

Personnel of the stores, which were residents of those communities
received training from central staff in consumer matters, nutrition and
health. They also become familiar through this training process with
other services offered through county and community agencies and
served as a vital link between consumers and those agencies. Libraries
relating to consumer needs and services were set up in each of the cen-
ters, and classes in food preparation were conducted by the LIPA
nutritionist.

As consumers used the centers on a regular basis, they became
familiar and confident in the personnel and consulted themn and sought
advice on other difficultics they were having.

The storefront distribution centers beer ue community meeting
places, utilized in off hours by consumers for meetings and classes of
interest to them,

One of the points which cannot be overemphasized is the value of
having a comfortable center which attracts consumers on a regular
basis. The centers enabled us to identify those in need, to bring them
together in groups and to inake available to them a means through
which they cou]dl express their needs. As consumers utilized the cen.
ters, inadequacies in other services were hiahlighted. Difficulties which
are common to those attempting to thread their way through the com-
plicated maze of even the most well meaning public agencies cropped
up again and again and LIPA personnel were effective in an inter-
mediary role between client and agency.

Wo held high hopes for the Long Island People’s Association, Inc.
and its network of neighborhood distribution centers as a creative link
between the consumer of service and those agencies designed to provide
those services. The stores were “natural” gathering places for con-
sumers and could have been the base for a vital consumer service.
Since they were consumer operated. there would have been authentic
reflection of need which would be invaluable to those designing
services.

PoTENTIAL OF StORes

The potential of the stores, which was largely untapped due to the
short life of the program, include the following:

1. Base of coordination of local resources. such as individuals
who might want to volunteer in various specialized areas, such as
transportation, medical, or legal needs.

2. Base for dissemination of information to consumers relating
to services available to them. One of the great difficulties of gov-
ernment agencies is bridging the gap which separates them from
consumers.

3. Provision of a decentralized touchstone for those in distress,
for a speedy means of evaluating nceds in crisis and direction to
solutions.

4. A base for organization of consumers around other com-
munity concerns, in their own loeale,

Lora
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This potential is mentioned primarily because it should be realized
that while the Federal Governinent through the Office of Fconomic
Opportunity and the State and local governments have been attempt-
ing to render relevant service to the poor on Long Island, their services
are bunched either in central, hard to reach locations, or are limited
In number such as the 11 antipoverty programs now in existence in
which they reach only a portion of the eligible poor on Long Island.

The county has attempted to decentralize some of its service, but
again in a very limited number—five—of conperative service coenters
which serve the vast 274 square ile aren of Nussau County. A map*
of the location of the 81 distribution centers is attached to my state-
ment which will illustrate the thoroughness with which locatjon was
integrated into the distribution plan.

The commodities distribution plan as administered by the Long
Island People’s Association was a creative successful response to n
need in the county. It not only got the job done in relation to moving
food from warehouses into the hands of people who were hungry,
but it also was a beginning of the forging of a link between govern-
ment and the people which isstill badly needed.

You will see attached to the statement a list of stores* which were
operated, a map which will show you the seven or eight county dis-
tribution points before we took over the proigrnm, and the box marks
will indicate the 31 stores operated under the Long Island People’s
Association.

I also attached a stafling outline of our organization and how it
worked. And as the ex-director of this organization I would like to
say that I feel that we did a job well done, and that this design itself
crented the most impact on us better being able to serve the needy or
hungry in Nassau County.

Senator Percy. It scems to me that you operated, Mr. Breland, a
program under ideal circunstances with real participation from tho
peog]e, broadspread distribution, convenience, and easy access to the
food.

What is the comparison, do you know, between the success of that
program~—which certainly was as good as any could be made—and as
against the Food Stamp Program that isnow in effect ? )

Mr. Brernaxn, Well, the Food Stamp Program hasbeen in operation
a year, and I don’t have any hard statistics, During the time when
the Food Stamp Program was coming in Nassau County we had done
some research ourselves on how it had affected, for instance, Phila-
delphin—which is very close to us. We found that it had a large
percent of dropouts from participating in the program, as much as
50 percent.

Reasons ror Foop Staste Drorours

I know becnuse of my present duties as executivz director of a com-
munity based program in Freeport, which is one of the large cities
there in Long Island, that there are a large number of people who
just don’t participate, and I would say that they probably have had
close to 40 or 50 percent dropout rate. And it is for several reasons—
tho special lines in banks to buy the food stamps, people can’t always

*8ee Appendix 1, pp. 2421, 2409,




2366

get to the banks duving their operating hours to purchase them, and
some banks limit the purchase of the stamps only to certain days of
the week, special lines in food stores, having to buy all of your food
stamps in one lump sum, use all of your food money.

A lot of it, too, is that once the money is put in the food stamps they
can’t use that money to help offset other costs with the lHinited welfare
budgets which a lot of that food money was used for before. Surplus
food commodities were free.

We did a small survey on what the consumer was actually losing by
roing on food stamps, and in a particulav instanee where we were talk-
ing nbout a family who was allotted $20 a month for food and they
would get an extra $6 by enrolling in the Food Stamp Program it
would actually be losing approximately $14 becanse the food they
were getting free was worth about $25. And they wonld really be tak-
ing a loss—we put a value on those commodities—of about $20 for a
family of two.

Senator Prrcy. When the commodity program was phased out in
Nassau County what was the reaction of the recipients?

Mr. Brernaxo. First T would like to tell you that we had a poll, we
actually set up boxes and asked the people who we were serving to
vote for which progrmmn they thought would be best for them, and giv-
ing them information on both the Food Stamp Program and the sur-

lus food commodity program : and we didn’t have full participation
m the voting. but we did get +.993 positive votes for the surplus feod
commodities and there were only approximately 400-some people who
voted in Favor of food stamps. So If it was up to the people as to the
choice of kind of program based on the information that was given
them they would rather have had surplus food commodity program.
That money they were getting for food on their welfare budeet was
still going to be there with surplus commodity. It wouldn’t mean
losing that money.

Senator Penrcy. You indicated that vou made food available in a
sort of retail store atmosphere, making it casy for recipients. IHow did
they pick up the food and what quantity of food would they have to
pick up at any one time?

Mr. Breraxn. Well, the food could be picked up any time during that
given month, so that it wasn’t always necessary for them to pick up
all of their food at one time even though in most cases we did try and
complete one order when the person was in the stove.

Senator Percy. For the month 2

Mr. Breraxp. For the month.

Senator Prrey. So they had to fnlfill the order for the whole month
whenever they came in?

Mr. Breraxn. Yes.

Senator Perey. What means of transportation did they use?

Pronress oF TraNsrorrartion

Mr. Breraxn. A lot of them were using transportation that was
provided through volunteers. through us. But that wasn’t a laree per-
centage. A lot of them came by bus. A lot of them were in walking dis-
tance. Some of them had to nse taxieabs. becanse some of the people
that canme and picked up food represented heads of houschold of large
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families and it was a lot of food to carry. But transportation was one
of the difficulties and one of the problems that we hadn’t overcome.
Weare working toward it.

We are trying, for instance. to get the county to provide = <chicles
during certain days of the montl to transport food.

But that was one of the problems we had. But they would mostly
come by bus.

Senator Prrcy. Now you tool 100 people who were on welfare and
hired them for this program. What was the cost to welfare agencics
that maintained them on welfare? And what was your cost for cash
payment to them for becoming workers in this program?

Mr. Brerano. I don't have any hard figures, and I tried to be as
complete as T could—1I don’t have any hard figures as to what it was
costing the welfare department to maintain them while thev were on
welfare. But I would say that the point of cost between what they
were paying out and what they were actually collecting in salarics
isn’t crucial; but the point that is crucial is the point that they were
on jobs, salaries, they were people who were collecting moneys which
were going to go bacl into the economy of that county.

I don’t have any hard figures on that particular comparison that
you are asking for.

Senator Percy. What was their own individual satisfaction they
were getting out of life working for a living, helping others, getting
snlaries. as against their condition and mental frame of mind when
they were welfare recipients?

Mr. Brevaxp. Well, T think I can answer that by saying that, you
know, through working with these people, especially I think that any-
one who had been a part of it who had heard any fallacies that related
to people on welfare like it and don’t want to work would see that
there was a 100-percent change in the individual as far as how
the individual felt about themselves and their children and things
that they could do. They were able to look at higher goals. They were
glad to have something to do, and they were glad tobe a part of helping
in a program that was helping other people like themselves.

Senator Prrcy. Is that generally your feeling about welfare recipi-
ents? Is the cliché that. they want to be on welfare and don’t want to
worl not true?

Maxoniry NEEp To B Userun

Mr. Breraxp. I think in the large percentage it is a fallacy, and I
think if we just deal with lmman nature alone that it is hard to just
waste away a day. I think that if people on welfare had money to go
out and travel and do a lot of other things with their time this could
be trne. But we know. that with the limit of money that they have. all
they can do possibly is sit home and watch television—which isn't a
way of life for anybody.

Senator Pexcy. So fhat the added cost of utting them to work and
making them useful would prepare them for later?

Mr. Breraxo. Right.

Senator Percy. Was muceh training required for the 100 people to
qualify them to help distribute the food 2

My, Breraxp. The training was basieally in stages, about a month
or so in the beginning. and we continned training sessions thronghont
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the program. But initially because we were running sort of o produc-
tion operation, adding some action kind of techniques to it, most of the
people were able to pick it up very fast. A lot of the people who came
to us had talents that weren’t being used. They just weren’t able to get
jobs, or for some reason they were discriminated against when they
applied for jobs. I think a lot of it was that we said you could do it
and said all you have to do is put some time in, a little bit ¢f your
energy and timne, and we will get you where you want to go, and we
found they grew with the job. They started reaching for other things
they wanted to know and learn.

The other thing was at the close of the food commodity program the
people who were working in the program, primarily the 100 welfare
recipients, had formed themselves into an employment committec or
council where they went through the county government and peti-
tioned them for jobs. They said if you arc going to put us ont of work
again and back on welfare we are not going to stand for it, and because
of that all of them were phased into county government in jobs. Some
of them went into the training programs, and I spoke to a guy a week
ago who told mehe is now in the engineering department in the county,
which is an accomplishment for him. He was at that point told he was
on welfare and out of work,

Senator Prerey. You indicated that you used the distribution centers
in off hours for classes and for meeting places. Did you experience, as
a result, much theft of commodity foods and was theft much of a prob-
lem for you at any time?

Mzr. Brenaxp. We had very, very few problems with, T think, theft
as & problem. I think most of the percentage of what could be stolen
was what was destroyed or lost because of poor packaging. I listened
to the other gentleman speak——

Senator Percy. Did you haye some of the same problems with poor
packaging and quality of products?

Mr. Breraxp. Well, poor packaging rather than quality of product.
I found—and T have eaten a lot of surplus foods, which yon are going

to be enjoying tomorow. Some of the surplus food commodities are
better than some of the things available at retail stores, the cheeso
and butter and things that are available there. Cf course, there is a
large problem with the canned meats. Meat is a product people like to
eat like a steak or pork chop or something of that nature. T ICro iS o
comparison with getting canned chicken and chopped meat in a can.
That would be the area that could be improved on, meats.

Senator Peroy. As far as quality is concerned-—and you have had
broad experience—did you not receive complaints on quality?

No CoxrrLaints oN QuUarniTy

Mr. Erenaxp. Wo did not receive complaints on quality. I think a
lot of the problem of what people relate to the quality of food is yon
have to know how to prepare that food. It isn’t prepared as any other
Tood is prepared that is purchased in the store.

So we emphasized running cooking classes. We weuld even go out
and visit in homes a lat. The powdered egg, unless it is made up in a
certain way—it is how you make it, whether it comes out good or
whether it comes out tasting poorly,
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Senator Percy. What kind of nutrition education was provided to
LIPA members, and do you think nutrition education is a good in-
vestment to make sure the food is properly prepared?

Mr. Breranp. Well, I think because of the people we were serving
and the people who were working in the program, they didn’t huve

to deal with nutrition from a professional point of view. I think what.
we are talking about in nutrition education, we are talking about what.
a child should eat dail , we are talking about vitamins, the importance-

of milk, that a child should eat breakfast before going to school, how
it affects him in his school work. We are talking about what kind of
food provides what, and what effect they have, especially as far as
mothers during pregnancy, things of this nature. We talked about
vitamin deficiencies and tﬁeir effect on people, these kinds of things.

It wasn’t, as I say, a professional or complicated nutrition educa-
tion program. It was just grassroots, to the point, and I think that
it had a greater impact than if we had published some literature on
nutrition that would have dealt with all of the other approaches that
have been taken toward nutrition.

Senator Peroy. Well, tomorrow for our luncheon, even though
Senate regulations require that our cook prepare the food, it might
be a good 1dea for someone from USDA to come over and give us some
tips on how to Prcpare food. We want to have as good a meal as we
can for my colleagues.

Did the Department of Agriculture provide any extra resources
for the operation of LIPA ¢

Goop YWorkineg Rerarionsuip

My, Breraxp. No; to my knowledge we had a—I didn’t denl
directly with all of their representatives. There was occasion I had
a chance to meet with them. I do know that the working relationship
between their staff and our staff was good. OQutside resources—the pro-
gram was financed through our corporation and we paid all the bills,
the county was reimbursed 100 percent. I am not sure where the money
came from.

Senator Peroy. Was the administrative budget adequate for the
needs of such a large program$? '

Mr. BreLanp. Yes, the administrative budget was adequate. What
we found was we were taking & sum of money that was maybe a little
larger than the county was using to operate the program, but doing
a more effective job, I think if we would compare the amount of out-
mlt as to what the input was, I think percentagewise we delivered a

tter program for the same amount of money or a little bit more
money than the county wasat the time.

Senator Prrey. You have dealt with elderly people. and T notice that
you provided for volunteer assistance in getting commodity foods to
them. Have you had any experience in the community feeding of the
elderly? Do you feel that the community center you mentioned is a
good meeting placo for people? Our experience with community cen-
ters for the elderly has been that not only is it a good central point
for them to get n hot meal and come together and meet with other
people, but also it provides the social climate that elderly people
need. Just feeding them food back in their room doesn’t fulfill much
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of a need other than keeping the body going. It doesn’t do much for
the human spirit.

Do youn feel that community centers of this type would be a good
investment for the community and the Federal Government? These
facilities could provide a central meeting place where the elderly could
get transportation, assistance, job retraining or work and recreation,
of course?

Mr. Breranp. Well, I think, Senator, to answer that question T
would like to say that I think a lot of the people who are in need.
whether it is food needs or other needs, 111'en"~t]being served throughout
the country becanse they don’t know how to get to the services or they N
don’t know about. them, people don’t know where they are. We use the
term in Nassan County “the hidden poor.” We found that people will
take pride in something that they are a part of or feel a part of.

I don’t know how lucrative it would be to serve meals in o center
of that kind, but we found groups would come in and meet. We found
that. Mrs. So-nand-so who lived on one side of a small town wonld take
10 or 15 minutes to talk to Mrs. Jones who lived on the other side of

- town, and it was, like youn say, a place for them to get together. A lot
] of older people lived on their own and they didn’t have any social
[ activities going before that.

The other thing was that we found that almost 80 percent of them !
were not participating in the program because they conldn’t carry the
fo}(l)d or conldn’t get to the food, and they were just making do some-
what.

No ArrowaNcrk ror Srecian Dikrs i

One of the other problems there was that a lot of them were on
special diets and none of the surplus food commodity programs al-
lowed for special diets. We found the problem and went out and got
different foods donated. The dinbetics would have to have low calorie
type food, things of this nature. A lot of that wasn’t available from
the U.S. Department of Agricnlture surplus commodity.

Senator Prucy. I want to thank you very much indeed. Your testi-
mony has been extremely valuable and kelpful to us.

These hearings will be recessed until tomorrow morning at. 10 o’clock.
at which time the committee will meet in room 318, the Old Senate
Office Building, which is the cancus room over there. Immediately fol-
lowing the hearings the committee members will be invited to par-
ticipate in a commodity food luncheon.

Mr. Brerayn. I wonld like to thank you, Senator, and your staff for
inviting me down, and I would like to say to any groups that you have
who are interested, who are still operating such a program and would
like to talk to e personally for some information on this particular
design. a ccunty subeontractineg ont to a private agency, T wonld be
more than willing to provide that kind of information to them.

Senator Prncy. It seems to me that you had one of the hest programs

et et i,

’ groing in the country. and the nice part of it was that it wasthe people’s
| program. They were participating, they were running it, and there is
’ just no substitute for that kind of participation.

Mr. Brevaso, If we can learn to let them play an important role in
decisions that are made about their lives I think we are going to be
halfway there with dealing with the whole program.

S
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Senator Percy. Fine. Thank you very much.

The committes is in recess, to reconvene at 10 aun., on Thursday, in
room 318, of the Senate Office Building.

(Whereupon, at 12:15 p.m., the Select Committee was recessed, to

reconvene at 10 a.m., on September 23, 1971, in room 318, of the Senate )
Oftice Building.)




FOOD DISTRIBUTION PROGRAM
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THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 23, 1971

U.S. SExaTE
SeLecr CoMMITTEE ON

NumrrioNy ANp HuaaN NEEps
Washington, D.C.

The Select Committee met. at 10:05 a.m., pursuant to eall, in room
318, of the Senate Office Building, Senator Percy, presiding.

Present: Senators Percy, Cook, and Schweiker.

Staff present: Kenneth Schlossberg, staff director; Judah C.
Sommer, minority counsel ; and Elizabeth P. Hottell, professional staff.

STATEMENT OF SENATOR PERCY, PRESIDING

Senator Prrey. This is the last in a series of four hearings which
have attempted to investigate and analyze the Food Distribution Pro-
gram of the UI.S. Department of Agriculture,

- T would first like to commend the Department and the administra-
tion for the job that they have attempted to do in providingl‘food for
hungry Americans within the limitations of the program. They are,
after all, restrained by authorizing legislation. The intent and pur-
pose of the program as set up originally was not just to feed hungry
Americans. It was to take care of overproduction and see what could
be d%l%e obout disposing of the food as judiciously and properly as
possible. :

This committee has held these hearings as part of its oversight re-
sponsibility of this particular program. In chairing these meetings
T have tried to take into account that the Hunger Committee itself
was a temporary committee set up by the Congress. My responsi-
bility as the acting ranking Republican on the Government Operations
Committee, which provides continuing oversight of Government pro-
grams has provided me with insight and understanding that will stand
me in good stead for this series of hearings. So I look upon this as a
very important part of the education of the entire Congress on the
intents and purpose of the program that was set up many, many
yearsago. ' '

If we find failings in the program because of the lack of compre-
hensive iegislation, we will act to fulfill our obligations by recommend-
ing corrective legislation. In this area we certainly appreciate the sug-

ions and ideas of the Department. If we discover deficiencies in
the Federal administration of this program, we will instruct the
USDA to correct them, and we will work cooperntively with the
Department. .

e have heard testimony which has focused on the plight of the
recipients. We have heard how the private sector would improve nu-

©(2373)
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tritional labeling and nutritional balance, improve the distribution of
the commoditics and improve the quality of packaging. And we have
heard abont the difliculties some States have had in the utilization of
money used for operating expenses and the snecess some localities have
had with the participation of vohmteer groups and recipients in the
operation of the prograna.

From all indications, this program will be in operation for some
time to come. It is important. therefore. that the Food Distribution
Program become as responsive to the needs of the poor and the farmer
as it is to some processors and the farm bureaucracy.

We are very happy to welcome this morning Assistant Seerctary
Lyng and his colleagues, and we are delighted to hear from you.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD LYNG, ASSISTANT SECRETARY. CON-
SUMER AND MARKETING SERVICE, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRI-

CULTURE.

Mr. Lyxae. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.

I have on my right Mr. Edward Hekman. who is the Administrator
of the Food and Nutrition Service of the U.S. Departnient of Agri-
culture, and on my left Mr. Juan del Castillo, who is Director of the
Food Distribution Division of the Department.

Foon DistrisuTion Prograd

It’s a pleasure to have an opportunity this morning to comment on
the Food Distribution Program of the U.S. Department of Agricnlture,

I will try to outline our role in this program and describe both how
food 1is distributed by the program and how that food is acquired.

Food distribution fulfills an important role in our efforts to climi-
nate hunger and malnutrition. Together with the Food Stamp Pro-

am. it provides food assistance to over 14 million people from needy
amilies across America. One or the other of these family feeding pro-
grams operates in virtually every county in the Nation.

In recent years there have been important improvements in the
Food Distribution Program. A broader assortment of items has been
made available to participants, and, since 1968, the amount of food
distributed, per person per month, has nearly doubled. The value of
that food has more than doubled.

The focus of the Food Distribution Program has changed too. This
})mgmm had its beginnin%s in the 1930’s when people were going

mngry at the same time farm surpluses were piling up and farm
prices were disastrously low. It made sense to try to solve these two
problems—the Erob]cms of food shortage, and of farm surplus—
through a food distribution program.

In 1969 the Department of Agriculture made it clear that focus
of food programs would be on food needs and the elimination of
hunger and malnutrition. The Food and Nutrition Service was estab-
lished to be an agency “. . . whose exclusive concern will he the ad-
ministration of the Federal food programs.”

Food program managers now determine food requirements. Com-
modity procurement is handled by specialists in the Department’s
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Consumer and Marketing Service and in the Agricultural Stabiliza-
tion and Conservation Service,

Under this system the Food and Nutrition Service provides infor-
mation on the number of people taking part in the progrun, and the
type and quantity of food they will need. This is information obtained
from the State and local cooperators in the program. It is provided
to the Department’s procurement specialists who then move to obtain
the needed commodities,

Prouray BeENeriTs Acrictimrran Propteens

These procurement specialists hecome espert in accomplishing the
most good with their purchases. When they get requests for partienlar
foods from the Food and Nutrition Service—for « ohvdmtmr;mlntms,
or processed eggs for example—they are able to pick the time of the
year when they can get the best buy, and when they also can do the
most good for the producer and for the rurnl and farm economy,
When the request is more general—for a fruit or a vegetable or a
meat—the_procurement specialists try to supply that need by select-
ing a specific fruit, or vegetable, or meat that is in ample supply. In
this way they get the most for their money and often help rellie\'e a
market supply-demand imbalance. So the program today, even though
primary emphasis is upon the nutritional requirements of needy peo-
ple, still benefitsagricultural producers.

We should remember that marlmtini of farm products follows
seasonal cycles. When quality is at its harvesttime peak, prices are
often at a_harvesttime low. By concentrating purchases at this time,
we get both the best prices and the best quality.

This procurement process lends substantial support to farm mar-
kets. For example, in the past fiscal vear. a period when hog prices were
at disastrously low levels, we purchased almost $100 million worth of
pork products. About $55 million of that went for canned pork in
natural juices and luncheon meat for family distribution and about
$42 million was spent for frozen ground pork for the School Lunch

Program. This purchase program has helped both needy families and
hog producers.

SerciFtcations INSURE Quartty

The quality of the foods we distribute is the very best. A1l USD.A
rocurement is done according -to specifications which insare that
ISDA commodities are of truly high quality.

Distribution of foods to the needy is the responsibility of the Food
and Nutrition Service and cooperating States and connties. The Food
Distribution Program operates in 1.051 counties in 34 States. In Netv
Hampshire, Delaware, and Oklahoma, food distribution is the State's
sole family feeding program. Although the majority of participating
counties tend to be rural, a number of major cities including Boston,
Atlanta, Dallas, and San Diego have food distribution programs.

The program is operated at the State level hy a department of State
government, usnally the State’s welfare or ‘social services depart-
ment. USD.\ delivers food to State warehouses where it is then dis-
tributed by the State to local distribution points,

$8&-354—71—pt. SB——13
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Needy families are certified for the food distribution program by
welfare offices, and then pick up their food at the local distribntion

int. At the local level the quality of the program will vary depend-
ing on the local administration.

Some comparisons of the Food Distribution Program with our other
family food program, food stamps, may be of interest to the committee.

Caxyor Marair Foop Stamr PrograM

The Food Distribution Program cannot match the range of choice
or the accessibility of distribution Ii?]ints that the food stamp partici-
pant finds in local grocery stores, The Food Stamp Program allows
participants to use the most sophisticated, efficient food marketin
and distribution system the world haz ever known., By doing so 1t
hielps to keep the poor in the mainstream of our cultnre and society.

In the Food Distribution Program we cannot even consider provid-
ing the variety of food items and package sizes: we cannot distribute
fresh fruits, vegetables, eggs, meat, bread or milk. Meats. fruits, and
vegetables are canned. There is flour instead of bread, and dry egg
mix and dry milk instead of the fresh products.

Another difference between the two programs is that one, food
stamps, is income-related, while the other, food distribution, is not.
"Thus the amount of benefits available under the Food Stamp Program
is scaled to a participant’s income. A participant in the Food Distri-
bution Program receives the same amount of commodities regardless
of his income level. For this reason some families in the upper eligi-
bility ranges prefer food distribution over food stamps while those in
the lower elegibility ranges usually prefer food stamps.

During the past 2 years we have moved to d the Food Stam
Program substantially, but at the same time we have made substantia
improvements in the Food Distribution Program.

Nurtrrriovat, Quanity IMprrovED -

We have improved the nutritional value of the foods distributed,
so that the package now contains 100 percent or more of the recom-
mended daily allowances of protein, iron, calcium, vitamins A and C,
thiamin, and riboflavin, and 80 percent of needed calories. .

Enrichment and fortification are used wherever possibley to gain
the maximum value from donated foods. Evaporated milk, instant
nonfat dry milk, and all-purpose flour are fortified with nutrients
and vitamins.

Cornmeal, corn grits, farina and rice are enriched with thiamin,
riboflavin, and niacin, and fortified with increased amounts of iron.

USDA Taxgrs T™ir Leap

The Department is taking the lead in additional fortification of
foods. We are now requiring that all juices be fortified with vitamin C
ual to the level in orange juice. Instant potatoes are also fortified

with vitamins A and C.
We hope industry will follow the Department’s lead here, as they
did in the fortification of nonfat dry milk with vitamins A and D, so
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that all Americans teccive the high fortification levels we supply in
our donated fools.

I should like to show you two charts which graphically demon-
strate recent developments.

The first shows the numbers of people we have heen reaching with
family-feeding programs, over the past 10 years. You will note that
there has been a sharp increase. recently, in the total. The big gain
has come in participation in the Food Stamp Program, as that program
has been improved and expanded.

But significantly, at the same time that many counties have switched
from food distribution to food stamps, the number of participants in
food distribution has declined only slightly. Currently, we are serv-
ing 3.5 million needy people in this program.

%‘hc amounts of food distributed have increased, at the same time
that the number of participants has decreased slightly. The second
chart shows what has happened as a result. The bar chart at the left
shows the significant increases in recent years in the amount of food
distribnted per person per month. Since 1968, the amount has nearly
doubled. And, as the chart on the right shows, the retail value of that
food has more than doubled. - :

We have bronght with us this morning a selection of the foods'that
are currently distributed through the Food Distribution Program. We
have also brought samples of some of thi¢ outreack and educational ma-
terials which we provide to help participants in the program to know
how to use these foods, to get the most good out of them.

A DECADE OF FOOD ASSISTANCE

[MILUIONS OF PEOPLE,
16
- 145
14 Y1 700D DISTRIBUTION N
L BN 00D STAMPS 2 B
10 % g -
— 15 e
8 &5 2 66 61 g3 4
| ; i
6 1 B 55 i
At é/ /ﬁ;/ _ g‘;ﬂ n
Ny P -' A
-9 o L -
- 4 4 o] o : 4 Bl
(OSe tm2 1 194 165 195 1% rtes 1969 1570 1M
'FISCAL YEAR
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICIXTURE ’ FODD AXD KUTRITIOR SERYICE

n
Q

N




2378

FOOD DISTRIBUTED. PER PERSON
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And. in cooperation with personnel of your committee staff, we
have prepared a ssmpling of these foods for you. We would be glad
to have you and the members of your committee examine these dis-
plays, at your convenience, and co sample any of the foods that you
care to.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my prepared testimony.

Thank you.

Senator Percy. Thank you very much indeed, Mr. Secretary.

First, I tried to Fgo back and find where a congressional study had
been made of the Food Distribution Program from the standpoint of
the recipients, not from the standpoint of the farmer and producer,
and I couldn’t find any record of it. Do you know if any congressional
study has been made or hearings have been held before on the subject
from the vantage point of what it was doing for the recipients?

Mr. Lxxe. There has not been one recently. Perhaps I could ask
Mr. Davis, who is an oldtimer with the Department.

Mr. Davis. No, no congressional review that I know of.

No Stopy Mane Froy Recipient’s VIEWPOINT

Mr. Lyxe. If Mr. Davis and Mr. Grange don’t know, I would say
none has ever been held.

Senator Percy. I wanted to go back and find precedents to build
on and I couldn’t find any record that the Congress had ever studied
this program from the standpoint of the people it was supposed to
serve. It looked at it in the early 1960's from the standpoint of what
it was doing for the farmer and the producer. For that reason, I
felt that it was a valuable thing for us to take up—we are not looking
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for things to do in the Congress. We are all overloaded. But it scemed
as thongh this would be an important thing.

From the standpoint of the Department, have you felt that it was
a good idea to focus attention on this program? Even though it does
put a burden of work on the staff to a degree, have you felt it was a
worthwhile thing to do?

Mr. Lx~Ne. Yes, we welcome the interest of the committee, and 1
gmﬁht say that we have within the Department, even though, as I
Idicated in my testimony. we have been focusing a major part of our
attention on food stamps, we have been spending a good deal of time
m an effort to improve this program in ah respects. It has not been a
neglected program during the past 2 years.

Senator Prency. I was greatly impressed with the statement made a
number of times during the course of the hearings of this committee
that, though there are deficiencies in our feeding programs, we are
closing the hunger gap in America. As was very aptly pointed out by
the President, no administration has ever done as much to try to feed
hungry Americans as this administration. T think great progress has
heen made. The high priority placed on it is all the more reason why
we shonld nse the vears ahead to totally close that gap, to fill up every
single deficiency that we can. And I am very encournged by the fact
that, as you have mentioned, the nutritional quality of the products
heing served has been improved and, as you :ﬁso said, this can serve
as an example for private indnstry to bring up the nutritional content
of shelf foods.

On page 3 of your statement you mention luncheon meat. What are
the contents of lincheon meat 2 What is it made from ¢

Mr. Ty~ Mr, Chairman. if I might. I would like to refer this to
Mr. Grange. the Deputy Administrator of the Consumer and Market-
ing Service.

Senator Perey. We will be having luncheon meat. T am not. familiav
with what it contains.

Mr. Ly~xa. Why don’t yon join us up here. George. for a moment.
and if you could speak to that question.

CoNTENTS . . . 70 PERCENT MARKETARLE PORK

Mr. Graxgr. Yes. Mr. Chairman. this is comparable to the Iuncheon
meats that ave sold in retail stores. One of the best known trade nanies
is Spam. The current specification we are using requires 70 pereent
pork. a maximun of 20 percent can be the so-called variety meats such
as heart or tongue,

Senator Percy. What part of the pork isthat?

Mr. Graxge. These are picnic hams, butts. and the portions of pork
that is commonly used in Inncheon meat. And then we specify a certain
amannt of grind. You have to watch carefully the way it is comminuted
and mixed. We have a maximum and minimum salt content. It is a very
tight specification, Mr. Chairman. o

We have a rigid sampling program that we follow in examining
the prodnct at the time that it is {)ropnrod. We have specifications—
for example. the pork that is nsed cannot be held more than 4 days.
Tt has to be held at a maximum of 40 degrees temperature prior to prep-

ty oy
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aration into the finished product. There are many details, sir, as to
the complete specification itsel .

Senaior Prrey. 1 wonld like to get into the problems of storage
later, but I appreciate that. Can we start now on the concept of what
the Department onght to do in its relationship with the State and local
communities? What is the attitude of the Departinent toward creation .
of a greater Federal presence in terms of the control of the food dis-
tribution program at the State and local level {

Mr. Lyye. We believe that it is desirable to have the State and
local governments, play a major role in solving the problem of needy
?eoplc. We,asin the Food Stamp Program, provide 100 percent of the

yusic resource, and we, of course, must have an interest In seeing that
that nisom'ce is distributed efficiently and fairiy and administered
properly.

So we have tearng moving out at an ever-increasing rate to act as
both surveillance agencies doing audits and this sort of thing, but
also as service people to try to improve the way in which this job
is being done.

We do not think that we would advocate a greater Federal presence .;
in the sense of having the Federal Government take over. Asa matter §:
of fact, we go the other direction insome instances. ;

Not long ago I made a trip to the Navajo Reservation where, to-
gether with tﬁ: Bureau of Indian Affairs, we worked out a procedure
where the Navajos themselves are now handling the distribution of
commodities on the reservation rather than the very complicated and
cumbersome tri-State distribution. The Navajo Reservation comes out
of three different States and came out of two different regions of the f
Food and Nutrition Service. We simplified that, and now with the co- j
operation of everyone concerned I think we have given more responsi- :
bility to local government in that instance.

Senator Percy. What hap;‘))ens, Mi. Secretary, when we find obvious
abuses in the prozram, the blatant and crass use of the distribntion
program to further a political candidate’s position with his electorate,
as was revealed in Oklahoma? I don’t know whether the person in-
volved in that case was a Democrat or Republican. I have never in-
quired. But it certainly upset Senator Bellmon and Senator Cook—
Senator Bellmon brought it to our attention. Is there any regulation
that provides that when we find that a local politician is exploitm%;,]his i
progran for his own personal benefit, he can be reprimanded? What :
action can the Department take? ;;

Mr. Lyye. Yes, Mr. Chairman, it certainly violates our regulation, .
and we are as appalled as the members of the committee were at this
sort of thing. The sanctions that can be taken are a bit difficult in that
one obvious way is to remove the program, but the beneficiaries of the
program tend to be the ones that suffer rather than the politician in
v this instance. It is our thought that perhaps swhere there is flagrant
' ' misuse of thissort, the bringing of public attention can be asimportant
7 a sanction as any. We are delighted to see the committee do that, and
' : we make efforts to do that ourselves, We think that can bring corree-
tive procedures in many instances, and has done so in many instances
in the past.

Senator Percy. Well, certainly if there is anything we can do, we
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are constantly trying to sharpen up onr ethical practices in Congress—
if there is anything we can do to strengthen your hand in that regard,
we would certainly be intercsted in doing it.

Antsit Nor WinisprREAD

Mr. Lyya. I don’t think, Mr. Chairman, that this sort of thing is
widespread. As a matter of fact, I am sure that it is not. I think this
was an isolated instance.

Senator Percy. 1 am rather sensitive to it because from firsthand
observation it has been common practice in Cook County. The Better
Governnient Association, a bipartisan group, hag constantly pointed
out the flagrant threat by po[;ce captains to welfare recipients that
their welfare will not be paid to them unless their vote is cast in a
certain way. In fact they want to be sure they cast it for them. I have
seen it so many times, there is no question about it, because with the
voter assistancc program we can have anyone come in and say “I need
voter assistance, i can't read or write,” and when 45 people on the roll
have voter assistance, you know there 1s something wrong.

But I had not Leen aware of the use of this type of ])o%itical leve
in this program before, and if it is not widespread I am delighted it is
not. If it is a problem, we would be happy to try to take any correc-
tive action.

Also, I wonder if there is any kind of problem of theft in the pro-
gram. I know that we have had reported to us instances where local
administrators are finding it quite easy to have the products in their
own kitchens at home. I am not sure their testing three meals a day
7 days a week is legitimate. Has there been any widespread abuse of
this? We have not been able in our hearings to find any ourselves. Qur
spot checking has been so skimpy really that I would rather have your
own statement as to whether there isabuse of the program.

Mr. Lyve. During the time that I have been at the Department 1
have only had one instance bronght to my attention. and it turned out
to be a manufacturer who had an overrun on a product and then went
illic'lld and marketed it without making the proper changes in the

abeling.

Perhaps Mr, Castillo or Mr. Grange would know of some, but I do
not know of any flagrant cases that have come to the Department’s
attention recentiv.

Mr. Gravee. Not in your time, Mr. Lyng. There have been in the
past in my memory—I don’t want to sonnd that old—but 10 or 15
yems ago, Mr. Chairman, a few instances where throngh very poor
inventory control and very poor warchousing practices there were cer-.
tain sections where it appeared that a produect actually was heing di-
verted. but beecause of tﬁe combinntion of the poor warchousing prac-
tice and poor inventory control it was almnst impossible to really ascer-
tain what had happened to the product. We knew it did not get to the
needy family recipients. It may have been lost or wasted or some of it
diverted. T know of nothing recently. sir.

Nor Tarrr . . . ApmivistRaTive PRoBLEMS

Mr. Lyya. Mr. Chairman, T have been reminded that we did have
some administrative problems that I think You were familiar with in
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East St. Louis where there were some problems—administrative prob.
lems mther than ontright theft, I think—but there conld have llm-n,
and probably were. <ome abuses of the program. This has now been
correcied.

Senator Perey. The next thing I would like vour judgmient on is
where this program goes in the ight of the very high priority placed
by the ’resident and bipartizanly by many Members of Congress on
the family assistance plan. What happens to the Food Distribution Pro-
aram nuder family assistance if and when it is enacted ? And T hope it
will be enacted soon.

Mr. Ly~a. This has not been clearly defined. Mr. Chairman. The
Family Assistance Program. does under the provicions of H.R. 1. eash
in food stamps to recipients of family assistance. Tt does not, however.
eliminate fornl stamps for nonrecipient participants in the Family
Assistance Program. nor does it speak to commadities in any way. So
that if the family ascistance legislation were signed into law as it
passed the Honse. we wonld have a situation where people wonld be
eligible for commedity distribution and for family assistance. That
would be presuming that there wonld be no change in the laws or regu-
lations relating to commadity distribution.

Senator Prrev. T was under the impression. Mr. Secictary. that
USD.A was in the process of promulgating national standards of eligi-
hility for the Food Distribution Program. but a letter T received from
the Department on September 14 stated that there were “no plans for
promulgation.” What is the enrrent attitudes toward this situation in
the Department? Does the TSD.\ want national standards of eligi-
hility? Do you think they are desirable ¢

Wox'r Prorosr Fruiominiry STANDARDR

Mr. Lyvye. Yes: we believe that there would be some advantages to
national eligibility standards. We have not. however, completed onr
work on them. nor do we expect to pro them in the immediate fu-
ture. There wonld be a rather substantial increased cost. Mr. Chairman.
in the program. becanse obvionsly in setting national standards vou do
not lower standards in the higher States to the low. you would have the
effect of increasing the eligibility in lower States.

We have just recently done this in food stamps. These regulations
are not in effect. vet. in any State. but very soon will be, and contain
the national eligibility standards. And I think that it will hecome more
and more apparent that there is a need for national eligibility stand-
ards for the commodity distribution program as well. But we do not
have any immediate proposal to make in this regard.

Senator Percy. If it is your intention to ultimately do so. though,
and feel it desirable. do you have any kind of rough schedule for ac-
complishing this?

Mr. Ly~e. No: T don’t. Mr. Chairman.

Senator Percy. I3 there anything the Congress can do from a legis-
lative standpoint to helpin thisarea?

Coxeressiovan, Actoy Migur Cavse MovEMENT

Mr. Ly~e. Well. of course. action by the Congress might cause us
to move more uickly than we might otherwise do. I don’t mean to im-
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ply. however. that there is a lack of interest, 1 snspect that our prob-
lem has been_more one of the combination of tremendons demands
upon the stafl in terms of food stamp cxpansion and the revision in
regulations combined with the child nutrition program changes, com-
plicated no doubt by some budgetary considerations, o

Senator PErey. How important do yon feel it is, though, in light of
the whole programi? You have already taken many steps to improve
the quality of the program, so if this is an important matter—even
if it involves additional people. nndget for special studies, consulting
services that need to be commissioned, whatever it may be considering
the size of the program—if having the best possible standards is a
highly desirable thing. why not get to work on them now?

Mr. Ly~a. It is hard (o argue against that. There are also to be con-
sidered the additional State costs involved and considerable opposi-
tion in some quarters to aniform eligibility, We have quite a range in
eligibility standards currently in the United States on commadity
distribution, a rather wide range. I personally believe it wonld be de-
sirable that that at least be leveled ont. 1 am not absolutely certain
that we wonld have to have precisely the sane eligibility standards
everywhere. But we found that our studies in food stamps justified,
we thought, national uniform eligibility standards, and I am inclinec
to believe that I would favor the same for commodity distribution.

Senator Percy. The States have really had no difliculty in aceept-
ing standards for the Food Stamp Program, have they ! They have
accepted the concept and principle.

Mr. Ly~e. I expeet, Mr. Chairman. we may have some difficulties
down the road, but so far; yes, it has been pretty well accepterl.

Senator Prrcy. So if that general principle was established in food

stamps, I would think that something could be worked out on the
Commodity Distribution Program. )
. Mr. Lyye. We have some things in food stamps that we don’t have
in commodities such as the new work requirement, and T am sure that
we are going to begin to see, partienlarly in those States where they
have both kinds of programs, yvon know, that connties side by side,
one with the Food Stamp Program, one with the Commodity Distribu-
tion Program. one county with a work requirement for food stamps
and very much more liberal eligibility standard compared to the nest
county—TI think the lack of similar standards for commaodities with
food stamips is going to begin to bring some problems to us.

Senator Percy. I was very interested in testimony we heard from
Mrs. Esther Peterson. She gave the lion’s chare of the credit for Giant
Food’s nutritional labeling program to USDA. Yet USDA has not
introdnced nntritional labeling on the commodities that it distributes
in the Food Distribution Program. Is there a program underway for
marking on the labels the nutritional value of the contents of the
package?

Mr. Liy~a. No. we have——

Senator Percy. Since we are now encouraging it in commercial—

No Praxs To Laper. NvTriENT CONTENT

Mr. Liyxe. We have no plans for that. and I would suspect that Mrs.
Peterson would say that, perhaps, this is not the time really to do that.
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What the Giant Foods is doing—and we have coonmtcd with them
and with others that are trying to do this—is conducting what must
be considered an experimental program to see in what way we can
make people aware of their daily nutritional needs and then take ac-
tion accordingly.

We don't have the same kind of free choice for people in our com-
modity programs, and among the people that we serve our approaches

3., corms of nutrition education are a good deal less sophisticated than
the kinds of nutritional education that Mrs. Peterson 18 condnctini;
through the experimental program of Giant Foods. We will watch
with great interest what happens with this and with other similar
programs.

It certainly would be desirable if people in the United States, rich
and pror alike, had a etter understanding of what they shounld eat
cach day, and we are hopeful that somewhere along the line we ean
Jearn this. We think that what Mrs. Peterson and Giant ¥ onds are
doing may be—I am sure it will teach us an awful lot, and it mzy be
the answer.

Senator Peacy. She actually caid that she was excited by the idea
that GSDA might do this, and she concurred with Margaret Mead's
testimony a year or two ago before this committee that Aunerica knous
less today abont nutritional edncation than it did 25 vears ago. It is
probably the only area of human knowledge where we have regressed,
because during World War I1 we were o conscious of nutritional edu-
cation : nutritional education was o much a part of everything we
wore doing at the time in the midst of the food shortages of the war.

1 wonld hope that the Departinent could again be the leader in this
field in its own food distribution program and help the edncational
process at the low income level where the necessity to make that dollar
really pay off is so high.

Mr. Lyxe. Mr. Chairman, 1 wouldn’t want to be misunderstood on
this. Your question related to whether or not we were planning to
label our foods on a nutritional basis. We are spending a great dea of
offort werking with the recipients and among the poor through onr
nutrition aides in an effort to bring them mutritiona education.

Some of the things that you see here in terms of material that we
are putting out go into that, with a great deal of additional detail,
more than we have ever done before. We now have 8,000 of these aides
working with poor peoi)le throughout the country, and they have had
a real impact in a simple way improving not only nutrition, but home
economics.

But ior us to label our foods wonld present some real problems,
simply as to how do yon label them, what are the essential nutrients,
and what form of label should be used, percentages, grams, what
are the things that people are going to pay attention to. And these,
r. Chairman, sre not known today by anyone. A great deal of work
is being done in private industry. by universities, by the Government,
in terms of trying to determine acceptance of nutritional labeling.

Jewel Tea in Chicago, as yon know, has a program that is some-
what different than the Giant proaram. And T think as we watch these
we may come up with a form of nutrition labeling for products.
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USDA Micir Misweap Puosric

USDA would be delighted to take some leadership in this, but if
we were to put the stamp of approval today on a type of nutritional
labeling it would seem to me we might be misleading the public. So we
are not proposing in the immediate future to doso.

Senator Percy. Well, I wouldn’t want you to be misleading. On the
other hand, I wouldn’t want to denigrate your home economists, your
nutritional experts, and your creativity, ingenuity, and ability to
solve a problem and again provide real leadership. You know, we
are pushing and have been pushing the food industry of this country
to provide this kind of information and make more intelligible the
contents of a food package, and it would be a strong point in our
{favor. Many of us believe that this is desirable and necessary, that
proper labeling is an important part of a nutritional educational pro-
gram, and would be a strong por:t in owr favor, if we could point to
the leadership that the USDA has shown in this field.

I specifically request that the Department make every effort to do
this, and if it can’t be done, then sit down with a simple soul lile me
and explain why it is inpossible. But I an not yet ready to come to
the conclusion that it can’t be done and that it is not a highly desir-
able thing to do. v

Mr. Lyne. It is the kind of thing that we have been working with
such groups as the National Academy of Sciences on, and we will be
delighted, Mr. Chairman, to present—it is not impossille, but at this
point is extremely difficult to really know what you should consider
asessential nutrients and what you should label.

For example, in the Giant program they have no labeling as to fat
content. Most. people think that there should be some indication of
that, or at least many people think that. Proteins are considered eszen-
tial by many as carbohydrates; and then you get into all the questicn
of cssential amino acids and protein. Is protein enough or should you
give the kind of protein? It is misleading to suggest that all protein
is the same.

You wili recall the controversy between the chairman of the board
of General Foods Corp. and the president of Campbell Soup before
this committee not long ago. And these are some of the problems that
we have in terms of determining what should be put on the label
nutritionally.

Senator Percy. Well, we agree on the objective.

Mr. Lyna. We do. _

Senator Percy. The goal is a worthy one.

Mr. Lyne. And we are going to come to it without any doubt, Mr.
‘Chairman.

Senator Percy. Well, we will take it as a part of our responsibility
to try to work with you in this area. If we have any suggestions, we
will certainly pass them on. Mrs. Peterson felt that it might be well
for us to contact and bring up to date nutrition experts and home

.economists around the country as to the nature of what we are trying
‘to accomplish. We might solicit suggestions from some of them as to
‘what they can contribute.
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Quuistions FuLn DIsCLOSURE or LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

I have previously requested information, and pnt the question now,
as to whether there is full disclosure of the liquidated damages col-
lected by the Department in the past 2 years, as provided in article 3
of C. & M.S. purchase document No. 1. Specifically T had in mind
the action taken with regard to the 1-month delay in contract fulfill-
ment by a corn syrup company in Mississippi this summer. The tele-
oram of notification of delay 1s in the Department’s file. The contract
number is 20187-YT18.

Mr. Lync. I don’t have any information on that at hand, but we
would be happy to submit it for the record,* Mr. Chairman.

In a general way perhaps Mr. Grange, who again represents the
Consumer and Marketing Service, could speak genevally on liquidated
damages.

Senator Percy. I wonld be happy to hear from you.

Mr. Granae. I wonld be glad to. Like Mr. Lyng, I do not haye de-
tails on that particular shipment. We have, as you know, Mr. Chair-
man, from citing that provision of our standard contract, a uniform
provision insofar as Hquidated damages in the case of late shipment,
and we follow this very closely. We d o not waive the liquidated dl:lmuge
requirement unless we are satisfied that it was through no fault of the
vendor that he was not able to ship in the time specified.

A common example, Mr, Chairman, wonld be a labor stoppage in a
can manufacturing plant that the vendor is using to receive his supply
of packaging material.

Mr. Chairman, we purchased in early July several hundred thousand
cases of pineapple for the School Lunch Program. They were supposed
to start delivery on Angnst 2. None of this has been delivered yet, M.
Chairman, becanse of the west coast strike. We, of course, are waiving
liquidated damages in this case because the vendors would not be at
fault.

We have tried to follow this closely, sir. We try to in this case,
make snre that we are following uniform and consistent practices
among the different contracting officers that report to me, so it is the
same whether it is corn syrnp that is being pnrchased or canned
peaches or canned Inncheon mieat, and we hope that we are following
anniform andsatisfactory practice.

That generally, Mr. Chairman, is the sitnation insofar as ligni-
dated damages provision for late shipment.

Senator Prrcy. Mr. Grange, I would appreciete a letter on this for
the record. In the meantime can you give ns some rough idea as to
what the total amount of liquidated damages has been in the last 2
vears? Do yon have aball park figure?

Mr. Granae. We can provide the information,t Mr., Chairman,
With our thonsands of deliveries, to give it to you for a 2-year period
will be a major acconnting undertaking, sir. We are for our own
information—and wonld be very happy to provide it for yon—are
finding ont exactly what the late shipments were for the entire De-

partment of Agrienlture, not only the Consmer Marketing Service,

*See Appendix 2, p. 2431,
+See Appendix 2, . 2431,
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but the A gricultural Stabilization Service, too, for July and August
of this year. Perhaps, sir, it would suflice i we showed you the total
that we purchased dnring that period and the amount and number of
late s]hipments and the amount of liquidated damages that were as-
sessed.

Wiy IsN*t INFORMATION AVATLABLE?

Senator Perey. The reason T keep coming back to this is that I just
wasn’t toc satisfied with vour letter of September 14 responding to
my lefter to Secretary Iardin on September 1. The answor given to
mo in response to questions 6 and 7, the total dollar value for liquidated
damages collected for late delivery is not available. Well, why isn’t
it available? It can’t be found, it can’t be asserted, you don’t want
to give it. to Congress, or what? It just isn’t a satisfactory answer to
me. T asked for the information. I would like to know why I can’t
get it.

Mr. Ly~ne. Mr. Chaivman, if it is a major accounting job we will
do a sampling and give you a projection and give you some detail, on
the problem of giving you the precise information, but we will sub-
mit that.

Mr. Graxar. We can give you the information, Mr. Chairman. We
should not have said that it was not available. We can give you infor-
mation on any speeific contract that has come to your attention, sir.
The only problem on getting it for a 2-year period is with the thou-
sands and thousands of shipments that we have. All this work is
handled in Minneapolis, Minn,, centralized for both Agricultural
Stabilization Conservation Service, and C. & M.S., and it just is a
very large scale job, this is all. But it can be done, siry, and we can
give you any specific period or sampling.

Senator Prrey. T rather thought ¢his wouldn’t bo an onerous (ask
becauge T thonght you would probably have to have it for budgetary
consideration anyway. I thought you have to take that into account
in your budget.

Mr. Ly~Na. We will give youa complete report * on this.

Senator Prroy. Fine. Thank you very much.

As of September 15, or the closest date to that that you have avail-
able, Mr. Secretary, how many counties were actually participating in
the I'ood Distribution Program?

M Ly~a. 1,051,

Senatoi Prrey. 1,051, Now do we count n county as fully participat-
ing if it is only covering, say, 10 or 20 percent of the eligible
people in that county ? We had testimony Yesterday that, at least, one
county, Nassau County, had an 80-percent participation, which is
relatively high. There is no gradation—can we have that figure
broken down? .

Mr. Ly~a. Not in giving a simple figure as to numbers of counties
that have programs. There are among these counties some that have
very strong programs and some that don’t make the program avail-
able even everywhere geographically within the county. I don’t know
what precise way we can provide percentage information on each

*A machine-run printout showing the amount of Inte shipments and Hquidated damages
for July anad Allfllst 1071 has been given directly to Senntor erey's oflice, chart on D 2431
a

is in partinl explanation.
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county, but we can give some graphic examples of the extremes on
either end of the scale,

Senator Prrey. I think a qualitative analysis of the degree of par-
ticipation would ke very helpful.

Mr. Ly~a. We will be happy to submit® that.

Senator Puncy. Tosee what patterns there actually are.

I wonder if you could put on the record for us now the chain of
command within the U.S. Department of Agriculture with regard to
the operation of the Food Distribution Program, the sclection of the
commodities to be purchased, the purchasing procedure, and the dis-
iribution of commoditics to various State warehouses.

Lyxg: RespoxsisLE For Ioop DiSTRIBUTION

Mr. Ly~e. Yes. We will submit this for the recordt in chart form
so that it can be more graphic. But in essence the Secretary of Agri-
culture, of course, is involved, but delegates main responsibility for
this program to me. Two of the key agencies involved report through
me to the Sceretary, that is the Consumer and Marketing Service, who
make the decisions as to purchase and time of purchase and com-
modity of purcliase, and actually do the advertising for bids, and do
the caleulation of low bids. And then T also have responsibility for the
Food and Nutrition Service which handles distribution through Mr.
Hekman as administrator.

There is another agency that is involved, and that is the Agriculture
Stabilization and Conservation Service, who because of their func-
tional ability in terms of the acquisition of Government commoditics
under the support program and other programs of this nature have
computer capability, at their procurement center in Minneapolis, and
transportation expertise on the movement of the commodities, so that
the actual physical delivery of the commoditics, the physical procure-
ment and delivering is handled by them. They do it more as a serviee
agency for the Consumer and Marketing Service and the Food and
Nutrition Serviee, than as a decisionmaker.

But we will be happy to submit a much more detailed chart.

Senator Prrcy. And if we could have with that submission the
nctm}l 1names of the people identified with each function it would be
helpful.

)I'Ir. Liy~a. Yes; we would be happy to do so.

Senator Prrey. All right, fine.

Could you describe the use of Section 32 and Section 416 funds in
purchasing commodities? Are Section 32 funds being used for Section
416 purchases!? ‘

Mr. Ty~a. Substantially the commodities purchased by Section 416
arc those that are price supported under the price-support laws, The
law states that Section 32, which is the set-aside of 30 percent of import
dutics, shall be used principally for non-price-supported commodities.
As you know, Section 32 funds have increased very rapidly over the
ggst couple of decades, and a larger and larger amount of them are

ing used as cash for grants to school lunch programs particularly.

*See Appendix 2, p. 2432,

4+See Appendix 2, p. 2438,
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But of those Section 32 funds which are used for commodity purchases
the vast majority are used for commodities which are not eligzible for
416. There have been a relatively small amount used to purchase some
dairy products which are also cligible for purchase under 416, T think
that is the major commodity that we have used Section 32 for that
would be eligible for 416. Is that correct?

Mr. Graxce. Yes.

Wiar Is USDA’s RESPONSIBILITY FoR INSPECITON ?

Senator Prrey. Mr. Secretary, we have had some testimony on
spoiled food and food that has deteriorated, or for one veason or an-
other has been ruined or must be destroyed. T would like to better
understand what continuing responsibility USDA has for inspecting
food once 1t has reached a local community and is warchoused. Is there
a continuing responsibility # Who initiates inspection of a loeal ware-
house, and does USDA ever call upon the resources of FDA to help
in inspecting? And then you might also comment, if there is a supply
of food that has been ruined or destroyed by cold, heat, whatever 1t

1nay be, is it veplaced by USIDA?

Mr. Liv~e. Yes, the food, of course, is all made available—to answer
the second question first, the food is available to people in the quanti-
ties that they need it, so that if some of it becomes damaged or un-
usable, of course it is replacec.

The question of inspection of the food storage and distribution
facilities, this is an audit function of the FFood and Nutrition Service
on a regular basis, and on a less regular basis of the office of the In-
spector General of the Department of Agriculture. This is done to
sce that the food is stored under minimum conditions, and so forth.
When it is found that it is not, why, the State agency and the local
agency, whoever is responsible, is 1mmediately notified.

I think, Mr. Chairman, that I would like to take this opportunity to
say that some of the testimony that was presented to tEe committee
earlier was absoluely untrue. There is a letter that was dated Septem-
ber 16 from the Social Welfare Department of the county of Ventura
which I would hope that the cornmittee would include in the record,

ointing out thet the attention focused on Ventura County by Mr.

obert Choate in explaining several spoiled and corroded cans of or-
ange juice and evaporated milk was totally in error. The letter points
out that Mr. Choate stated that these items were for distribution to
the poor and had been obtained in Ventura County. They point out
that My, Choate had come in and asked if they had spoiled or damaged
commoities and was shown some that were scheduled for destruction,
and at his request was given some of the cans along with an explana-
tion that these spoiled and damaged commodities were to be destroyed.

No Reason To Distrisure SrorLep Codroprries

The implication—more than an implication—that the Department
of Agriculture, or for that matter the government of the county of
Ventura, Calif,, is interested in or through just plain carclessness is
putting out spoiled or damaged commodities is sonething that I think
does a real disservice to literally thousands of dedicated people work-

a-".
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ing at the State and connty level as well as the Federal level, but largely
at the State and county level nationwide. There is no reason for the
counties to accept or to distribute spoiled or damaged commoditics of
any kind. And wethink that it just doesn’t happen.

Senator Prrcy. Well. we certainly will insert this letter in the
record.®

Senator Prroy. We have asked other people who have testified
whether or not they have had spoiled food or poor food, poor quality
food, and as you know, received quite a hit of testimony that no food

has been spoiled, that it is of very good quality. We have had other

testimony that said bones were found in the boned chicken and feath-
ors also. And T prestume, as we well know from the newspapers, that
commercial companies have recently had a great problem with con-
taminated food that has had to be withdrawn from commercial shelves,
This is part of a continuing vigiliant program that has been main-
tained to insure high quality.

ConsTaNT ViciLance Is Neeessany

We just want to be awfully certain in view of the fact that the com-
mittee has received a letter from a Ventura recipient who maintained
that she had been given spoiled evaporated milk, We felt it very im-
portant as put of the whole hearing to make certain that we did
focus attention on this particular problem, and if it was a problem that
we didn’t overlook it in the least, and that we emphasized that con-
stant vigilance is necessary. Certainly we will support and baek up
whatever you need from the standpoint of appropriations for ade-
quate inspection and surveillance.

We feel that, so long as Congress has authorized this program, we
want to take every reasonable step we can to insure that high quality
is built into the product, to inspect it at the plant and to see that it
gets to the recipient in that same way. And this is why I have been
s0 deeply concerned about the administration of the program.

1 am pleased that you have made great progress in providing addi-
tional funds for administration because thie local communities,
strapped as they have been, simply haven't had the resources to truck
the food, to \)m\'ide the personnel, or to warehouse it properly. It cloes
no good to deliver it in refrigerated cars and to inspect it every step
of the way and then to dump it in a storage warehouse like some of
them T have seen in Kast St. Louis. They were 105°, and the meat
products sat there with a big label snying do not store over 70°.

~ So we want to provide every bit of help we ean in carrying out what

I know is really the intention of the Department—maintaining con-
tinuing responsibility as far as you can—without in any way snying
local communities don’t have a responsibility. They certainly have.
But we have an oversight responsibility that I thini is important.

We will certainly put that 1 the record, and this is one of the rea-
sons we wanted the Department to have the chance to hear all the
testimony, to have the last say and complete the record as much as
possible.

*See Appendix 2, . 2434,
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Can you comment specifically on that aspect of my question pertain-
ing to inspection? I did.ask whether the U.S. Department of Agricul-
ture uses the resources of FDA to help in inspectiig.

FDA ¥as UNDEFINED RESPONSIBILITY

Mr. Ly~ng. FDA has general responsibilities for the inspection of
food manufacturing and handling facilities and food that moves in
commerce of the United States, so that they would be involved in the
firms and companies from which we buy our foods.

In addition to that, the Department insists that USDA inspectors
be present and inspect the preduct over and above this IFDA responsi-
bility.

At the distribution level we do not, to my knowledge, work with
I'DA at all in terms of checking this. This type of inspection normally
is not. the kind of thing that FDA does because this is not the move-
ment of foods in commerce, any more than they would inspect the
local supermarkets or local grocery warchouses. In most instances
these are the responsibility, of local public health authorities, and we
know that in many, many cominunities in the United States the local
public health people, the county public health people do take a respon-
sibility for the inspection of the food distribution warehouses.

The extent of our inspection of tliose in some detail can be given to
you better by the Administrator of the Food and Nutrition Service,
so I would like to turn to Mr. Hekinan, if I might, just for that.

Mr. Hex»yaN. Mr. Chairman, I have here a writeup of our field re-
view process that outlines these field reviews that we have. It will take
me a few minutes to read it, and I would be happy to submit it for the
record. -

Scenator Percy. Do you want to summarize ?

Myr. Huiaran. Well, I will just read the first two paragraphs, Mr.
Chairman. That may help.

- 'fhe Food and Nutrition Service food distribution field revlew process con-
sists or two phases, and one of these is an administrative analysis of distribut-
ing agencles. - .

The second is the Administrator—I have review of the recipient
agencies. : :

The Food and-Nutrition Service issues an annual memorandum of instruction
to the F&NS regional offices on the audit analysis of distributing agencies. The

frequency of the analysis . . . of the analysis of each such distributing agency
is left to the discretion of the regional administrator.

NuaBer or Qurrers Posk PronLes

Then it goes on to outline in some detail the two types of analyses,
pointing out that, of course. when we have the number of outlets we
have we do have a problem. But this is part of our review process, and
I would be happy to submit this in detail for the record.

Senator Percy. We will insert it in the record.*

Could you tell us whether the Food and Nutrition Service has
cnough money for inspecticn, though? Do you need more funds for
this particular function ?

*See Appendix 2, p. 2434,

58-854—71—pt, SB

5 | 641




2392

. Mr. Lyne. I think that I would have to say that, based upon the
reports that I have had, this is not a major problem, Mr. Chairman.
We have a relatively few number of people involved, considering the
number of outlets. But even so, I don’t believe that we have the kind
of program deficiencies here that would cause me to recommend any
substantial increase in level.

Senator Prrcy. Are you at all concerned about what does happen
when the food products getto the State and local communities ¢

Mr. Ly~xa. Oh, yes. I am not so much concerned about the quality
of the food in termns of storage. I am much more concerned about the
outreach efforts, the certification efforts, the numbers of outlets, the
accessibility of outlets, the difliculties involved in just maintaining an
adequate inventory.

One of the major problems in the program is in‘really making the
féods available. In some places they just administer it so badly that
they have a very limited number of foods available, even though if
they would order them on time we would be able to deliver them.

But these are the kinds of things that we are spending a lot of effort
working on, trying to get the States to take some responsibility in turn
in working with the counties.

Senator PErcy. In the case of the bloated orange juice cans, it was
reported that a USDA field inspector: in California said that a par-
ticular process in the label drying procedure of orange juice cans was
not fulfilled. Does the Department provide for that particular process
and specification for the packaging of orangejuice? .

Nor [Faraniar Wrira ProprLes

Mr. Ly~Ne. I ain not familiar with that. Do you know, George?

Mr. Graxer. I didn’t hear all the question. One word I missed,
Mr. Chairman. ' L '

Senator Percy. Well, the report was that o USDA field inspector
in California said that a particular process in the label drying proce-
dure of orange juice cans was not fulfilled. I wondered whether the
Department provides for that particular process in its specification
for the packaging of orange juice. '

Mr. Graxage. I don’t know, Mr. Chairman. I would have to check.

Senator Peroy. I will give you the question in full from the record
then and also the full statement that was niade yesterday ; so that you
can provide for the record a considered answer on it. ‘ .

Mr. Ly~a. We will submit an answer.*

Senator Prrcy. How many commodity counties in the Nation have
applied to move to food stamps? '

Mr. Ly~a, [t was something over 150, I helieve, the last I heard.

Senator Percy. Is it the intention of the Department to shift them
over on their request?

Mr. Lyxe. We have substantially had a freeze on that since a year
ago last July, Mr. Chairman, based upon budgetary limitations. We
did approve some 30, 31 counties, I believe in May or June of this year.
This was done because we had had a number of counties that had pre-
viously been approved who had subsequently decided that they would

*Qee Appendix &, p, 2805,
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prefer to stay with commodities; 192 are the currently operated tood
distribution counties that have applied and have cither been desig-
nated or—we have 19 counties that we have designated for food stamps
that have not yet implemented the program, and 173 that have re-
quested them, that the designation is pending. We have no immediate
plans to designate any of those counties. :

Senator Prroy. What is the long-range outlook ? .

Mrv. Txxa. One of the reasons,jn addition to the budgetary consid-
erations that we were not designating new food stamp counties was
the progress of the family assistance Te«is]ation, and the administra-
tion felt that with family assistance cashing out food stamps, we should
not implement the program within food stamp counties.

Senator Prrey. In view of the fact we are all on notice that that pro-
gramis being delayed and is being moved out of the budget, wouldn’t
it be logical to reassess the Department’s policy in this respect, now?
T can understand why you would be reluctant to move if something else
was going to take its place, but now that you know it is not in the
immediate futurve, wouldn’t it be wise to take another look at this?

Mr. Lyxa. Yes, we have doue so, and we have been meeting and
discussing this with people in the administration, other affected agen-
cies, the Department of Fealth, Education, and Welfare, the Oflice
of Management and Budget. But we have no immediate pfnns' to des-
ignate any of these counties. B b

Senator Prrey. Do you know what the budgetary vequirement would
be to shift those that have requested the transfer ?

M. Livrna. Roughly about $100 million annually. .

Senator Prrey. On page 5 of your testimony, Mr. Secretary, you
mentioned that lower eligibility ranges usually prefer food stamps. Is
this not because a zero Income family gets $106 a month from foor
stamps but only a'fraction of that through direct distribution ?

Mr. Liy~ya. Yes. , : ' '

Senator Percy. Wouldn’t that be the reason that they are——

i

Foop Sraars Buy PrerFErRrED Foons:

Mr. Lyxc. That is one of the reasons, and, of course, the zero income
family pays very little for food stamps, will pay nothing as the new
regulations are implemented. ‘ '

The other reason is that they have much more flexibility. They don’t
have to go to n sll)eciﬁc outlet. They have a great deal move freedem
of choice as to what they can buy, and I think—in the value of the
food commodity I don’t think there is that great a difference. It is
not that they get a vast quantity more of food, but it is more attrac-
tive, more fully processed, it is the kind of food that most of us prefer
tohave,a variation in diet, a number of reasons.

Senator Prroy. Existing law directs the Secretary to establish “spe-
cial standards of eligibility and allotment schedules for Puerto Rico.”
THas this been done ¢ : - _

Mr. Ly~xa. On food stamps? No, we have not done that as yet.

Senator Percy. I wonder why, in view of the fact that the law is
so specific in this regard. : :

266
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i - No Foop Stamps ror Porrro Rico

Mr. Liyxe. We have announced the sehedule for Alaslka and Hawail.
We have not for Puerto Rico. The reason we have not for Puerto
Rico, we do not have a food stamp program in Puerto Rico and we
don’t contemplate putting a food stamp program into Puerto Rico.

Senator Prrey. We had testimony yesterday from a representative
from Puerto Rico. Why is Puerto Rico not treated like a State in
termsof the administrative expense money now?

Al Lse. Well, actually the program operates a great deal differ-
ently. I think I would let Mr. Castillo speak-to that, who has spent
some time studying the Food Distribution Program in Puerto Rico.

Mr. CasrinLo. When the funds were generated first, I thinlk in 1967,
to assist in the startup of food programs, Puerto Rico at that time had
an ongoing food program, so in light of the rationale for which the
funds were originally created they were not eligible. Later on as move
and more expansion was achieved in the food programs it was deter-
mined to give Puerto Rico direct assistance, although the concept was
different, as I say, from that that generated the fundsin the first place.

In fiscal 1971 they received an allocation of just over $600,000, and
for fiscal 1972, conscious of the fact that their problems are increas-
ing, that amount of money was just about doubled, to $1.2 million
for this current year. That money has already been made available
to the Commonwealth. o

Senator Prroy. As direct Federal operation in county programs
has decreased, why have budget requests for State administrative
moneys not increased? .. :

Mr. Lxvye. I am afraid I can’t answer that question. Can you, M.
ITekman ? . . : . ‘

Mr. Hexaax, The operating funds, as you know, Mr. Chairman,
slightly over $19—1I couldn’t answer. K

Mr. Liy~e. I just have to give that some thought.

Senator Prrey. Perhaps you could take a look at that.

Mr. Lyna. Yes; I would be happy to submit & written answer.*

Senator Prrcy. It would have seemed as one moved in that diree-
tion that the other budget would have to increase.

Mr. Lyxc. Where we have done this in recent years we have put
into operating funds on a more or less temporary basis, and we felt
that, this is a local responsibility, and in many instances the problem
of local government is that their budget is fixed, it was fixed in the
yrevious year, et cetera: And so we give them an opportunity to get
It into their budget, et cetera. When they do we don't feel simply be-
-ause they have done so that we should give that much more money to
the program.

er. HrxaanN. Another consideration might be, Mr. Chairman, that
a few vears ago there was no money, and as our charts show, the num-
ber of counties participating has not increased. In other words, there
has been more activity within the county, but the counties haven't in-
crensed, so that actually the amount per county has gone up very,
very substantially in-the last few years, Now it {asn’t changed from
last year to this year, but we will be happy to submit those details.

*See Appendix 2, p. 2435.
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Strournp Be No Conrrnict FEEDING PForLe

Senator Prrey. In another area, I am concerned nbout a conflict
between the Congress and executive branch. Yet, I have to go back
to what the President said his objective is, to close the hunger gap.
Having talked to him about it, I know how very strongly he feels
about the very high priority this should have. We debated on the
floor last year at some considernble length about the wisdom of pro-
viding for dual Food Stamp and Food Distribution Programs in areas
where local government actually would like to have it. There have
been areas where local governments have decided they want a dual
program, it is for their needs, they need both programs.

What has been the position of the Department in this? If it is as I
suspect, refusal to do this, I ask the question why—especinlly in light
of the existing law, the debate on it,and the national goal.

Mr. Ly~a. Well, we have had only one request for this since the
new regulations went into effect, Mr. Chairman, and this was in the
State of Washiugton, and it has become a matter of considerable con-
troversy. We in the Department have analyzed the problem and the
cost. The original request from the State of Washington ignored the
provisions of the law which prohibit the Departinent from giving
commoditics and food stamps to the snme families.

I think we have to go back and look at the situation in the State
of Washington, which is unique. We have had a very successful food
stamp program there, with Ifederal bonus expenditures going up in
a 3-year period from $6 million, to $18 million, to $42 million through
the last fiscal year, with a very serious economic recession particularly
in the King County ares, the Seattle area, due to the defense industry,
the nerospace cutbacks, and with a different kind of a poor family
there, a family that is not poor by economic standards in most parts
of the United States, but a family that is poor because they have been
cut off from a rather substantial income and are plagued with life in-
surance payments, house payments, and other things which make it
very difficult for them to work out any kind of a budget, and there-
fore have a real adjustment problem. _

Drcision—No Duarn Proarams

So there sprung up in Seattle particularly an organization called
Neighbors in Need that distributed food to whoover came without any
questions asked about eligibility criteria or anything else, What they
renlly asked us to do was to permit this type of an organization to dis-
tribute in that way surplus Government commodities. We pointed
out that this could not be done. This became quitean issue.

Following that, the Governor requested that we follow the law, the
new regulation, and permit a simultaneous distribution of commod-
ities at the same time as food stamps and he would see to it that the
same families did not get each.

As we analyzed that, the cost of that program in that State would
be about $5 million of State funds. The Governor admitted that he
didn’t have the funds, but he told me on the phone that he would
somehow get involved, he would have the National Guard or someone
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(flistxiibute the commodities, and that Iater on they would get the
unds.

Our studies then showed that if they would use the $5 million that
we estimated it would cost in assisting the needy families with the
purchases of food stamps that it would actually go further than the
commodities. We believe that the inefliciencies of having a dual system
would make it extremely costly to the State as well as to the Federal
G(ivernment and wouldy present some awesome administrative difli-
culties.

The Food Stamp Program, we believe, is doing its intended job there
in terms of providing food resource for people with little or no income,
It is not solving the problem of the income gap for a family who has
great, responsibilities and a shortage of income to meet them. But we
don’t believe that the food programsof the Department of Agriculture
are designed to meet that income gap.

BeLieves No Nrrp IExists

We will be perfectly willing to permit simultaneous distribution of
these commodities and food stamps wherever there seems to be to us a
practical, sensible reason for so ({oing. But we don’t think that situa-
tion exists or a good case has been made for it in the one application
that we have had so far.

Senator Prrcy. Well, could I respectfully disagree with you? I am
not o Senator from the State of Washington, but I have been awfully
active in trying to cut down defense spending where I think it is not
needed, to cut out unnecessavy airplanes like the SST that I think we
need like we need a hole in the head. And the will of the Congress has
worked. We have cut down billions of dollars of contracts that have
affected that area of the country. And we have all pledged to do every-
thing we conceivably can to hel}) that aren rehabilitate itself and ad-
just, to provide work for pecople on things this Nation really needs
rather than things that we don’t need. And when the Governor tells me
that he has got administrative money, when the State has made the
request, when the unemployment in that State is higher than, I think,
any area in the country, it 1s just unbelievable the hardship that people
are undergoing out there now. And when the law that authorizes the
program, and the President says we are going to take care of our
}):cople and close the hunger gap, I just can’t, for the life of me, see.
Uspecially, once we have one State out of 50, why we cannot try some-
thing out under conditions of great and, demonstrated need. I can’t
see why the Department can’t find a way to go ahead and fulfill the
provisions of the law, fuifill the request of the Governor; and, I hope,
carry out the mandate ot the President of the United States when he
says we are not only going to close the hunger gap, but we are going to
do something specifically for people in these areas where we have, by
national policy, taken away their livelihood and their employment
and put them in a condition of poverty without adequate food.

Every ResroNsmLE Orricial CerTIFIES NELRD

Every responsible official ont there certifies there is a great need for
both programs at this time in Washington. They would like to try it
out. e
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Now it is not my State. Senator Magnuson or Senator Jackson
maybe should argue the case, or perhaps better yet, the Governor him-
self. But having a high regard for that Governor, I feel that I must
at least press his case forward. And again I ask the Department to
take o good look at this and sce whether or not this isn’t an excellent
time to try this out and see whether it won’t work and fill a need that
is perfectly obvious to all of us.

Mr, Lyxa, Mr, Chairman, I have met with Senator Magnuson, with
the Washington delegation, T have met with the county executive, and
the country administrator of King County. I have discussed this at
length with the Governor. T have sent our regional office people into
Seattle to investigate this. Following this, at the request of the King
Comnty people, I sent my Deputy Assistant Sceretary to Seattle o
couple of weeks ago along with people from our western regional
oflice. After all of this study we are satisfied that the Food Stamp Pro-
gram is fully capable of solving the hunger problems, the nced for
food of people in the Seattle avea.*

If they have no income they get $106 worth of food for very little.
As they implement the new regulation it will be slightly more. As
their income goes up, of course, the cost of food is more. But we have
seen this tremendous gain in Federal expenditures there, and we are
absolutely convinced that the moving of commoditics into this kind of
a situation would lead to almost catastrophic administrative night-
mares for both Federal and State people. And we feel we have a strong
obligation to do this.

This provision in the law was permissive on the part of the Congress.
It was based upon the jndgment of the Sccretary of Agriculture. It
says the Seeretary may do this. And we interpret this as a congres-
sional mandate that the Scerctary will use his best administrative

judgment in determining where this type of program should be used.
And this is the basis for our decision. It is not onc that was made

casually or heartlessly.
USDA Tinns No Evipexce or NEEp

If we felt for one moment that the Food Stamp Program was not
meeting the needs in this area we would be happy to try to malke some
adjustment. But we have been unable to discover this with a series of
visits in both directions. No hard evidence has been presented to us
in this direction.

Senator Percy. I would like to indicate that Senator Magnuson has
asked that this program be implemented. Both he and the Governor
are willing to comply with any regulation set up by USDA. I cer-
tainly appreciate the fact that you are studying it, have sent people
out there, and I would be most interested in having copies of what-
ever reports they bring back to sece what kind of problems are in-
volved and what we can do to solve those problems. Again if I can
offer any assistance, I am certainly happy to do so.

Forty percent of the people eligible for food stamps are not now in
the program. And we would like to try to find out why. These are the

* See “Senttle : Unemployment, the New Poor, and Hunger,” committee print, U.S. Senate
Sclect Committee on Nutrition and Human Needs, November 1071, Reprint with Supple-

nment, December 1971,
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people we want to reach out to and try to cover if we can. I simply
can’t believe, despite all our tight budgets and budget problems, that
this item which ought to have such high priority. can’t be covered.
If we do not. fulfill the nutritional needs of people, particularly young
children, we are just creating welfare problems for the future that
might be permanent ones, A\ small, modest investiment, sometimes a 9
matter of just a few hundred dollars worth of food for a child, can
stave off deterioration of his body and his mind, which as we all know,
can cause a potentially productive person to be an unproductive per-
son. We must try to lin(l every way we possibly can to close that gap.

T would like o ask about. migrant problems. What is the Depart-
ment of Agriculture doing in the new group in their Food Distribu-
tion Division to deal with the problems of access to food for migrants?

Mr. Ly~a. I think I will let Mr. Hekman answer that. Are you
familiar with that?

Very Iarrorrant To Ger Proarad 1o MIGRANTS

,, Mr. Hexarax. Yes; T would be happy to try to answer it, and, per-
: haps, Mr. Castillo would give further details. We do have this group
that is dealing with the migrants. We feel one of the things that is
very important is that, first of all, we get a family feeding program
in all of the areas from which the migrants come, and a great deal
has been done in that. To the best of my knowledge, Mr. Chairman,
; every one of those counties now has a family feeding program.

There is no denying the fact that once the migrants go on stream
that the logistics of it does present a problem. But in both this pro-
{ gram and the Food Stamp Program a great deal of progress has been
made, particularly in this program. The accessibility of food to the
people—we have made it as simple as we possibly can in terms of set-
ting up offices where they are certified. Some feeding has been done
in group situations such as schools on the migrant stremm. And per-
haps at that point Mr, Castillo can add a few items.

Mvr. Castinto, One thing that we ave doing, Mr, Chairman, is to take
steps to try to identify the actual paths that are taken by migrant
workers, with a view to coming to a determination as to whether we
can actually forecast where they might be at any particular time dur-
ing the season, the agricultural season, and, if the existing program is
not properly serving these people because of their peculiarly mobile
i status, to perhaps look into the possibility—this may be some distance
: down the rond—but some possibility of establishing a feeding program
that would, to a degree, match their mobility, We don’t see 1t as any :
kind of a complete concept right now, but that is the idea—if the exist- :
ing program does not adequately serve their needs, to perhaps gener- ;
ate a program that would. where there is some built-in mobility.

Mr. Hexaras, T might add, Mr. Chairman, that of the two programs
the food stamp program is the easier one to use with the migrant pop-
ulation, and owr regulations specify new steps there where the eligi-
bility would hold from county to county. And recently, for example, !
in the State of Ohio all of the county people were called into Columbus
and this program was outlined to them, and a great deal was one in
that State, as an example, in the region of the migrants, This is prin-
cipally with stamps. :
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Senator Prrcy. In the aren of ethnic groups, we have had testimony,
that there are complaints that not enough consideration is given to
ethnic tastes. T feel it is important to provide food as close to the kind
of food that people are used to having. Can some consideration be
aiven, for instance, to placing a high priority on providing rice to
Puerto Rico—sinee it is such an important element in their food diet.?
This would mean that it wouldn't run out of rice on oceasion, even if
other parts of the country did run out—as long as yon had potatoes,
which is their staple theve. Can very high priorvity be given to provid-
ing certain foods to those areas which have an ethnie preference for
them?

Perirars Our Favrnr

Mr. Ly~a. Yes; we would cevtainly agree with that. And as a matter
of fact, for anyone to run out of rice today indicates that somebody
was at fanlt. Perhaps it was ours. But we will certainly take a look at
that. beeause there 1s an ample supply of rice. It is one of our surplus
problems in this country, and there is no reason we should run out.

We have made quite a few changes in terms of ethnically aceeptable
foods. We are now trying to provide pinto bheans to the Southwest
where the Mexican American population prefer these. We have revised
the kinds and texture of flonr that we provide to the Navajos to got the
kind that they like. And we are doing as much of this as we possibly
can consistent with the fact that we are trying to present. and offer
pretty much staple foods. We can only go so far, of conrse, in this, but
we think we have made some progress.

Senator Prrey. In looking at the packaaes over here, T have not been
able to find contractors’ names on them. Wouldn’t it be a good idea to
have the identity of the mannfacturer or processor on the package so
that («) he wonld fee! that his trade name. his prestige, is behind the
can ov package: and () the recipients would know who the manu-
facturer was. Tt might be some trade name that thev have confidence in.
or the name of a company that has a lot of goodswill built into it. And
that might just carry forward right on to the package, serving a dual
purnose. Ts there any reason the contractor’s name is not on the can?

My, Ly~e. Yes; we prohibit it, and perhaps My, Grange could ex-
plain our reasons for that.

Mr. Graxai. Yes. Mr, Chairman, we have consideted exactly the
same question that yon raise, and we have come to the opposite con-
clusion, that it would do more haria than good. And we have checked
this with people on the outside, so that this was not just our own
thinking in this regard.

USDA Proun or Tunrmr Quarity

We think that we have a very high quality product. We think we
have a brand ot an emblem that identifies our food. In the grocery
store today a very high percentage of the food does not show the
meker, it shows the distributor's name, which is what is required b
}aw, cither one or the other. So we are in fuct in compliance witK
regular commercial practices.

) iS‘cmlltor? Purey. You are building your own trademark and you stand
chind it
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Mr. GraxgE. Yes, siry and we are the ones that are responsible for
it. The statement made here earlier before the committee that we are
not following the IFood and Drug regulations insofar as labeling is
concerned is crroncous, Mr. Chairman, We are, in fact, followng
them, and we are going beyond the minimum requirements of the
regulation.

Another factor that influenced us, Mr, Chairman, is that we do buy
from nationully known companies that have an established trade-
mark. I won’t try to name them here. You probably can think of some
yourself. I will be glad to if you want to question me. But we believe
there would be a certain reluctance on ther part of dissipating their
established brands in which they are investing millions of dollars, of
course, by also showing it in conjunction with the GSDA identifica-
tion.

Prerer To Stanp BriuNp LABEL

So since we don't see anything much to be gained, if there is a
complaint they should come to the Department of Agriculture, we
are the ones to straighten it out. There is nothing to be gninc(i by
trying to go dircectly back to the packer. We have concluded, therefore
Mr. Chairmau, that it would be preferable not to have the name o
the packer on the product.

Mr. Ly~a. I thmk, too, that we can see that we don’t want to dis-
tribute typical brand products in the same package that you see in the
grocery store becanse that would severely complicate the enforcement
of fraud and theft or improper uses. This is one of the reasons for
having a special label much the way the military purchases theirs.

Senator Percy. Do you deal with companies that deal only in USDA
contracts?

Mr. Liy~a. We have one or two that I know of. We have been doing
some exclusive business with some minority firms particularly, and
we won’t do that on a permanent basis. But we do feel some justifica-
tion for doing it on a short-term basis in an effort to, perhaps, help
them develop a market. We think they will have to find regular com-
mercial mnrf(’cts tosurvive.

Substantially, though, I think that our products come from people
who are geared up to produce them for the commercial market, and
wo get some of their production.

Senator Percy. I have noticed that you deal in a great range of
juices. I have scen apple sauce. Do you have other fruits available?

Mpr. Liyng. Fruits?

Senator Percy. Fruit.

Mr. L¥na. Oh, yes, Mr. Chairman. We have apricots, peaches,
prunes. .

Senator Peroy. How readily available are they? If we sent a wire
to every State today and asked them for an inventory of their fruits,
how much would we have available now? I am wondering about the
person who lives in a county that has a Commodity Food Program,
and, month after month after month, he gets all the prune juice he
wants maybe, but he can’t have a peach, can’t have a pear. By accident
of birth and the fact that he is out of work or destitute, that’s it.

Mr. Ly~na. We do not distribute fresh fruits or vegetables.
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. Senator Prrcy. No; not fresh fruit. I am talking about canned
ruit,
Disyavep To LEARN or SIorTacE

Mur. Ly~Na. There should be an ample supply of canned fruits every-
where, and for a number of reasons. But one reason is th-t they are
in tremendous oversupply in this country today, and I would be dis-
mayed to learn that there ave nreas that would have persistent short-
nges of these. It would certainly be n logistical difliculty, not a source.
I don’t believe we have any supply problem on that, do we, George?

Mr. Granar. Well, our snpp}y plan this past year has been_to pro-
vide n juice monthly, a fruit juice, cither orange juice or apple juice,
ns well as tomato juice, We have not consistently supplied « fruit in
addition to the juice. We have consistently supplied a canned vege-
table, snap beans, tomatoes, what have you, and a juice. But the sup-
ply of the camned fruit, Mr. Chairman, has been dependent upon an
actual heavy surplussituation existing.

My, Liv~xe. Well, in addition to canned fruits we provide lots of
dried fruits. We anticipate ouv fiseal 1972 needs as 44.8 million pounds
of dried fruits. So we would have a regular distribution of dried
fruits, Mr. Grange?

Mr. GRANGE. Yes.

My, Ly~a. A regular distribution of juice and dried fruits and ap-
parently a sporadic distribution of canned foods, Mr. Chairman- -and
I stand corrected, in terms of that the latter are constantly available.

Co~cEry Is ror Surrrier, Nor CoNsuMER

Senator Percy. In view of the fact that we are not dealing in fresh
meats, we are not dealing in fresh fruits, we are not dealing in fresh
vegetables, yet, we are trying to figure out a way to help impoverished
people fill their stomachs, don’t we come to a point where we have to
say that the supplier, the guy producing an excess, is not our prime
worry; that our prime concern is hungry people. To me it looks like
the taxpayers' money is being used solely for that producer in this
program. Whatever he wants to produce or has produced, we take oft
his hands. I would hope that by now we would have reached the point
where the conscience of the country is such that we would be willing
to stock and buy and pay for the kinds of food necessary to sustain
low-income fumily if this is the only resource available to them. And
1 simply can’t account for the fact that we don’t have fruits available,
at least canned fruits that have some substance behind them.

If I were a commodity recipient, I would get \)retty tired of feed-
ing my children nothing but juice and saying “well, that is going to be
your substitute,” or dried fruit rather than at least canned fruit if
they can’t have fresh fruits and vegetables.

Now I realize you are limited by law. But what I am saying is that
becnuse you have a moral responsibility in fulfilling your function,
isn't there some way we can work together to sce that the laws are
changed to authorize you in fact to direct you, to provide a more
balanced diet for famiiies than the diets we happen to have available
through surplus commoditics ns they come in and out of supply?
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Svrrnus Foons Ark Srcoxpary CoNSIDERATION

Mr, Lyya, Mr. Chairman, I had hoped that I had made that clear
in my testimony that that is not the case. The primavy priority in our
food programs today is precisely what you are asking for, the provi-
sion of a balanced nutritional diet. Only secondarily do we consider
the foods that are available in surplus, But it is not an illogical thing
to combine both of those becanse as long as we are buying nutritions
foods we might as well be buying those that are as much in surplus as
possible,

The reason that I was confused about the fruit is because I come,
as you perhaps know, from the central valley of California, which is
the heart of the fruit supply of the United States, and virtually every-
thing that we produce there is in surplus. So I know the producers
there, and I am an agriculturalist, and I know the producers wounld be
delighted to have us buy it.

The reason we are not buying as much fruit this year as I thought
we were going to, that we have available, was because our submission
to the Congress for Section 32 funds which are used for this was re-
duced in the amount of $45 million by the Congress.

AssunaiNg Avarnasinrry, NurrrrioNan ReQUireMenTs Provipep

Now the diet that we provide, as I testified, offers 100 percent of
the nutritional requirements, assuming that it is available in cach
county location; and while we may not always have canned fruits
available, we always have dried fruits and fruit juices as well as
canned vegetables as a part of this program, and we will buy those
regardless of whether they arein surplusor they are not.

Senator Prrey. I would like to ask Mv. Choate, in view of the fact
that you served as a consultant to this committee for a number of
years and your name has been brought into the testimony this morn-
ing, perhaps you could come up to the table—and, Mr, Secretary, you
could stay right there—you could take Mr. Hekman’s place—if there
are any comments, Mr. Choate, you would like to' make at this time,
fine. We are going to try to close this off just as quickly as we can for
Iunch. But I would also like to yicld to my distinguished colleagues
who have joined us, Senator Cock and Senator Schweiker, and then
ask the staff if they have any last questions.

Mr, Choate, you go right ahead and make whatever statement yon
like. The Sccretary can reply to you,and then we can go right on with
whatever questions Senator Cook and Senator Schweiker hve,

Mr. Cuoatr. I will give a summary of the observations I have heard
from the last three witnesses today on the analysis of the dirvect dis-
tribution program.

I woulc{ start out by mentioning that in my testimony on the open-
ing day I was quite complimentary to Ventura County, Calif. They
did seem to be running one ¢ the better programs, and they were
helpful enough to provide this committee with the smnple cans that
had corroded, bulged, or burst.

I do want to put into the record, if I may, the fact that they, too,
wrote to me asking for verification of what I found iu Ventura, that
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II have replied to them and to the other addressees of their original
etter.
Unsatisracrory Answer From USDA

I understand from this morning’s comments that a preliminarvy
TTSDA examination excuses the corroded cans of orange juice on a
bad labeling procedure. I do not consider this to be a satisfactory an-
swer. I don’t think cans bulge beeause of faulty labeling proceciures.
And it was bulged and burst cans that I showed before this committee
last week.

I also believe that it is present food management practice to hold
in storage foods that have been produced so that if there is to be any
leakage or bulging it may occur in the producer’s warehouse and not
out in the marketplace. We do believe at this point that the orange
juice we noticed in four different warchouses of the Southwest had
not been held in storage, and we do have reason to believe that there
was no contract command of this by USDA even though it might be
considered good ordering practices.

The testimony that has been given since the opening day has veri-
fied that there are many examples of unsatisfactory service. Yet, in
listening to Secretary Liyng’s responses this morning we do not hear
any explanation of how the ordering mechanism can be better orga-
nized so that those guesstimates which are made 90 days in advance
before the food is to be delivered to the local warehouse can enable the
local warehouse manager, who is going to be the man accused by the
poor when the food runs ont—so that that local warchouse manager
can be notified the food is indeed en route and that it is coming from
a certain location, guaranteed to be delivered by a certain time.

TestiMony Has Nor ProvipEp ANSWERS

We have heard no responses to the suspicion that we all now hold
that the delinquent provisions, the liquidated damages provisions of
USDA ordering for the direct distribution program are enforced.

We also have not heard any real statement that USDA seeks an
information feedback system whereby the poor themselves can alert
TUSDA when something is going wrong.

We did hear testimony this morning that individual food com-
panies might not want to be notified when something was going wrong
with the food supply, but USDA would. I think it imperative that
the poor themselves be given some information mechanism by which
they can alert USDA when food is running out or food is in suspect
condition. )

We have not heard many snggestions as to how the can size or bag
size can be improved.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL ANSWERS VARY

The letter sent to this committee by the Department of Agricul-
ture admitted that it is much more likely that the poor receive 54
percent of calorie needs, a fraction of their nutrient needs, and uot
100 percent, as I thought Secvetary Lyng just stated. USDA’s
printed data indicates that the caloric needs are around 80 percent,
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but the Department’s letter to this committee indicates it is closer to
54 percent, Why is it that this food rich country canuot give a 100-
percent calorie needs and a 170-percent nutrient needs to the poor,
particularly to zero income poor who cannot supplement the com-
modity package any other place? )

We have not heard any response asto how USDA would more highly
stress the bonus nmounts of food which counties can give out to the
poor if they are first approved by USDA.

We have not heard much about the standards of excellence that are
supposed to be in every State level and implemented at every county
level,

We have not heard any response to the curious lien laws that in at
least 20 States of the Union mean that a family seeking family assist-
ance or welfave assistance must in effect give a deed to their house, to
their personal belongings, so that the county can recover for any capi-
tal assets and so that a deceased welfare recipient cannot puss on their
property to their descendents.

I do note that Secretary Lyng has just mentioned that they ave
ordering, I believe, in the next year 44-million pounds of dried food.
That is 1 pound of dried food per recipient per month.

I do wonder about USDA's not putting on their own cans of meat
and poultry the same information that they demand of the retail meat
and poultry producers.

I do wonder why USDA does not make mention of its use of mass
media in advertising the existence and worth of this program.

Since USDA upparently has spent a good deal of time in Washing-
ton and Seattle lately I wonder why we hear no recognition of the
fact that Washington State, Oregon, and California have probably
the best interstate compact for providing welfare benefits to those
who travel in intersiate pursuit of employment, with the originating
State cventually to be billed for the welfare cost, but the State in
which the party finds itself paying immediate welfare check.

We also did not hear any response that would indicate USDA is
interested in purchasing foods from Puerto Rico for Pucrto Rico. If
we are interested in improving the economy of that Commonwealth
it would scem imperative that we lower their shipping cost and in-
crease their employment opportunities by buying for this program
direct from Puerto Rico.

ProeranM, SEEMINGLY, Usep as Porirics

In short, Mr., Chairman, I think we ave on the right track in these
hearings, We seem to have a difference of philosophy. Despite state-
ments made this morning that the prime focus of this program is the
nutrient needs of the poor, one suspects that this administration, which
I helped get. into this 2 years ago, is almost marking time until the
family assistance program is decided by this Congress. And it seems
incredible, if it is true, that we are letting hungry people remain
hungry in the United States, perhaps, to help buildup the pressure to
get the Family Assistance Program passed in Congress,

It would seem to me that if we do have foods in surplus supply, and
we do have apricots in surplus supply and peaches in central Cali-
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fornia, that we can get them out to the poor to whom USDA litera-
ture says it feeds.

I would hope that the review of this committee in looking at this
program over the last 4 hearing days would stimulate USDA to an-
nounce a series of reforms in the direct distribution program akin to
¢he reforms they have announced in the School Lunch Program, and T
would hope the committee remains on top of this issue.

Tt is rather shocking that no onc in this room can remember when
the direct distribution program was last reviewed by this Congress.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Prrcy. Thank you.

Senator Cook?

Senator Coox. Thank you, Mr, Chairman. I apologize for not being
here all morning. I have been in another committee, and you know
what that s’tuation is.

Mr. Secretary, 2 years ago we felt that it was essential to find a new
means by which food stamps would be distributed. We went into the
situation food stamps had to go to the bank every night and get locked
up, et cetera. It scemed this was a rather ridiculous method when we
had the entire U.S. post office system and they didn’t take all their
stamps out of the post office every night and take them over to the
bank and come back and get them out of the safe the next morning.

It is my understanding you started the food stamp distribution from
the post office facilities in King County, Wash, is that true?

Mr. Lyxa I understand that we have worked out an arrangement
with the Postal Service to do an experimental distribution there; yes.

Senator Coox. Is there any agreement between USDA and the post
oﬂicge on periodic reports to USDA relative to how this plan is working
out

Mr. Ly~a. Well, I am not sure that we formalized that. But we have
been working very closely with them in an effort to get them to do this
nationwide, so we will be watching it very closely, Senator.

Senator Coox. I am wondering if any reports are made to the USDA
as to the oFemtion of this facility whether a condensation of those
reports could be made to this committce so we could be fully aware as
to how this distribution is working out, because it seems to me with all
the post offices throughout the United States and the fact that so many
of them are rurally oriented, that it would provide a tremendous means
by which people could receive food stamps without having to travel
tremendous distances, as you well know, to county seats. And in the
castern part of my State to get to the county seat you have to go out
of the county and back into the county, which becomes & tremendous
burden. And I am wondering whether you could keep the committee
aware of how this is working out and whether you intend to move in
the dircction of utilizing this procedure all over the country?

Mr. Ly~a. Yes, we will be happy to supply that information*® to
the committee.

Senator Coox. Now 1 apologize for not being here again, and I
understand this question has been asked, but I would like to pursue it
just a little further. Why isn't the name of the canner put on your
respective products?

*See Appendix 2, p. 2430,
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USDA Is e ResronsisLe AGeNcy

Mr. Ly~a. Well, we did explain that. Mr. Grange explained that we
rohibit it, first of all, and the reason we prolubit it is because we
clieve that the USDA is the responsible agency for this product. We

believe that we can't allow our commodity foods to be used for adver-
tising brand names of people, and we want them to be a product that
has a mique characteristic.

Senator Coox. But why don’t you do this for your own benefit 2 For
instance, I assume that you know the name of the canner by the num-
bers on the top, I guess.

Mr. Ly~a. Yes, we know the packer.

Scnator Coox. But let me ask you, if there are a million cans out
and somebody in one part of the country puts up chopped meat in the
same can somebody in the other—the first thing that comes oft is the
top with the number on it, it gets thrown away. So how do you know?
Suppose you have a series of real bad products put out and you have—
let’s sny you have botulism. s soon as the top of that can goes in the
garbage can, gets picked up, it is gone; there 1s no other identification
on that can as to who made it. And if there is, I can’t see it.

Mr. Lyxa. This, Mr. Chairman and Senator Coolk, follows Food and
Drug Administration requirements and is quite similar, almost identi-
cal to most of the food products that you find in the grocery stores
today.

Scnator Coox. But I might suggest to you that the can that I have
at home has somebody’s name on it because it is their product.

Mr. Ly~a. It has the name of the store if it is called a private label.
It doesn’t have the name of the manufacturer, it has the name of the
distributor; or it can have the name of a manufacturer and a distribu-
tor, but——

How Is Caxxzer Herp RresroNsiBLE?

Scnator Coox. The point I am trying to make, Mr. Scerctary, is that
there is somebody that I can hold responsible. If you have 10 in the
country that are canning this same thing and the top is gone who do
you hold responsible; all 102

Mr. Ly~xa. We have, of course, records of the distribution of these
products, and it is a very similar—we have been involved, of course,
i recall on a number of commereially canned products, and it is a
similar thing.

Mr. Grange, could you claborate on that ?

Mr. Granae. Welly you have covered it, Mr. Lyng, but just let me
add this. We know, of course, where we ship each lot in the United
States. If there is a question we know, as we know whose evaporated
milk it was that Mr. Choate saw and whose orange juice it was, et
cetera,ct cetera.

In connection with the identification of the packing, Senator Cook
if you will check the grocery store you will find three-quarters of alf
the cans in there say “packed for so and so” or “distributed by.” It
doces not say who did the packing. Now there will be on the lid of tlie
can in all probability an identification code such as is on that lid that
would tell yon who the packer was, so once that lid is cut off and
thrown away there would be no further identification as to the actual
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packer. And as Mr. Lyng has said, we are the distributor in the same
manner as A. & P. or Del Monte or Green Giant or Safeway or any-
body clse that uses their private brands arve the distributor. And 1if
there is any identification to be made with the product we really be-
lieve, and have thought this through, we thinlk, as carefully and
thoroughly as we can, discussed it both 1nside and outside the Depart-
ment—that we are much better oft having this identified as a USDA
product rather than having dozens and dozens of names on the can,
something that would mean something to many people, to others, of
course, would be meaningless to the average consumer.

Senator Coox. How mauy canners do you have in the country, for
instance, that would can thischopped meat ?

My, Ly~a. Probably in the area of 15 or 20.

Senator Coox. So 1f I took this top off here you wouldn’t have the
slightest idea who canned that particular can; would you? No way in
the world for you to know? :

Mr. Ly~e. I don’t think on that individual can we would.

Senator Coox. Well, that’s where I think really and truly you are
not looking after your own responsibility. I am talking about for you
to be able to lay the blame to a particular cannery if they really put
out a consistently bad product.

Now, you know, we live in o mobile society, and I hate to tell you,
but the rural poor move quite frequently, too. They could pick up these
cans and put them in their car when they move. They can go across
the State line, and all of a sudden you can be blaming really the wrong
canner of a bad product pwrely and simply because of a mobile so-
cicty. You have no way of knowing.

Mr. Ly~xc. If T understand correctly, Senator Cook, what you are
suggesting 1s not that we just put the name of the supplier, but also
some sort of coded information of where that particular lot was
packed.

Once Tor Cur OrFF . . . WHAT?

Senator Coox. I must suggest to you that you would be a lot better
off putting the code on the side of the can than the top. I know this
poses quite & problem, but at least somebody could open up the wrong
end and you could be in the same shape. But it seems to me for you
yowself, for the Department itself not to be able to know once that
top is oft that can other than by region of the United States that really
I think you have taken a serious assumption of liability, and not only
that, but assuming to blame a particular canner for putting out a bad
product when, in fact, that canner may not be the one responsible at all.

Mr. Granek. We have had no problem of identification as far as I
know, Senator. I can’t recall an instance where we have had a problem
inidentifying a packer of an individual lot.

If we did, Senator Cook—if we should have such a problem, then
personnally I would concur with you that we should have the identifi-
cation also on the body in this case of the can-as well as on the lid.

Senator Ceox. I think, frankly, it is for your own protection.

Mr. Grange. But we have not, sir, that I recall, had any problem in
that regard. ’ '

Senator Percy. Senator Cook, we ave going to havea problem of pro-
tecting our lunch over here.

80 .
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Senator Coox. I am not going to pursue it.

Senator Prrcy. We prepared this food under the best supervision
we could get, and I want to give priority to the chef when he is ready
to have us eat.

Senator Coox. May I ask one other thing ?

Senator Prrcy. Yes; go right ahead.

MiINIUM STANDARDS FOR PEANUT BUTTER

Senator Coox. The other day the gentleman from Pillsbury who
testified before our committee—I asked him specifically why his com-
pany no longer bid lots for peanut butter, and he didn’t specifically
say that his company didn’t, but he made it very clear that major
manufacturers of peanut butter in the United States are overlooking
bidding Federal contracts for peanut butter because the standards es-
tablished by the Department are not the standards that they want to
manufacture peanut butter, and I think you wii! find that in the record.

Mr. Ly~NG. Absolutely untrue, Senator. First of all, the standards
for peanut butter are established by the Food and Drug Administra-
tion. There is a minimmn standard for peanut butter. The quality
standards that we purchase are very high, and we do receive bids from
the major manufacturers of peanut butter.

Senator Coox. I think you should check his testimony.

Mr. Lyxe. We will do that. We have talked about this with CPC
International, manufacturers of Skippy, and with other firms in-
formally, and they tell me that sometimes the reason they aren’t par-
ticularly interested is we are a bit too fussy. But we will certainly take
4 look at that.

Senator Coox. I would like to take a look at it from that aspect, too.

Mr. Lyne. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Choate in his windup comments

ointed out a large number of what he considered serious omissions
1n our testimony, things that he didn’t »~ar. If the chairman would
permit it, we would be delighted to try in writing to-answer as many
of those as we can. Obviously I can’t do it now. But his statement
suggested that the reason that it was not in our testimony is because
there was something wrong with these things, and in many of those
cases it just isn’t the case. I would like to have an opportunity to
clarify the record.

OrporruniTY To RESPOND

Senator Percy. If there are any specific_points you would like to
reply to right now, you certainly can. Without objection, we will
keep the record open* so your full reply can be incorporated in the
record.t

Senator Schweiker.

Senator Scuwelker. I have no questions. I yield in the interest of
lunch. o . - :

Senator Percy. Our able staff director has a question.

Mr. SCHLOSSBERG. Mr. Secretary, on the Seattle situation I just want
to try and clarify in my own mind, does the Department agree that

sInformation recelved Nov. 19, 1971,
1See Appendix 2, p. 2436.
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there is serious unemployment and consequently hungry people in
Seattle, in the State of Washington?

Mr. Lyxc. We obviously know that there is serious unemployment,
and there is a very serious income gap. Welfare payments have been
reduced. People have commitments, and so forth. We do not under-
stand with the Food Stamp Program how there can be serious hunger,
because all people are eligible for food stamps based upon their in-
come. If they have no income they get stamps at virtually little or no
cost. So that what we believe there is, there is a very major income gap.
We think people are trying to solve that income gap by coming to the
USDA for the food program.

We are not at all opposed—we believe there should be something
done to assist those people in their problem of an income gap. We
simply don’t think it should be done through food programs which
we think are adequate for the food needs of those people.

Mr. ScirosspBERG. I thought you had said that if the State were to
take $5 million that it said 1t could come up with for commodities and
put that toward assisting people in buying the food stamps that that
would in asense help solve the problem.

Mr, Ly~e. We think it would substantially go a lot farther than it
would to spend $5 million in administrative expense. Now the $5
million is our figure, the State didn’t give us that figure. I don’t want
to be misunderstood on that. We belicve that that amount of money
used to assist those people who can’t afford to pay the cost of food
stamps for one reason or another, on a temporary basis particularly,
could go a long way toward this without incurring what becomes more
taxpayer expense.

Mr. ScHLossBERG. Assuming that is so, the State does not have the
$5 million——

Mr. Ly~nG. That was my understanding.

Mr. ScurossBerG. I think they might be able to come up with $5
million in terms of in kind services, volunteer, et cetera, for the com-
modity program. Assuming that the problem is where can they get $5
million to assist people to buy food stamps, if that is the problem, there
isnoway the Department could come up with that $5 million?

Mr. Ly~ne. No, there is no way.

Mr. ScurossBere. Well, in that case isn’t it true that the Congress
has appropriated $20 million in the OEO appropriation for high un-
employment areas such as Seattle to assist them in dealing with prob-
lems like this?

Not Faminiar . . . Besmes, Nor Passep

Mr. Lyne. I am not familiar with that appropriation bill. As I
understand it, it hasn’t been passed yet.

Mr. SciLossBerG. No, it has been passed. My understanding is that
the Office of Management and Budget has informed Senator Magnu-
son that they are hol ding back those funds.

M. Liy~ng. These are not USDA funds.

Mr. ScurossBerG. No, but they are administration funds.

Mr. Liy~ne. Yes, Well, I am not familiar with that?

Senator PErcy. Mr. Secretary, if you would be agreeable, we will
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hold the record open for a short while. In the event that we go back
over the 4 days’ hearings and find questions that have not been asked
yet we will ask the staft to submit those questions to you. We will then
incorporate them in the hearing record before it is closed.

I want to express very deep appreciation to you, Mr. Secretary, for
your appearance today and for the cooperation of the Department,
and to Mr. Hekman, Mr. Castillo and Mr. Grange for being with us
this morning.

‘We are 20 minutes behind schedule for lunch.

Are there any further questions by Senator Cook or Senator
Schyweiker?

If not, we cordially invite you to eat yourown food.

The committee is in recess, subject to the call of the Chair.

(Whercupon, at 12:20 p.m., the Select Committee was recessed,-

to reconvene at the call of the Chair.)

“
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Appendix 1

ITEMS PERTINENT TO THE HEARING OF SEPT. 22, 1971

Material Submitted by the Witnesses

FROM EFRAIN SANTIAGO

APPENDIX A
SELECTED DATA FOOD DISTRIBUTION PROGRAM

Items 1967-68 1970-71 1972-73
Families SeIVed. o e e e e e e ceeceiaaccceamaeccmccceeeennaan 86, 900 112, 500 136, 000
Persons served........... 544, 700 763,800 872,200
Children receiving whole mi 7,50 6,088 40, 000
Annua) budget. ... ... $1,675,400  $2, 645, 200 $5, 600, 000
Food distributed (pounds).. 177,600,000 136,500,000 2218, 000, 000
Food authorized (pounds).. .. 190,700,000 191, 000, 000 218, 000, 000
Value of food distributed..... 1.$20,300,000 $33,500,000 2 $58,200, 000
Value of authorized f00d. . .ceueeeeemmacearmeaaecccecccncncaccacnnaa 1$23,900,.00 $50,600,000 = $58,200, 000
Types of food distributed. o oo ooo oo iiecciieeaan 15 21 21

hote milk distributed (pounds). .. .. ..cmnimiiiiae e 935,800 730, 650 4,800, 000
Cost of Whole MilKe ce e oo cmcmceeciacccceicccccccecemancecaane $507, 800 $487, 100 $4, 000, 000
Food distribution centers. ... oo ieecceeeaciencccecacaaaee- 80 86 90
General warehousSes . oo eeoe oo ieiaiiiiiaiiecccscamaneacoaan 5 9

U Fiscal year 1968-69. o
t Assuming all authorized food is distributed.

.
v
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APPENDIX B

STUDY, JULY 191

SJ. New York  Philadelphia Miami
Beefsteaks:
1.80 1.39 1.59 1.49
1.75 1,39 ceeieanees 1.9
1.59 1.29 1.42 1.39
. 1.69 1.75 1.7 1.39
Top sirloin 1.79 1.75 1.42 1.39
Chopped...... .99 .99 .96 1.09
SOW. - et ceiiceeeeameaccmcecccccmcceeseans .99 1.04 ............ .99
Pork:
Pork chop, .65 .83 .64 .19
Pork center 1.09 1.32 104 ...
Sparerib..eeceo-. .79 .30 .90 .79
Feet .33 .33 15 ) RN
.75 .67 .76 .76
.68 082 e eeeeeseeeeemenecm e
.49 .39 A5 .
.49 .49 .39 .39
.45 .47 .57 .68
Instant coffee._.___ .89 .57 .60 .65
Evaporated milk__. .23 .20 .25 .24
Tomato sauce!_... .10 .13 .15 .13
Sausagest......... .20 .35 .30 .3
Spaghetti SaUce. .. .. oo cccccnnes .41 43 ... .39
Luncheon meat. ... oo eocicccenenn .47 .45 .47 .32
Comed beef. ..o e e ceceeaaeaes . 93 e .80 .79
Baby 1000 e e et ccccciceens A2 .- .15 .10
Miscellaneous:
808P bath ... oo emee i cmceereeeeaee .24 25 ... .3
Clorox Dleach . o oo e e e ceeecceccc e .51 .40 BT e
ToOthPaste o o oe oo e e e e N Y .14 2,69
Cereals:
Cornmeal Y. oo e mmm———acanan .29 236 o eeaes .37
Flour meal. .. .33 .34 .32 .32
Rice 101bs. oo e eeccceccceeeeees 1.35 1.69 oo 1.89
Soda crackers ! o iccccceceeee 1.19 1.39 1.41 1.48
COMMTIAKeS. e eeee e ee e e eecececcamm e ceanee .37 .49 37 .45
0il vegetable:
Mazola e o oo e ceceeeem——eeeeen 1.34 1.39 1.39 1.39
Tomatoes pound. ... .. oeeeooccoea e eeeeee .49 .39 .49 .39
Onions pound .20 .15 12 .15
POtatOeS oo ceeenceecccemccccecrcc e neeeen .12 .15 .08 .08
Lard 3 1bs3._. .69 .95 .99 .94
Eggs imported .55 .45 .49 .57
Cheese:
INAUIAC . - e e e e e e e e e eem——————— .79 .65 .68 .65
01e0MArganing. . _.....ccveeeeecmmacmmcmcccemeee .57 .55 .54 .52

1 Locally produced/processed.
2Co

gate,
3 Controlled price.
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Estabo LIBRE Asocrapo bE Puerto Rico,
DEPARTMENTO DE SERVICIOS SOCIALES,
San Juan, Puerto Rico, October 14, 1971.
Senator CirarLES PERCY,
Sclcct Commiittee on Nutrition and Human Nceds, U.S. Scnalc, Senate Annex,
Washington, D.C.

Dear SexaTor PercY : I appreciate the opportunity that was provided for me
to testify before this Committee concerning the Food Distribution Program in
I’uerto Rico.

During my testimony you requested for the record information concerning the
local effort in distributing the foods provided by the USDA in Puerto Rico. En-
closed find a chart giving this information for the last three years. This only rep-
resents Commonwealth funds and does not include any funds provided by any
agency of the Federal Government. You asked me to compare this with what
other States are doing. Unfortunately, this information from other States is not
available. The USDA has informed me that they do not collect this from the
States and what information they have is incomplete and may include other
Federal funds from OEO or other agencies.

I trust that this is of use to the Committee in its study of this program.

Cordially,
EFRIAN SANTIAGO,
Scerctary.

FOOD DISTRIBUTION PROGRAM OF PUERTO RICO, DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES EXPENSES PAID FOR WITH
LOCAL FUNDS

Fiscal {gsagr Fiscal {ge% Fiscal {ge;lr

Salaries and WageS.. . conunn e e eeeaes $633,300 $729, 200 $832, 000
Transportation 320,657 211,528 236, 264

........................ : 184,933 202,676 197,568

.................. s 487,100 487,779 419, 682

151,112 144,117 213, 386

TOral L e e e e e eeeam———————ee 1,777,102 1,775,300 1,898,900
Number of people served during the same perivd as mentioned above:

People SeIVed . o oo e eeeeeen e eeann 5,794, 903 6,377,862 6,826,473

Monthly average . ... et 482,908 531,488 568, 872

FROM PROCTOR CARTER

U.S. SENATE,
Washington, D.O., Junc 5, 1970.
Hon. CLrrrorp M. HARDIN,
Secretary of Agriculture,
TWashington, D.O.

DeAR MR. SECRETARY: We have become concerned about an inequity that has
arisen with respect to the local operating costs of the commodity distribution
program—an inequity that has resulted from the very commendable efforts of
this and the previous Administration to make available a food assistance pro-
gram in every county in the nation.

As you know, local operating costs of this program are now met in three
different ways:

(1) from state and/or local funds in 664 counties which have voluntarily
adopted a commodity distribution program ; ’

(2) through total or substantial direct Federal assistance in 219 “low-
income counties; and

(3) through total ¢~ substantial Federal assistance in the form of USDA
grants to the States in 285 counties which had no food assistance program
at the beginning of this year.

The inequities in this situation are obvious. Those “low-income” counties which
had a program prior to fiscal 1968 must continue to bear the cost of the program
while other “low-income’” counties do not. Additional counties are now receiving
programs with Federal assistance without regard to their income status. The

R
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inequities are even more striking in thos~ States where neighboring counties or
counties in similar circumstances are treated differently. In 20 of the 39 States
in which the progrmm operates some counties receive Federal assistance while
others do not.

The basic inequity, however, lies in the fact that those counties which took
the initiative and accepted the responsibility of providing a food assistance pro-
gram for their residents (most of them bLefore hunger hecame a national issue)
are being penalized for having done so.

We know that the Department has not intended this result, and are confident
that you will want to take the steps necessary to correct this inequity. .

The regulations governing the grants to the States for the expansion and
improvement of the commodity Qistribution program provide that “in no event
. .. shall such funds be used to reduce the mmount of funds derived from State
or local government sources.” Therefore, it is not presently possible for the States
to distribute Federal funds in an equitable manner among all participating
counties. We strongly urge the Department to revise the regulations governing
the use of grant funds in n manner that will make possible the distribution of
Federal assistance on a more equitable basis.

If it should be found that such an assistance formula would not be consistent
with the goal of establishing n food assistance program in every county, then
we would urge the Department to use the authority available to it under section
32 of Public Law T4-320 to assume the full operating cost of the commodity
distribution program in every county.

Sincerely yours,
Howarp W, CANNON
THoyMAs F. EAGLETON.
PoiLip A. HART.
GEORGE MCGOVERN.
W:LLIAM PROXMIRE,
STUART SYMINGTON.

FROM WARREN H. BRELAND

EXHIBIT A

LoxG IsranD PeorLE's AssociatioN Foon CENTERS STORE LOCATIONS

Baldwin, 2096 Grand Avenue Long Beach 1I, 911 W. Beech St.
Bellmore, 1906 Newbridge Rd. Lynbrook, 27 Hempstead Avenue
Bethpage, 297 Broadway Massapequa, 570 Merrick Avenue
Farmingdale, 180 N. Main St. Mineola, 169 Mineola Blvd.

Floral Park, 340 Jericho Tpke. New Cassel, 620 Union Avenue
Franklin Square, 82 Franklin Avenue Garden City Park, 2240 Jericho Tpke.
Freeport, 21 W. Merrick Rd. Oceanside, 3143 Lawson Blvd.

Glen Cove, 103 Schoo! St. Oyster Bay, 78 South St.

Great Neck, 795 Northern Blvd. Port Washington, 139 Main St.
Hempstead, 69 Nichols Court Rockville Centre, 47 N. Village Avenue
Hicksville, 259 Broadway Roosevelt, 250 Nassau Rd.

Inwood, 95 Doughty Bivd. . Iniondale, 573 Uniondale Avenue
Island Park, 263 Long Beach Rd. Valley Stream, 433 Rockaway Avenue
Levittown, 2721 Hemnpstead Tpke. West Fempstend, 523 Hempstead Ave.
Merrick, 27 Merrick Avenue Elmnont, 493 Hempstead Tpke.

Long Beach I, 522 Park Place
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Material Submitted by Other Than Witnesses

FRO)M SENATOR EDMUND 8. MUSKIE

U.S. SENATE,
CoMMITTEE 0N GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS,

Washington, D.C., Scptember 30, 1971.
Hon. GEorGE S. McC'OVERN,

Chairman, Seleet Comniittec on Nulrition and Human Nceds, U.S. Scnatce,
Washington, D.C.

DeAar MRr. CirairmaN: Enclosed is a statement on the donated food program
in Maine prepared by an attorney for Pine Tree Legal Assistance, Inc., in con-
nection with a grant from the Office of Economic Opportunity.

Mr. Zendzian has asked me to forward this statement to you with the request

that it be included in the record of your recent hearings on the donated com-
modity program.

Thank you for your cooperation.
Sincerely,

EpmMunp S. MUSKIE,
U.S. Scnator.

WRITTEN TESTIMONY FOR THE SENATE SELECT COMMITTEE
ON NUTRITION AND HUMAN NEEDS

The people of the State of Maine are facing a crisis in the distribution of do-
nated foods. The crisis is not one concerned merely with the quality or quantity
of donated food distribution, but whether there will be a distribution of donated
food in much of the State of Maine after March 31, 1972,

The cause for this concern arises out of the unique distribution system existing
throughout much of Maine. The fact that Maine does not have any one particu-
lar statewide systemn for distributing donated foods is, in part, the cause of the
impending crisis. A brief description of the various types of food distribution
programs, presently in existence, will help clarify this particular point.

MAINE Foop DISTRIBUTION PROGRAMS

Maine does not have one uniform system for distributing foods statewide, but
rather, has several different schemes which are used to get donated foods to the
recipients.

1. FOOD STAMPS

It should initially be pointed out that one of Maine's 16 counties, Androscoggin,
which contains the second largest city in the State (Lewiston), and a heavy
proportion of the State’s population (9 percent), participates in the food stamp
program. It is the only Maine county to do so. An effort by some counties to move
from commodity distribution to food stamps was effectively thwarted by the
105th Maine Legislature, this past spring, during its regular session. A more

detailed discussion of how this was done is set forth in the section dealing with
the attitude of the Maine Legislature. :

2. STATE ADMINISTRATION

The Maine State Departinent of Health and  Welfare is designated by the
Governor as the distributing agent for donated foads in Maine. The Department
dces not have a specific division which is concerned with the operation of.the
donated food program, but rather, administers the donated food program through
its division administering general assistance (town welfare). The entire staff
that works on the donated food program consists of one office man, one field in-

(2425)
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vestigator and a secretary. There is 1o logical connection between the receipt of
donated food and the administration of the general assistance program in the
State of Maine, othier than the fact that the recipients of botl types of help are
poor people.

3. CITIES AND TOWNS AS SURDISTRIBUTING AGENCIES

; One hundred and twenty-seven of Maine's towns and cities contract directly
j with the Maine State Department of Health and Welfare for the distribution of
; donated food. In April, 1971, these individual town and city programs served a
total of 46,737 individuals out of a statewide total certified eligible of 102,903
| The adutinistration of the donated food program by the towns is usually delegated
: to the town welfare director, or to one of the selectnien, or the town clerk. The
result is often the confusion of the donated food progrant and the general gssist-
ance program—both by accident and design. It has been claimed that a loeal i
welfare director will reduce the amount of a food order being given to a family— \
i

pursuant to general assistance—because he knows that donated foed will shortly
be handed out. Another difficulty, which results in embarrassnient to the person
receiving both general assistance and donated foods, is the fact that when they
g0 to be certified for the receipt of donated foods they talk with a social worker
who also knows other matters pertaining to their social situation. This has re-
sulted in embarrassment, in Bangor, where a social worker has been known to
publicly state—during certification, in front of other people—matters which were
‘ disclosed to him in confidence in his capacity as a general assistance social worker.
] Oue incident in Bangor last March, 1971, indicates the trouble and confusion
{ which can ocenr where you have a single department responsible for administer-
ing two separate and nonrelated programs. A local welfare rights group, United
Low-Income, Inc., was handing out a single sheet piece of paper, printed on
both sides, with a person's rights to general assistance from the city of Bangor
Welfare Department. On the particular day in question, they cliose to hand out
the flyer to people waiting in line to receive donated commodities being dis-
tributed by the city of Bangor at the Emimnanual Baptist Church, 153 Pine Street.
The response of the people administering the donated food program—wlio were
also social workers administering the general assistance prograni—was to close
down the food line and refuse to certify any more individuals; or distribute
any more food until the local welfare rights organization ceased handing out
the flyer dealing with Bangor general assistance. The problem was eventually
rentedied that day and court action was not found to be necessary; llowever, it
resulted in disruption of the line, confusion, and an extreme aniount of delay
and inconvenience to the people receiving commodities. The result of actions such
as these is to discourage participation in thie donated food program by people who
are clearly eligible to receive the commodities.

As of April, 1971, a total of 15 towns in Maine did not participate in any
imanner in the donated food prograni.

4, COUNTY OPERATED DONATED FOOD PROGRAMS

Three of Maine’s counties operate their own donated food programs on a
countywide basis. Thiese counties are Kennebec, Somerset and IHancock. In these
counties the County Connnissioners fund the operation of the program. FFor fiscal
yvear 1971, it is estimated that the cost to Kennebec County for the operation
of the food program was $100,000. Kennebec County has its own storage facilities
and the only money they receive from the State is 10 cents a case for the donated
foods that are stored. Hancock County was originally a community .action-run
program ; however, due to administrative difficulties, the Commmunity Action
Agency was no longer able to liandle the program. The County of Hancock re-
ceived $8,000 from the State during fiscal year 1971 to assist themn in administer-
ing the progranm. The $8,000 came i1 the form of Section 2350.15 funds from the
U.S. Departnient of Agriculture through tlie Maine State Depm:tment of I-Ien[th
and Welfare. Hancock County now funds their own progra m.'Smce tlie counties
provide their own source of funding, their continued operation of the donated -
food progran is not jeopardized.

§. COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY AS SUBDISTRICTING AGENCY—LOCAL FUNDING I

In one county, Sagadahoc, the distribution of donated commodjties is carried
out by the community action program for that county——Merrymegtmg Com.munity
Action Program. The Community Action Agency contracts directly with the
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i Maine State Department of Health and Welfare and serves as the subdlstrlbutrng
X agency. They do théir own éértifying:and administrative reporting and ordering
of food for.the: following month, They transport and distribafe the food them-
t ‘Selves.The total-funding for: their operation'is: obtained from the towns which
are served—this iricludes all towns in Sagadahoc County—by an assessment to
the.town on the basis of the number of recipients in:that town served each ‘month.
.I dornot; have the exact figures for the assessment in Sagadahoc County ; ‘how-
-ever, it could be estimated’to be'approximately 50 to’'60 cents per recipient per
month for each.town. Because the towns aré the source of 'funding, the future
operation of .the donated food provram in Sagadahoc County does not appear to
¢ be jeopardized. .

TSR

TR

2

. CITIES AND TOWNS AS SUBDISTRICTING AGENUIES—OOMMUNITY AOTION AGENCIES
PROVIDING . ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANCE

e s S A i

{

y In Aroostock County, Maine's northernmost and largest (6,453 sq. miles)
t county, the ‘individual towns contract directly with the Maine State Department
i 'of Health, and, Welfare as subdrstllbutlng agencies. They then pay the cost.of
{ 'transportatlon of the donated foods from the regional warehouse in Presque Isle
1 to the town, halls, where it is stored and refrigerated, if necessary, until the time
‘for actiial' dlstrlbutron The . work regarding certification, actual-distribution,
ordering . and x‘eportrng of figures to the Maine State Department of Health nand
Welfire ls handled by the two community actmns programs in Aroostook County.
i These’ t:wo comm\mlty actlon provlams do no make any assessment against the
i ‘town\ifor! providing this service,; but, fund the provision of this service with an
: ODO-Dmer'*ency TFood and \Iedrcal Se1v1ces .grant, Cent1a1 Aroostook program
‘had an 'EXMS grant for’ ﬁscal year 1971 of $9,759. The St. Jobhn_ Valley actlon
pro~mm had a'similar grant of $20,000."

The loss'of these, OBO funds to tlle communlty action’ programs wrll force therm
to: either find “another source. of 1uhdmg f0r prov}dmg the techmcal assrst‘mce
to the towns'for'the donated ‘00 program’;’or, force them to make an’ assess-
nient'against tlie' towns for Droviding this service ;. or, force tliein to. discontinue
providing this service. It is extlemely unlikely that the towns would be willing
to bear any additional expense in the operatron of thelr programs Other sources
of funding also appear to be nonexlstent ;'u,. S TN o : _» Cou

7 counonrrr AOTION AGENOY AS stmmsrmo:rmo Aonvor—oso FUNDI‘IG
7 hxcept for a scatterrng of towns that run therr own programs—and towns
‘ that do" not partiblpate At 'all—-the. dlstrlbutlon of donated foods in the counties
of York, Cumberland Oxford, I‘ranklln, Knox, Waldo, Washmgton, Penobscot
and’ Plscataquls is’ the sole’ .responslbrllty of ‘the community ‘action program in
that county

The usual operatlon of’ such a program ls to have the communlty actlon pro-
gram contract for ‘the’ Shlpment ‘of theqcommodlties from the nearest, distribu-
tion point=-thése aré located in Portland, Bangor and. Presque Isle—to one or
two warehouses maintained by them, or rented ‘by them, for the storage of do-
nated foods. After the commodities are stored in the communlty action agency's
warehouse, :the. agenicy! then - takes the - comtodities to ‘the ‘reclplents ‘in trucks
or; buses owned:by: them. The:éntire cost: of shipping, storage’and: dlstrlbutlon
s borne. by the'community action:agency. The community action agency also
provides tlie: entire: panoply of: admlnlstratlve services, includlng certlfylng, or-
dering and:reporting. i vt i Yt GO0
»»The icommiuinity: 'actlon: agencles ftmd thls operatlon frdm} two sources1 They
receive from the towrs that they serve on assedsmetit, usually 50' cents; bér per-
son served per month, from each town. As the actual ‘cost’ of operatlng i pro-
grdiinds argtatewide average of‘about"$106 per pérson‘ per’ ‘ihonth), 'this” clearly
doesmotipay the entire cost. Thé remiainder of the ‘cost’is fndnced with' money
received ifrom the' Office ‘of Economi¢'Opportunity 48 2 grant for Bmergendy Food
and:Medital:Services: In -actuality-thé costs al‘e quite often highér.tian the state
:average :"bécause-the:areas gétved ’Wlth ‘the! dommunity action agencles as’sub-
-distributing agencies tend’ t(i"be more’ sparcely’ populated hnd'i‘emote areas,
‘where'the acdtudl transportatiOn and delivery Costs are hlgher than they are in
the mord heavily populated sectorsof the Statef ' T

‘The loss:of 'thé: Bmergency : Food atd: Medlcal‘ Servlces funds wnll necessltate
3 that thé' community’ ‘a'ctlon agemcles teither" 1}alse thelr assessments to the towns,
{8 PRI TTYIS TR SIS RU TN 1 X3 08 S{ R SN R AR U B iy wi N
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attempt to get funding from the County Commissioners; find funding from some
other source; or, discontinue their programs. Since it was with extreme difficulty

"that the communrty action agencies were able to _convince the towns to agree to

the operation of a donated food program in their towns—even at the minimal

‘cost as it presently stands—it would appear to be extremely unlikely that the

town assessment could be raised suﬁicxently -high enough to replace the loss of

‘funding, without losing many of the participating towns. The county funds are

in the same situation that are most of the town funds; that is, there are just not
funds available for programs, .such as these; and,. the usual antiwelfare mood
of the County Commissioners and tcwn oﬁicmls would appear to prevent any
possible source of funding from bemg obtained from them.

STATE ATTITUDE TOWARD NUTRITIONAL PROBLEMS OF LOw-INCOME PEOPLE AND
HungerR PROBLEMS OF THE Poor

One of the immediate alternatives of sources of funding which comes to mind
after reading the loss of funding above is the State Legislature. The Maine

"Legislature has only recently become at all responsive to needs of low-income

people; however, I believe that they have not reached the point of concern for
the needs of low-income people 'that would result in the State approprmtmg
any money for special programs other than those which already exist.

The Maine Legislature has recently adjourned from their 1971 regular session.

-During that session several bills to authorize food stamp programs in individual

counties were submitted to the Legislature. The result was a consolidation
of these bills into one bill which would authorize .a. statewide ‘food:stamp pro-
gram, This bill, Legislative Document No. 1657, had an appropriation price
tag of $397,020 for fiscal year 1971-1972, and $343 822 for fiscal year 1972-1973.
The measure was finally adopted; however, the Appropriations Committee de-
leted the appropriation and added an additional section relative to the intent
of the measure. The new statute, which became effective September 23, 1971, re-
peals and replaces Section 3104 of Title 22 of the Revised Statutes of Maine. The

‘new statute reads as follows:

Section 3104. FFood Stamp Program

The Department is authorized to admlnrster a food stamp program
in conformity with regulations promulgated by the United States De-
partment.of Agriculture and the United States Department of Health,
Education and WWelfare, .

] Section 2——It is the intent of the Leglslature that no State funds be’ ap-
" propriated or used in the state-wide food stamp program, but the Legis-

lature feels that the Department of Health 'and Welfare should. have
authority to administer such a’ program if pnrd for by the Federal Gov-

_ ernment or by counties or communities in the State, It is also the intent
‘" of ‘the Legislature that the food ‘program’ in Androscoggin shall. con-
-"tlnue as a pilot program until: June 80, 1972, ds far as State funds are
‘" "-concerned. The" program may be contlnued by the’ county or by Federal\
v funding, - fYE”

This bill was presented and sponsored by Representatlve Louls Jalbert, of
Lew:ston,; in. Androscoggin- County. Thus the legislature hasiclearly indicated
‘that it does not plan to use anyiState:funds:for operating food programs in
Malne It is generally recognized that.the. donated food. prograin.is more - ex-
penslve to run than the food stamp program ; and, for this reason;:any attempt
to obtaln funding from the State government would appear to be likely to meet
with even, more dlspleasure,lthan that .which was vislted( upon the food stamp
proposal thls past gession.. .., . o

‘An’additional problem in securlng funds from the State Leglslature would be
the tying together of funds for a donated food program.with a bill to change the
deﬂnltion of stepparent—so as to create & Stepparent’s-obligation to,;support step-
chlldlen, thus getting nround the United States Supreme Court ruling in King .
Smith ‘(392 U.S. 309 (1968)), and.effectively. eliminating about 1,200. families
‘from’ eligibility. for ‘Aid to Families wrth ‘Dependent Children, A similar measure
wa§ proposed during this past, session -of the.legislature and it almost passed;
however, éffective lobbying and pressure, from- low-income groups and persons
assisted in blocking -its passage. The, enactment- of such a “stepparent” clause,
along with the appropriation, would result in a gain of $300,000 to. $400,000. State
‘appropriation for donated foods and a loss of about $8 million worth of henefits

A i




2429

received under the AFDC program. This would be compounded by the fact that

‘tbe people removed from AFDC roles may not be automatically eligible to receive

donated commodities—thus reducing the present participation in the donated
food program. - ‘ Lo o .
'- " ., MAINE'S PARTICIPATION - RATE

P

“Phe donated food program in Maine has been growing steadily during the past
few years. Maine State Department of Health and Welfare participation reports
show: that for fiscal year 1970, 666,566 persons received donated foods; for
fiscal year 1971, 971,924 persons received donated foods. This represents a 46

.percent increase above the previous year. Based on an estimate by the Maine

State Department of Health and Welfare for fiscal year 1972 (peak month,
Mareh 1972 with 100,000 participating), the total number of people served for
fiscal year 1972 will be around 1,480,511. This represents an additional increase
of almost 7 percent. ' ’ ) ) ' ‘ )

" Based on national estimates prepared monthly by Food and Nutrition Services,
Maine’s percentage of the number of people served nationwide in donated food
programs bad continued to increase. In September of 1970, Maine's percentage

‘was 2.03 of the national participation rate. In December of 1970, it had increased

to 2.21 and by February of 1971, it had increased to 2.38 percent.
Nevertheless, despite this growth, only about 32.17 percent of the poor in

‘Maine are participating in the donated foods program. Clearly any action which
-at all jeopardizes the continued growth and expansion of the donated food pro-

gram in Maine will jeopardize any possibility of raising the percentage rate of
participation among Maine's poor people, and bringing the food programn to have
wider impact on the poor in Maine. ' T

Foop DISTRIBUTION PRoGRAM-—COST OF OPERATION

The total cost of operating the food distribution program in Maine, for fiscal
year 1971, was $1,034,207. This includes the cost ‘of operation in every part of

"the State of Maine—except for Androscoggin County.

Of this cost of operation, $348,261 was reported as being contributed to the
State of Maine by the United States Department of Agriculture—FNS.

$260,099 was reported by the Office of Economic Opportunity for Emergency
Food and Medical Services grants to Maine' community action agencies. :

The Maine Department of Health and Welfare reported $18,263.66 in State
agency expenditures in the semiannual report ending December 31, 1970. For
the purposes of figuring the total cost of operation, this figure was doubled and
tl;e'cents dropped—due to the fact that no data was available for the remainder
of the year.

The balance for the cost of operation, $399,340, was paid from other than
FNS funds and OEO and State funds by the cities, towns and counties running
the programs.

Broken down this indicates that Foed and Nutrition Services pays for over
83 percent of the cost of operating the donated commodity program in Maine;
the Office of Economic Opportunity pays for over 24 percent; the local govern-
ments pay for over 38 percent, and the State government pays for a mere 3.6
percent. Clearly the State government is not contributing to the expansion and
growth of the Donated Food program in Maine.

Y.oss or ORO-RFMS FUNDING

Even if the act to extend the Office of Economic Opportunity for 2 years is
approved, including earmarked appropriations for Emergency Food and Medi-
cal Services, the Maine community action agencies using such money to operate
distribution programs have been informed that such money will no longer be
permitted to be used for that purpose. This is not contrary to their original
grants of this money; as, this money was originally designed to be used to
establish distribution programs and then have someone else, either public or
private, take over the actual operation of the dfstribution. Nevertheless, the
funds are being used to distribute foods at the presnt time and tbe efforts to se-
cure the operation of the program by either public or private agencies has been
a futile effort in certain parts of the State of Maine.

Approximately 40 percent of all recipients of all donated commodities in
Maine receive their commodities through a distribution program that is run by a
community action agency.

i ‘\\ £)
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. Concr.usxons

.....

1. The present “patch\vork" distribution’ system must be neplaced with a
statewide system that dssures uniformity. =
A. This could be done by Regulations from the USDA which prevented the
State Distributing Agency from delegating the entire operation of the don-
. ated food program to a, “patchwork" of subdlstributmg ‘agencies and gerv-
_ing as a mere condmt for food. ’
‘" .B. The establishment of a statewlde system of ‘uniférm distribution could
be done through alréady estabhshing lines'of government—through a néwly
created agency or through a new or ‘existing private agency ; but low-income
., beople, donated food recrplents should be allowed to have some control over
the determination of thie final distributive system )
2 ‘The fundlng for donated foods must come’ from the USDA or from State

‘revenues as towns and céunties do not have a sufficlently broad tax base to fund
_this program.,

A. This money could come ‘from the Section 82 money belonging to USDA.
B USDA might also 'use some of .the funds allocated m Public Law 92—
2, 85 Stat. 85 (1971), for such & program.” -
C The ‘State should ‘use ‘money " available under the Emergency ‘Braploy-
.. ment.Act (1971) to provide jobs in operating the donated food programs.
3. The operation of!, the "donated food. program must be completely d1vorced
from the operation of the geneml assistance program, .
‘10 A, The Maiﬁe Department of ‘Health and" Welfare should not be nllowed
" to perform its contractu‘ll ‘duties as the State Distributing Agency out of
the office, and with ‘the ' personnel, of the General Assistance Division.':
B. A totally new and separate division of ‘Nutrition should be created
within the Departinent to operate the donated food program ; USDA could
ensure this in their agreemeént with Maine and also in their approval of
-Maine's workable program plan. .
» The preceedrng conclusions -are concerned only thh the Maine dlstribution
systenmi. There are many othe_r,,problems that.I have, not touched upon because
of the , overwhelming.nature of the problem discussed Maine recipients, like
other. recipxents,thave -problems, wlth poor packaging, ﬁuctuatlng food availabll-
ity, transportation and,so forth These problems are also_serious, but unless
the larger problem.is solved ﬁrst. the others wlll not ‘exist to be solved at all

, September 28, 1971."". o

o “th 1li‘ ZENDZIAN, Esq,
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-~ Appendix 2
ITEMS PERTINENT TO THE HEARING OF SEPT. 23, 1971

-

Material Submitted by the Witness

FROM SECRETARY LYNG

RESPONSE To QUESTION Froa THE CHAIRMAN ON PacE 2386

One firm was late in making deliveries because of mo§ing its plant. Liquids{ted
damages were collected. B o

. ey
. —— .

RESPONSE TO SECOND QUESTION FROM THE CHAIRMAN ON PAGE 2586

USDA PURCHASES OF PRODUCTS FOR NEEDY FAMILIES AND SCHOOLS SCHEDULED FOR DELIVERY IN JULY AND
AUGUST, 1971

1,000 pounds

Quantit Liguidated

delivere damages
Product Quantity late collected
Evaporated MilK .- oo cecceecmeeseneeme oo accacnann 19, 794 0 0
Tnfant FOrmUE MK o ce oo ceeceeemecramammnmmrneenecameaan————- 60 0 0
Frozen pouttry...... eeceameecese-mmsmmssmecessecscssecssesenas 8,090 72 $176
Vegetable ofl ShORt@NINg o oo e eemme o eeceaece e eeeaes 15, 558 4,226 9,219
DIV DRAMS. - e e o oo ecmma e cccamamemamesa—ccec=mesmaaneae= 10, 562 2,434 1,428
ROMEH 08LS - - e e o ecece e memceeeccccacnaccreeesecammmammmmenaeman 7,736 2,839 868
Rollad Wheat - _ o oo e e oo oo cemmeeeccmmnccecec e cceeoan 2,172 472 193
DUl o e ecec e caesccacmm-ceecs-cess-enatesmesseaaesescsaeaas 83, 846 24, 805 12,010
COMMORAl.eo oo oo oo ceeemmemenac e ceeeneaeen 15,270 3,914 ,
COM BIS - oo eencnemecamecacecaanenns 1,467 406 27
BUlgUl oo eeeeecmcaacaccmcacea——- 733 289 115
FaniNa.eeueeccececacaaean Ao 102 22
Macaronic ceec ccccaeacan 4,535 3,025 3,700
Splitpeas. ..cocooo. 320
Soybean oil..__... 4,228 159 371
Dehydrated e8E MiXee oo oo occccceeccancacesesnsnmeam e meanaan 5,364 225 1,421
CHB5e o o e oo oo mccme oo e ceemeesscomeecsesssesmemnmeacaceoosan 28,724 745
Canned APICOtS . - - oo oo cecacccmcececammeesennramcem o annaraeanan 22,680 637 916
TOMAO JUICE e o oo cveeamecccemeaacemmco—cmmmemmcamaencesean= 37,370 2,429 6,355
CAMNEE COFM e e e e coeeeccmmmemammaacemecnmas-semesenannsaamenn AN 120 603
Dohydrated POtatORS. . cem e o cecemcceccaconemcammmansannn e acanean 6, 840 553 2,575
PeanUE BUE, - - e oo ccceecccccomanracrmacnccmmmmnacannmaeannn 5,587 108 23
COM SYIUP - o o = oo cemmemmemecmmmecesesmmassmecmnenmomoomnmona s 8. 885 2,583 9,945
NONfat dFY MilKe e meememcecacmeemeccceaccsmecesaceemamancceosanas 32,301 7,678 4,542
BUMCT - oo e cecccecceecccea-escascecessmsscmseessmamenacseonan 32,929 4,045 1, 878
Canned TUNCRhEON MEAt . o e ceece o cceccmocecmmcccc e cecaeacaenn 18,295 1, 540 6,410
Frozen £round beef . oo —eeeeecennoameaaccceoemsansmmnnancocmcancn 6,314 1, 540 6,410
Canned PAS. - o cevoeccccoaa-ccmceacaasanmemeaeeomammmassesanans 8,736 202 425
£anned POTKe e o cceceeocacacmccccccemeensaacaccmameaaneeaaanancne 10,228 3,267 20, 588
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RESPONSE TO QUESTION Froa THE CHAIRMAN OX PAGE 2388

COUNTY.

(HIGH)

Aroostook, Maine
Noxubee, Mississippl
Léal{e. Hississipp{
Macon, Georgla

Issaquena, Mississippi

(Lo®)

Ormsby, Nevada

Fond Bu Lac, Wisconsin
Henderson, Texas
Chattchoochee, Georgia
Elko, Nevada

PARTICIPATION IN
FOOD DISTRIBgTION

ESTIMATED NECDY

POPULATION 1/ PROGRAM
16,488 “16,862
6,912 7,325
"7,028 6,620
4,559 3,975
1,400 1,086
2,767 7
14,463 1,188
8,72) 990
2,489 553

3,238

.

446

PERCENT QF ESTIMATED
NEEDY BEING SERVED

BY FOOD DISTRIBUTION
PROGRAM i

102

84
87
n

N
22
14

Y sales Management, 1971 Survey of Buying Power, Estimated County Population with Income $0-2999.

2/ September 1971 Participation in the food Distribution Program.
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(Marketing & Consumer Servicas}

Procurenant
4 Inspection

Consuer & Maskating Socvice
Adainlstrator < Clayton Yautter

Corsurer 3nd Marketing Service

. Dalry Dlviston
Diraztor « He L, Forse

Prolt & Vagatable Dlviston
-« Olrector « F, F, Hediing

Gealn Diviston r
Director « Hovard H. Wodeorth

- Llvastock Division
Dlrector v John C» Plerce

Poultry Dlvislon
Diractor - Wli11em €, Hauver

2433

TO SECOND QUESTION FROM THE CHAIRMAN ON PAGE 2388

SECRITARY OF AGRICULTURE

“sUndar Secrofary

'

R J» Prl| Cewpbelf

Assistent Secratery '
Richers Lyng

Requirements &
Dlstribution

Food & thutrltion Servics
Adsinistrator, = Cdeard J, Hehman

. . - Foos & Mutritlon Sarvice
Oeputy Adelnlstrator = George A, Grange

Coputy Adalnlstrator, Progrors
Heward P, Oavls

Food DhstributTon OTvislon
... Dirsctor = Jusn del Castilfo

Admlnlstrator « Mallece F, Warrsn
Progran Suparviser - Rodert E, Hanlfan

Southeast Raglonsl Oftice = Atlanta
Adslnistiator - Russell H, Jares
Frogras Suparvisor = John Hughes

Hidvast Paglonal Ottlce = Chltago
Acalnlstrator « Dasnls M. Dayle
Progran Suparviser « Al Corlson

Soutteast Reglonal OftTce < Colles
Adatnlstrator « Martin D, Garber
Progrsa Suparvisor = Charlas Herndon

¥astarn Reglona) OftTca = San Francisco

. Adalalstrator » Charles M. Crnst

Te Program Suparvisor « Bernlcs 0, Canate
.

‘_I AR e
COCPERATING SYAR' Acocies

| Rasponsible for actual
dlrtribution to recipiants

Torthesst Raglono] O111ce = New York Clty

Asslstent Secratiry
Clarence D. Palsty
(Intarnetionat Attalrs &
Comratdlty Program) .

‘(P:oeumnmt)
N B A4 Snhipplng

Agrlcultural StabliTeetion &
Corsarvatinn Sarvice |
Mninistrator - enneth [. Frick

Agricultural Stadittzation &
Consarvation Service
_l?wu!y Adsinlstrator (Covodi

v
Ozsratlons)
Glenn A, Walr (Acting)

Graln DivisTon

Livastock § Dalry Diviston
Olrector - Reuden R, Jones

.

© Ollseed & spnl‘l Crogs Olvision
Dlrector = Laura) C, Hoade

+ Hinneapol s Comrod Ity Offlco
Dlrector « John Wenn, dr,

Transportation & Marchousing Divialon
Director ~ Bennstt 0, Cnsley

Directar - Clouds B, Froeman (Aztlng}
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«COUNTY OF:VENTURA, DEPARTMENT OF SOCTAL WELFARE;

Ventura, Calif., September 16, 1971,
Senator CHARLES Percy, . -

Acting Chairman, Senate Select Committee on Nutrition and ITyman Needs,
Washington, D.C.

Drar Seyartor Perey : National attention was focused on Ventura County yes-
terday when Mr. Robert Choate displayed several soiled and corroded cans of
orange juice and evaporated milk before your committee, He stated these items
were for distribution to the poor and had been obtained in Ventura County. The
information concerning these items pertaining to Ventura County as publicized on
TV and in the pressis incorrect, v

The following are statements of fact regarding the distribution of commmodi-
ties within Ventura County: ..

1. Any soiled, corroded or damaged canned goods are removed from the
regular distribution process. . .

2, To ‘prevent.distribution of soiled or damaged commodities, all goods
are inspected when packing cases are opened and again as individual items
are repackaged for distribution,

3. Al warehousemen are instructed to immedi
damaged commodities, to record the incident, and
able can or package by puncturing.

ately remove spoiled or
to destroy the question-

4. Not a single incident has been recorded of 2 recipient returning a.

spoiled commodity prepaclka
years. operation.

5. The volume or number of spoiled or damaged item
negligible and believed no greater than experienced by
other retail distributors of similar products.

In his visit in Ventura County, Mr. Choate expressed special interest in geveral
areas of commodity handling operations. We attem ] 7

pted to provide him with all
the information necessary to fulifill his assignment. He was taken on a tour of

three of the four warehouses to view our.actual operations, Mr. Choate specifically
asked about soiled or damaged commodities and was shown some scheduled for
destruction. At higrequest he was given some of the cans, along with an explana-
tion that soiled or damaged commodities are destroyed. -

We believe the information provided your.committee and the form in which it
was disseminated through the national news media was unfortunate and untrue.
It retlects unfavorably on Ventura County and the Donated Foods Program. The
Donated Foods Program is a valuable and useful adjunct to the welfare program
and a very definite benefit to welfare recipients, :

In summary, Ventura County has never, to this department’s knowledge, dis-

tributed commodities in damaged or corroded containers or that were in any way
spoiled or contaminated. .

Very truly yours,

ged in cans in Ventura County in our fifteen

s we destroy is
supermarkets or

HowARrD ROURKE,

o Director.

JAMES D. PACKER,
Assistant Director.

FIELD REVIEW PROCESS

The Food and Nutrition Service, Food Distribution fleld review process consists
of two phases. One of these is the administrative analysis of distributing agencies,
The second is the administrative review of recipient agencies,

The Food Distribution Division issues an annual memorandum of instruction
to the NS Regional Offices on the administrative analysis of distributing agen-
cies. Because emphases and directions constantly change, this annual memoran-
dum guides the Regional Offices on distributing agency activities that are to be
monitored each fiscal year, The intent of the snalysis ig to cover the entire scope
of each distributing agency operation with special attention to the matters in-
cluded in the annual memorandum.

The frequency of the analysis of each distributing agency is left to the discre-
tion of the Regional Administrator. Each year some 60 analyses are made with
reports and exhibits sent to the Food Distribution Division. The recommenda-

ey
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tions resulting from the analyses are made by the Regional Administrator and
conveyed by letter directly to the distributing agencies. Written advice of correc-
tive action is customatily réquired ‘from the distributing hagency. * -

v Adminijstrative reviews of recipient agencies are conducted .by both the FNS
Regional Offices and the distributing agencies. Considering the number of outlets
participating in'the program’ (75,000 schools, 9,000 summer, camps, 9,000 institu-
tions, and over 1,000 household feeding programs), it is obyious that the State

_ distributing 'agencies and the State school lunch agencies, must, be heavily de-

"‘pended upon to'provide adequate field supervision.

. The FNS role is to monitor the State agency activity in providing this fleld
supervision. The FNS Regional Office staffs customarily, review 10 percent of
the summer camps, about 50 percent of the needy family programs, and .several
hundred institutions each year. These reviews are'usually made in the company
‘of 'a State agency reviewer. This method not only serves to determine program
cpmplianc;e at each ,outlet reviewed, but algo insures that.State agency,;re-
- viewers are trairfed in FNS procedures. T e e T
The Child Nutrition Regulations require that 33 of the schools in the Na-
“tional School Lunch Program are to be reviewcd each year by the State school
lunch agency. These reviews include examination of the use of donated foods
__in the lunch prograin. L A o

. "Although practically all reviews are scheduled 'ii'cc'o’rding to a routine work
plan, reviews are also made in situations where compldints’ have been made,
known or suspected irregu‘l‘aritie's exist, and as follow ups to earlier complaints
.and irregularities. Following all reviews, the I'NS Regional Offices make writ-
‘ten reports of findings'and recommendations to the distributing agencies and
ask for confirmation of corrective action, All reviews and analyses includé¢ at-
tention to Civil Rights compliance and enforcement. " , . .. . = ...
.. ..Not. to be. overlooked is the work.of the Office of Inspector General. OIG
" guditors work in abont 20 States  each year and conduct about 200 audits of
the Food.Distribution Program annually. This includes both audits of distri-

buting agencies an recipient agencies.

RESPONSE T0 QUESTION ‘FROM THE CHAIRMAN ON PAGE 2392

Contracts require that “good commercial praétice’? be followed,‘.bht no spéclal
process is speciied. S e

. . OPERATING EXPENSE FUNDS

“The Department deducted from the total grant of $19.7 million suficient funds
to pay to those States which took over Federally operated programs all amounts
which would have been expended by the Department with respect to such ter-
minated programs.” ' o o
_ The Department’s grant to States to assist them In defraying the cost of oper-
‘ating food distribution programs to needy families is based on a formula which
" includes’ both the number of poor residing in non-food stamp areas within the
“State and the per capitn income of the State as related to the National average
number of ‘poor and per capita income, The amount the States received to oper-
“ate the program which were formerly operated by the Department was simply

. added to the'amount derived under the formula for the State.

[

it

, i, ' POST OFFICE ISSUANCE -

. Thirty-three post uffice issuing agents began selling. coupons in King County
.(Seattle), Washington,.on October 12, 1971. The issuance fee will. be equivalent
_to that paid bank issuing agents. The Postal Service expects to expand issuance
to one hundred post offices throughout King County by the middle of November.
The Postal Seryice views the issuance of food stamps asa community service
rather.than as'a revenue-producing activity. The Food and. Nutrition Service
will be working closely with the. Postal Service to:see that the King County . ex-
periment succeeds and, if possible, expands to other areas of the Natlon. .

et 1}."': . Pt - 4 ..
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RESPONSE FROM USDA Lo
Mg Cno&ﬁai'lﬁ His FINAL TESTIMONY qunch'fEn THE FOLLOWING. -,

- 1. That he had seen corroded and bulging cans of certain éommodities at dis-

tribution warehouses. He also provided this Committee with samples of some

cans in this-condition. i ,
Response.—As you will note in the letter of September 16 (Exhibit A), from

" the Ventura County Welfare, the County warehouseman had removed those cans

from distribution and they were awaiting disposition when Mr. Choate requested
some damaged cans. Qur inspectors had determined that no damaged or bulged

- ‘enns were being disiributed and that samples of those cans remaining for dis-

tribution, upon examination, were found to besatisfactory. .-
Approximately one-fourth to one-half of one percent (depending on the prod-
uct) of the canned foods marketed in commercial channels as well as USDA

" channels become bulged, corroced, or otherwise damaged as a result of normal
_ packing and handling procedures. i

2. That Assistant Secretary Lyng did not provide any explanation of how the
ordering mechanism could-be better organized so that n county would not be
»sked early in July to guess its food needs for October, November, and December.

Response~—The Department requests that orders be placed by the 20th of each
month so that invitations to bid may be issued, contracts let and shipments can
be made within six to ten weeks from plucement of the order, For instance, all
grain products, exaporated milk, salad oil, and shortening ordered by the 20th

. of October are purchased for shipment December 1. Other commodities are pur-

chased for shipment 30 to generally 90 days in advance with orders to follow

" on about each 30 day interval. ‘The Department recently purchased suflicient
. supplies of. peanut butter to meet States' needs through February 1972, The

States place their orders on a monthly basis for commodities purchased in this
manner. We realize that problems in estimating caseloads and guaranteeing

" shipments, etc., arise and therefore, recommend that a 30 to 60 day inventory

be maintained at the warehouse.

We are developing a computerized data retrieval system which would provide
the Department with a continuocus flow of inventory information from the local
level, and include automatic reordering of commodities. P

Recently, we have had a management consultant company evaluate the dis-
tribution System to determine and develop the nost efiicient, econownical and
effective means of handling donated foods as related to transporation, warehous-
ing, and delivery to recipient agencies. We are now working with States regard-
ing implementation of their recomniendations.

For each shipping notice issued to vendor or warchouseman a forwarding
notice and consignee receipt which set forth time frames in which shipments will
be made as.well as the origin points of such shipments are sent to the State
agency. At time of shipment, the vendor or warehouseman is required to notify
the State agency of the shipping date, car numbers, destination, ete. . '

.. 8. There was no feedback of information from the poor.

Response.~—Every container bears the name, “U.S. Department of Agricul-
ture.” Recipients need only send a letter to the Department advising of a prob-
lem. They receive an immediate esponse. Frequently, onsite.investigations pre-
cede a final response. More than 10,000 program aides employed in the Expanded

- Food and Nutrition Program help recipients to make better use of the foods and

provide an additionnl means for the recipient to alert. USDA to any problems,
State and local agencles are always in touch with our Regional Offices relaying
information regarding program status, problems, etc. Administrative reviews are
conducted routinely but are also made in situations where complaints have been
made, known or suspected irregularities exist and as follow-ups to earler com-
plaints and irregnlarities. Additionally, the Department requires all State agen-

cies to provide for ‘a hearing to individuals whose applications for food nssist-

ance are denied’or are not acted'upon with reasonable promptness who are ag-

* grieved by an agency’s interpretation of any provision of the State plan of oper-

ation as it affects their situation. S AR
4. That USDA, in a letter to Senator Percy, revenled that the Recommended

“Daily Allowances provided by the food packdge was closer to 54 percent than the
-100 percent indicated by Assistant Secretary Lyng. R -

Response.~—In our letter to Senator Percy, we'explained that “the nutritional
value of foods in the family package at the rates offered by USDA, if accepted
and distributed in counties, can provide recipients with 100 percent of their

100
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RDA for six selected nutrients and protein plus 80 percent of the RDA for
calories. However, as actually accepted, the percent of RDA for protein and the
selected nutrients range from 50 percent to 80 percent and 54 percent for calories.
These measurements are based on the nutritional contribution of the kinds and
guantities of food accepted.”

O. That USDA's Standards of Excellence were unheard of by any county he
visited.

Response.—The Standards of Excellence were provided to State agencies a®
goals for each Food Distribution Program to be attained through use of the
Operating Expense Funds. However, the first objective in providing Operating
Expense Funds to States was to help inaugurate a Food Distribution Program
in all areas which did not have one. That has been our main thrust since the
Department began providing such monies. Now that nearly every county has a
food program, emphasis can be shifted to increasing the availability and qual-
ity of existing Food Distribution Programs and developing the full potential
participation needy families including the special groups such as the aged and
- infirm and the migrants. -

6. That USDA has not indicated how they could stress the bonus foods which
counties can give to the poor.

Response.—In his printed testimony, Mr, Choate referred to “counties willing
to better serve their poor are permitted to give out bonus amounts of certain
foods if the County applied to the State for inclusion in such a program. USDA
does nothing to alert counties to this possibility or to urge them to give out
more nearly a full months supply of food.” The bonus food program which Mr.
Choate refers to'is apparently the suggested distribution rate set forth in in-
struction 708-4 of the Food and Nutrition Service. This suggested. distribution
' guide indicates that rates should be. adjusted where necessary in accordance
-with local food consumption habits. For instance, for a family of four the sug-
gested distribution rate of instaut nonfat dry milk is a 4-pound pachage. How-
ever, if this is a popular product in a given area, it may be distributed in'any
amount as long as care is exercised to prevent waste.’ The amount dlstributed
will be dictated by local tastes.’

7. The USDA did not respond with respect to the lien laws in some States.

Response.~—The lien laws referred to by Mr. ‘Choate do not apply to the Food
Distribution Program -but are used by certain States. in determ1n1ng welfare
assistance rather than food assistance. In fact, USDA’'s Commodity Distribution
Regulations specifically state that recipients shall not be required to make any
payments in money, materials, or services, for or in connection with the receipt
of commodities and that they shall not be solicited in connection. with the re-
ceipt of commodities for voluntary cash contributions for any purpose. '

8. The USDA did not require the same information on its commodity meat and
‘poultry labels as it required the retail meat and poultry producers to put on

their labels.

Response——All of our meat and poultry labels meet the requirements for com-
mercial labels with one varlance in the canned chopped meat. On this product,
the ingredients statement may appear on the front label panel or on the lid of
the can at the option of the packer. This exception is allowed because of varia-

“tions‘allowed in the formulation of' the product. The particular formulation

purchaseqd is govemed by prevailing market conditions. By allowing the ingredi-
ents statement to be affixed to the lid, a long delivery delay is avoided since

"vendors can maintdin-large Stores of hds for each.of the formulations. Com-
vparable stocking of cans with front label variations would not be feasible.

9. That, despite statements made at the’ hearings, that the prime focus of this
program is the food needs of the poor, he suspects that the Administration is
marking time until the family assistance program is decided on by this Congress.
of the donated foods has been improved through enrichment and fortification

‘Response.~—As pointed out in the Department's testimony, the nutritional value
wherever possible. We provide monetary assistance to States to expand and im-
prove their distribution programs. In FY '71, $19.7 million was provided to ex-
pand warehousing, add distrlbution p01nts, estabhsh better storage and distri-

_vbution facilities, and so on.

Recently, we have had'a management consultant ‘company evalunte the
distribution system to determine and develop the most, ef‘lcient ‘economical
and effective means of handling donated foods ns re]ntcd to transpm tation,
warehousing and delivery to recipient agencies. We are now conferring with

-~ our Regional Offices and State agencies on implementatxon of these recom-

mendations. -
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. 'We have provided outreach. agsistance, More than 10,000 program aides
e are now-employed in,the Expanded F'ood and Nutrition Education Program,
- These aides-assist homemakers to make better use.of.commodities.through
(1, . use of recipes, and other nutrition. materials, such.as the flip chart booklet
"‘Food for Your Table” and the “Thrifty Family” - Flyer series. Much of
- - this material.is being printed in.Spanish as well as English. These program «
" 'aides have been influential in acquainting homemalers with the avallability

w.; #.0f the foods and, have. helped themto obtain the foods.

-.mA .comnion ‘proceduie  in- most :States' has been to set up. demonstiatxons at
distribution. centers .to -introduce- recipients. to unfamiliar or :new commodity
.foods. Program aides or:volunteers prepare dishes or milk drinks from the foods,
;Iget rec1pients to taste: these, and then give them the recipe for their use at

. . home., IS
! - “Other outreach cfforts include A Handbook for Volunteers for use-by public
. and private groups and individuals assisting in efforty to strengthen and expaud
. the: programs. We have.always supported and encouraged: public and private
agencies, such as Red Cross, Salvation Army, Service organizations, Church
- groups, etc, and most recently the: Center for Voluntary Action to assist us

in ieaching all eligible persons.

-;We recognize it is difficult, often impossible, for. the cl(lerly and (hsabled to
.get to the distribution centers and back home. with a month’s supply of food.
-1n; conjupetion with, the  American National Red Cross and the new: Center for
.Voluntary Action, we have developed :the Drive-to; Serve ;Program, It is still
.in the  very. early pilot .stages,but ‘appears to have tremendons potential. At
this. ponnt the program has been limited to .those 65 and over. However,, if the
pllots prove successful, and we have every reason to.believe they will, we hope
to expand it to the d1sabled -In this Program,.local high school. sturlentsv using
thelr own or- their, families’ cars deliver the food to the senior citizens’ homes.
. The Red Cross or.other interested avencies Aact as proxy- for the -older: person
-and as the coordinators of the driver's schedules .

In an, effort to make it easier for potential program recipients and preqent
program participants to find the telephone number of the loeal food assistance
office, we are,working with the - American- Telephone .and Telegraph’s Bell
. System’ to Insert a. special “Food: Help Program” listing 1n an' initial 10 pilot
project areas. A puhlic’ awareness. program is planned and will be put mto effect
upon directory publication dates in each location. .

In cooperation with the U.S.:Postal Service, a Food- IIelp Poster is now on
G i .displav in over 33,000 locations. This poster directs potential recipients to the
local agency dlstrlbuting food. -

In June of.this year, the Department entered into a direct agreement With the
Navajo nation for food assistance.to needy Indian families. This, in:addition to
the $230.000 grant for FY '72, has enabled the reservation’s food program to
be greatly expanded in all areas Through our working relationship. with the
Department of Defense, we have been successful in obtainin" two central and
eight strategically located satellite’ warehouses for use by, the reservation.

During the past year, we have made some very significant nnutritional inter-
ventions In the Navajo food program. Nutritiously enriched food items now made :
avallable for distribution include enriched Wheat-soy macaroni, doubly enriched |
lysine-fortified bread flour, instant fortified nonfat dry milk, Additlonallv, Indian !
infants are now recefving a dry iron-fortified infant formula along with the. iron
fortified rice cereal. The products currently, distributed are excellent from a
nutritional standpoint and acceptable from a ‘cultural standpoint on most reser-
vations. Pinto beans which are preferred by the Indians and Spanish-Americans
are now being supplied to areas which request them. , .

. Labels for family-sized packages of donated .foods.are, being redesigned The
new labels will be of special benefit to the segments of the caseload which are
illiterate, have low reading, levels, or speak Spanish Some of the features of the
new lahels include: o . o . oo

deslgns 1n two or three colors
Spanish name of each food, ;
{Nustrations on all front panels to show the enclosed food
labels for egg. mix, dehydrated potatoes and nonfat dry mllk Wlll have
mixing fnstruction in Spanish, "~ . ;
: . a glmplified type. of. nutrition labellng featnrlng the Dally Pour Food !
- Groups to aid in local nutrition activities..

‘Within the framework of existing legislative authorlties, we lntend to move
forward with such improvements as are practical. Our goal Is to continue to make
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available the varlety of food that provides the essential nutrition to needy persons
dependent upon those foods. We will continue to provide assistance and en-
couragement to States to improve their distribution systems so that foods ean be
more conveniently available to eligible recipients.

One of the areas of major thrust will be to expand our outreach and nutrition
education efforts.

Besides increasing program availability, stress will be placed on exploring
the potential offered by further enrichment and fortification of foods, particu-
larly to meet the needs of special groups.

10. That Mr. Lyng made no mention that Washington, California and Oregon
had agreed that if the States were forced to incur welfare costs due to
migrants from another State, they would eventually bill the other State.

Response.—This does not apply to the Food Distribution Program which op-
erates in several areas in Oregon and California. The State of Washington does
not have the Food Distribution Program.

11. That Mr. Lyng had made no mention of any interest in purchasing Puerto
Rican foods for Puerto Ricans nor the fact by using U.S. Bottoms, it caused
higher transportation costs.

Response~The Department had always encouraged Puerto Rican vendors to
submit bids under invitations issued by USDA. Until recently, we have not re-
ceived any responses. However, we now purchase peach, and apricot nectar,
flour and Cornmeal from Puerto Rican vendors. We also send bulk shipments of
CCC ride to Puerto Rico to be milled and packaged for local distribution
by Puerto Rican firms.

Shipments of USDA commodities to Puerto Rico are governed by the Mer-
chant Marine Act of 1920 which reads in part . .. “That no merchandise shall
be transported by water, or by land and water, on penalty of forfeiture thereof,
between points in the United States, including districts, territories, and posses-
sions hereof embraced within the coastwise laws, either directly or via a foreign
port, or for any part of the transportation, in any vessel than a vessel built in
and documented under the laws of the United States and owned by persons who
are citizens of the United States...”

12, That USDA did not suggest how the can size or bag size can be improved.

Response.~—The container and package sizes for USDA donated foods depend
upon and generally adhere to the sizes which normally appear on the retail
market for any given commodity. Products such as flour, evaporated milk, egg
mix, and checse are made available to States by USDA in more than one package
size; however, in order to obtain food in the volume necessary for the program
at a reasonable and responsible price, USDA will accept bids for the larger pack-
age sizes. Information on package labels is designed to help recipients use the
foods. The labels contain storage recommendations for before and after opening
the package, food use suggestions and reclpes developed to make maximum use
of other donated foods. Because canned peanut butter, egg mix, shortening and
infant formula are distributed with snap plastic lds, it is possible to reuse
these containers for storage.
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Appendnx 3
LETTERS AND ARTICLES OF INTEREST

-

Information Previous to the Hearings

FROM SENATOR PERCY

SepTEMBER 1, 1971.
Hon. CLirrorp M. HARDIN,

Secretary, U.S. Department of Agriculture,
Washington, D.C.

Dear MR. SECRETARY: In conjunction with the hearings I will be conducting
in September on the Commodity Distribution Program, there are.a few questions
concerning the Department’s position that ought to be raised at this time.

1. What are the Department's plans for promulgation of national eligibility
standards for the Comodity Distribution Program?

2. When would such regulutions, if anticipated, become effective?

3. Would such regulations and standards require new state plans of operation?

4, What affirmative action would the Department forsee ultimately to bring
counties into compliance with such standards?

5. In case such standards were promulgated, would the Department seek more
funds for administration of the program through the states or would it make
its own presence more evident through other means?

6. What were the amounts of the total liquidated or other damages collected by
the Department for the last five years as a result of contract abrogations in the
Conmmodity Distribution Program?

7. Finally, what commodities, now purchased with section 32 funds, could
possibly through existing authority be purchased with section 416 funds?

I would greatly appreciate a response to these questions as soon as possible
so that they might be utilized in the upcoming hearings. Thank you for your
cooperation in this matter.

Sincerely,
Crarres H. PErcy,
U.S. Senator.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AORICULTURE,
Foop ANp NUTRITION SERVICE,
Washington, D.C., September 14, 1971,
Hon. Conarres H. Pmc\',
U.8. Senate.

DEAR SENATOR PERCY: Secrem ry Hnrdln has asked me to respond to your letter
of September 1, 1971, concerning the Food Distribution Program.
In response to questions one through five, the Department has no plans for
promulgation of national eligibility standards.
In response to questions six and seven, the totnl dollar figure for liquidated
damages collected for late delivery is not available. -
'However, the following information is furnished: .
1. For dairy products acquired under the price support program, liquidated :
dnmages are assessed at the rate of one cent per hundred pounds per day.
- 2. For grain products,acquired under the price support program, the
lignidated damages were assessed at one-half cent per hundred pounds per
day, but these now are in the process of being doubled. :

(2441)
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8. For salad oil and shortening acquired under Section 416, liquidated
damages are assessed at two cents per hundred pounds per day.

4. C&MS assesses liquidated damages for late shipments under Section 6
and Section 32 as applicable at either one cent per case per day or at six
cents per hundred pounds per day.

The purchase of peanut butter ($17.9 million) has already been shifted from
Section 82 to Section 416 funds. There is a_possibility that $17.7 million for
purchase of evaporated milk and ‘$4.8-million for purchase of corn syrup may
also be shifted from Section §2 fo Section 416.fupds. .

We hope we have'been of assistance in providing this lntormutlon

Sincerely,

"Evwarp J. HECKMAN,
: .ddministrator,

FROM THE OFFICE OF-EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT,
- R Washingfon. D.C., August 27, 1971,
Mr. JUD SOMMER,
Minority Counsel, Select Committec on Nutrition and uman Nceda,
U.S. Senate, Washington, D.C.

Dear MR. Soxumer: This responds to your letter of August 18, 1971, in which
you requested information concerning emergency delivery of food to needy
people.

During Fdébruary, 1071, the Oflice of Emergency Preparedness did coordinate
an emergency hay delivery program in several States at the request of the Gov-
ernors concerned. The United States Army and Air Force did provide military
aircraft for the evacuation of stranded personnel and for the airdrop of hay to
stranded cattle during the February-March blizzards.

In a similar situation, when there is no other means to get food to starved
people, this Office could and would coordinate the emergency transportation of
food and other necessities as required. Alternatively, evacuation of stranded
personnel would be considered. The Office of Emergency Preparedness has the
necessary authority and responsibilities under current statutes to provide such a
service when required.

Siucerely, :
THOMAS J. SIMMONS,
Ezeoutive Assistant.

FROM THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRIOCULTURB

DEPARTMENT oF AGRICULTURE,
Washington, D.O., August 27, 1971,
Hon. CrarLes H. Peroy, ’
U.8. Senate.
Dear SENATOR PEROY: Thank you for your letter of July 21 which transmitted
a serles of questions regarding the Department’s Food Distribution Program, For
easy reference we are repeating these questions in our enclosure to this letter, to-
gether with the answers thereto.
Piease contact us if we can be of further aas!stance.
Sincerely, ‘
Ricmarp LYNO,
Assistant Secoretary.

1. Has the direct dlstribution of foods evolved from tight Washington manage-
ment, or has the program originated county by county according to local
initintives?

Historically, the program was optional and voluntary at the loecal level.
In the last four years, national concern about hunger and malnutrition has
resulted in a successful drive to make food assistance programs available
everywhere in the Nation. It is also essential to recognize the vital role played
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‘by agencies of State government :in the Federal/State/local cooperative
structure under which the program is conducted.
2, Is present udmlnlstratlon from a Wnshlngton bnse, or ls it largely in the
hnnds of regional directors? .
Policy is established in Wnshlngton but lmplemented at the Regional level.
8. How often do..the regional divectors meet to ascertaln the performance level
of the direct distribution program? . :

The Regional Administrators meet on cnll monthly or every other month
Periodic meetings ara also beld with Reglonal Food Distribution Program
Directors on speclfic motters,, .

4 How do the regional USDA administrators of the, dlrect dlstrlbutlon pro-
gram review consumer complaints, (recipient complaints) ?

The Regional Administrators are always sensitive to complaints recelved
in correspondence addrossed to them ; they also receive copies of such cor-
respondence handled at Washington level Wherever complaints are specific
and can be investigated, this is done.

.5. What regulations or administrative protocols have been issued in "the last
two years to improve the performance of the direct distribution program?

. We are attaching regulations herewith.

‘6. What measuring devices are used to evaluate quarterly or monthly the per-
centage of the eligible poor currently receiving food program assistance?

The Food and Nutrition Service Program Reporting Staff compiles figures
on participation by counties and, States on a monthly basls, based on reports
submitted by the State ngencles ‘Trends that are observed over a period of
time aré measured and consideréed for potential policy changes. Each county
submits a monthly participation report to the State showing the number of
certified eligibles, the number of participants, and the food items that are
distributed. Neither we nor anyone else has precise figures county by county
on the totul number of persons potentially eligible for this program.

7. What measurement exists to judge the nutritional adequacy of the direct
distribution Program s it operates in the individual counties?

The nutritional value of fonds in the family package at the rates offered
by USDA, if accepted and distributed in counties, can provide recipients
with 100 percent of their RDA for six selected nutrients and protein plus
80 percent of the RDA for calories. However, asg actually accepted, the per-
cent of RDA for protein and the selected nutrients range from 50 percent to
§0 percent and 54 percent for calories. These measurements are based on the
nutritional contribution of the kinds and quantities of food distributed.

8. What factors are there to measure the competence of local non-USDA ad-
niinistrators in supplying the poor with food?

The FNS has proposed Standards of Excellence for household feeding
distribution programs A copy of these standards is attached. All State agen-
cies have been encouraged to also use these standards in evaluating the
programs in their State.

9. What minimum performance standards are sought in monthly or quarterly
reports which give the Department a reading on county performance?

. See item 6 above.

10. Who actually makes the decision as to what items are offered by the
Derurtment of Agriculture for direct distribution?

The .Consumer and Marketing Service, Agricultural Stabilization and
Conservation Service, and Food and Nutrition Service make joint decisions
as to which commodities will be offered to the State. These decisions are
based on availability, cost, reciplent preference, and nutritional value of
food items.

11. Who makes the decision as to what items are offered by individual counties
to their reciplents?

States and countles decide which USDA-donated foods will be offered to
program participants.

12. What is the lead-time on ordering for the 20 items that you offer?

The 24 {tems we offer require three to elght weeks lead time.

18. Do you guarantee to participating counties that all 26 ftems will be al-
ways avallable? If not, then why and bow are {tems made available ,

See item 10. Additionally, we make every effort to make donated foods
available as requested, however, supplies of these items are subject to factors
noted in item 10 above, as well as possible delays in vendors’ shipments,
strikes, and production problems.
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14, Do you guarantee to counties that certain items will be available by a
certain date? . o
See item 18, 4 - S
15. Do you honor these guarantees, if they are made?
See¢ item 18. . : , ' ’
16. When a food item is ordered by a county, is the county assured of receiv-
ing the item within a prescribed time period? :
. u’fhls is a State responsibility ; .some States have better capability than
others. : ’
17. When a county orders an item, does any other Federal agency or organiza-
tion have a prior claim on such an item? .
Supplying the needs of disaster victims always takes priority over other
requirements for donated foods. : o
18, When an item is ordered by a county, does any portion of the private
sector h'ave a prior claim onsuch an item? °

No. :

19. When an item is ordered, and the item i8 not expected to be in adequate
supply, is the applicant county so notified?

In that event, we notify the State, and it is the State's responsibility to
notify the county. '

20. When an item Is ordered, are any speclal instructiors on packaging or
shipment decreed depending on the part of the country making the request?

This depends on the product and variety of packaging available. We try
to satisfy the demands of the States. Justifiable requests by State agencies
for a specific mode of transportation (either rail .: truck) are honored.

91. What determines wL'rh items will be among the 20 items offered?

See item 10.

99 \What determines how many pounds, cans or containers of an item shall be
made available to a family partielpating in the program?

This is determined by family size based on past experience, availabllity of
product, and nutritional adequacy. The Department's Family Distribution
Guide for donated foods is prepared by USDA technicians—nutritionists and
home economists,

93. Does the food distribution program guarantee adequate calories as pre-
scribed by the Food and Nutritlon Board? What is the guaranteed calorie level
per participant in the direct distribution program?

See item 7.
24 What is the guaranteed nutritional level for each participant, In terms of

proteln, vitamin A, vitamin B (niacln, thiamine, riboflavin), vitamin C, vitamin
D, iron and calclum?

See item 7.
9%. When an ethnic or regional group makes a particular request for a certain

type of food, how is this handled in the Washington office? In the regional office?

There §s an on-going effort to provide variety to sult regional tastes. For
example, we are now making pinto beans available to Indians and Mexican-
Americans in the Southwest, We are presently trying to provide a special
tortilla flour to Mexican-Americans, and we will do so it adequate supplies
can be obtained.

28. Who pays for the transportaing of food supplies to a particlpating county?
Who pays for the storage of food in participating county? Who pays for the
distribution of the food?

Funds to pay for transportation and storage within the State are pro-
vided from three sources—Federal Operating Expense Funds, the State, and
the counties,

27, Who pays for any outreach efforts to deliver food to the afling, the crippled
or the distant in a participating county ?

Generally, the county -or local charitable or volunteer organizations. Ad-
ditionally, the Department is sponsoring & pllot Drive-to-Serve Program,
designed to deliver donnted foods to the homes of low-income, clderly per-
sons. This is a cooperative effort involving this Department, the American
Red Cross, and local school systems.

23, Who pays for any educational effort as to how to use the food supplies?

The USDA Federal Extension Service, through the county home exten-
sion agents, provides training ajde programs that utilize the poor to train
other needy families in nutrition education. Other efforts are funded at
State and local levels, The Nutrition and Technlcnl Services Staff of our
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tFl‘lootslt a:xd Nutrition Service is set up to provide such education services to
e State.
29. Who inspects the quality of the food sent to the counties?
l’ll‘he qltxullty of food is inspected by USDA in the vendors’ plants before
shipment. :

80.t\Vho inspects the quality of the food after it {8 received by the participating
coun : :

State and local elements have a responsibility for program management
which includes periodic examination of the condition of food. The county
or State can request a USDA re-inspection should any food item be suspect.

81. Are the same levels of quality used in {nspection here as in commercial
inspection? , -

We understand that ths question asks if our inspection of donated foods
is on a par with the inspection of food moving through commercial chan-
nels. Our answer is aflirmative,

82. Is the packaging for northern Idaho tlie same as that for southern Arizona?

Packaging standards are uniform. With a few items, such as shortening,
processed cheese, and egg mix, the vendor is given an option. For example,
processed cheese can be either a 2 or § pound loaf; egg mix can be a 6 ounce
pouch or 12 ounce tin. Special packaging may be provided where appropri-
ate; for example, tinned butter where refr geration is inadequate.

33. Who pays the cost of goods damaged or spotled in transit?

Costs for damaged or spojled foods are assessed according to liability, and
may be paid by either the vendor or the carrier.

34. Wkhat efforts are made to learn from the mlilitary as to how to produce
better food In more usable form for food program participants?

Representatives of this Department have developed liaison with the De-
fense Supply Agency which involves interagency discussions, and review of
specifications for food commodities. Our current specifications for donated
egg mix closely follow military specifications for that product.

85. What evaluation of the food programs’ successes or faillures is sought
from the recipients?

All consumer comments or complaints are referred for appropriate study
and action. See item 25. .

86. Do any counties have a participant management committee which advises
the Department of Agriculture on how to improve the program?

The only known program of this nature is in the State of Mississippi, and
the advice 1s actually provided by the community to the State agency rather
than to this Department.

87. Do any counties have a program controlled by the participants? .

" YWe do not know of any counties where Food Distribu‘ion Programs are
controlled by recipients.

88. Are the programs in any county managed by someone other than the
county welfare office? :

Yes, in some States. For examples: in Indiana the township trustees
administer the program; in South Dakota, county boards of commissioners
administer the program; in North Carolina, the county welfare agency is
involved only in certification while the State Department of Agriculture
handles distribution; in most instances in Maine and New Hampshire, the
program is administered by town selectmen. .

80. What public meetings occur at the county, state, regional and national
level to entertain suggestions from the participants as to how the food program
can be improved? .

Unknown. Howerver, the Food and Nutrition Service Reglonal Offices are
in touch with the State agencles wherever and whenever it I8 learned that
improvements are needed. In addition, these offices sponsor perfodic meetings
with State agencles. The Departinent held a National Workshop for 82 State
agency officials, September 28-October 1, 1970, An earlier Workshop was
held in 19G9. o

40. What is the Departinent’s record with regard to discovery and prevention
nf lnfegtatllon of ge 3%)0(‘?1?31. o

ce items 29, 30 an :

41, What i8 the maximum age of packaged cereal grain derivatives at the
recipient level?

Every effort is made to expeditiously move such products angl others to
consumers, so as to prevent undesirable time in storage.
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42. What is the maximum temperature permitted for the storage of these
products? i T e :

The Department recommends ﬁonditlons as shown in the Guide for Ware-
housing USDA .Donated Foods, PA-878. o o

43. What ‘appeal 'mechanisms exist for the recipients to gain access to the
program? . . . . P . D S e
-~ All State agencles are now required by Food and Nutrition Service Food
Distribution Regulations to provide a Fair Hearings Procedure to dis-
. satisfled applicants. = o . ' . .
44. What appenl niethanisms exist for groups of reciplents to improve the
quality of the'food de!ivered? S .

See item 43. Wile there are no formal appeal meckanisms for groups of -
recipients the Department’s representatives do meet with groups of recipi-
ents (or organizations representing recipients). as requested, to consider
thelr views. ' o Pl

45. Who makes the determination as to whether the family.is eligible?

Eligibility is established according to standards set by the State and
"approved by this’ Department. Certification in nearly .all States (sce item
88) .is accomplished by the county welfare office.

46, Who scrutinizes the regulations which might place barriers between the
poor and the program? e e o

The Department constantly scrutinizes State Plans of Operation. We are

continually campaigning to eliminate local restrictive policies and practices.
47, When a county is believed to have a low participation rate, what is the
procedure of the Department in changing that low rate?

As a matter of policy, the Department responds to reports of this nature,
In one instance, the Department's effort resulted in an increase in county
participation from about 169 persons in September 1969 to 7,060 in July of
this year.

48, Must a head of household be the food program applicant? Can his wife be
the applicant?

This will vary with State policles: In many areas a wife may be the ap-
plicant. Proxies are permitted to pick up food.

49, Are there minimal tiine periods for recelving food?

Countles are encouraged to make distribution facllities accessible to all
potential recipients. The local distribution schedule is set by local authori-
ties. Issuance to individual families is ordinarily made once a month.

50, Must applicants bring evidence of low income when they apply?

Applicants must show evidence of income before becoming eligible to
participate in the program. . _

51, Must all applicants take all the items offered by the county, or may they
select items within the limitations on each type of food?

This data i8 not furnished to the Department. It is available at county
levels. Reciplents are encouraged to make optimum use of donated foods
through nutrition education and recipe materials., However, at the same
time, reciplents are urged not to accept commodities which they cannot or
will not use, Signs in all distnbutlon centers advise participants to this
effect. .

52. How many countles serve reciplents from centers which are in excess of
50 m!les from the homes of some recipients? . ‘

We do not have this information.

53. How many counties provide delivery services at no charge to the crippled
and housebound? ' '

We do not have this information. See item 27. Additionally, we widely
distribute 2 Handbook for Volunteers which 1s designed to encourage com-
munity groups to provide free delivery services, a8 well as other assistance.

54. How many counties provide truck delivery to the vicinity of the reclpients
on a regular published schedule? -

e do not have specific data,

55. How many counties carry or permit to be carried the food allocation to
the reciplenis’ car, bus or other form of transportation? } ,

YWhile many distribution centers make a service of this kind avallable,
we do not have information on the number which do so.

56. How many counties use the mails or & commercial delivery system to
facilitate the acquisition of foods by participants?

We do not know, but this is not a common practice.
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_ B87. What efforts has USDA made to provide foods {n containers which will
provide a secondary use to the reciplents?
. Plastic lids are provided with some foods (for example, tinned peanut
. butter and shortening) for this purpose. “ .
* 58, What efforts has USDA made to provide vermin-proof packagi~.g in areas

where vermin have been discovered in the grain products?

" USDA packaging is designed -to provide maximum protection from infesta-
on, -
59. What efforts has USDA made to render the containers and packages more
1llustrative of the contents? o :
New labels are currently being developed by Food and Nutrition Service.
Contents In each case will be indicated by appropriate illustrations.
¢ g? “[’hat efforts has USDA made to provide preparation instructions on con-
‘tajners? ‘ o )
' Preparation instructions are placed on labels. In addition, fact sheets or
flyers are distributed which include additional recipes and menv;.
61, What speclal efforts has USDA made to provide food programw services to
migrant families? S ' . _ :
We are currently investigating the practicality of providing a mobile food
supply to match insofar as possible the mobility of migrant worker groups.
This has involved the assignment of a staff to provide appropriate recommen-
. dations for this purpose. We are also looking into the possibility of a multi-
State certification process, but this- will Involve considerable inter-State
negotiations.
02. What special efforts has USDA made to provide Inter-county or inter-State
accreditation to migrant fumilies? .
See item 01,

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRIOULTURE,.
Washington, D.O., September 1, 1971,
Hon. CaanLes H. PEROY, v _

U.8. Senate, Washington, D.O. ) :

DeaAR SENATOR PERCY : In response to a telephone request from Mr. Jud Sommer,
a member of your staff, to Dr. Louise Page, we are sending you a series of tables
providing information on the nutritive value of foods distributed by the Depart-
ment in its Family Food Distribution Program: ’

Table 1,—Nutritive Value of Foods in Representative Package USDA
Offers to States for Families in Commodity Distribution Program, 1 June
1970.

Table 1a.—Nutritive Value of Alternate Foods and Package Sizes USDA
Offers to States for Families in Commodity Distribution Program, 1 June
1970.

Table 2.—Nutritive Value, as Percent of Recommended Dietary Allow-
ances, Supplied by Foods in Representative Package USDA Offers to States
for Families In Commodity Distribution Program, 1 June 1970,

Table 2a.—Nutritive Value, as Percent of Recommended Dietary Allow-
ances, Supplied by Alternate Foods and Package Sizes USDA Offers to States
for Families in Commodity Distribution Program, 1 June 1970,

Table 3.—Nutritive Value of Foods in Representative Package Actually
Distributed to States in Commodity Distribution Program, 1 June 1970,

Table 4.—Nutritive Value as Percent of Recommended Dietary Allow-
ances, Suppiled by Foods in Representative Package Actually Distributed
in Commodity Distribution Program, 1 June 1970.

Table 5.—Summary of Nutritive Value, as Percent of Recommended Die-
tary Allowances, Supplies by Foods in Representative Package Offered and
Distributed by USDA to States for Famllies in Commodity Distribution Pro-
gram, 1 June 1970,

Table 6 18 7robably the table that will be of most interest. The evaluation is for
foods distribated as of June 1, 1970, the last evaluation of this program made
by the Agricultural Research Service. The Food and Nutrition Service now car-
ries out the nutritional evaluation.

I trust this is the information that you wanted.

Sincerely, F. R. SExTI,

Deputy Administrator.

Enclosures.
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TABLE 2.—NUTRITIVE VALUE, AS PERCENT OF RECOMMENDED DIETARY ALLOWANCES! SUPPLIED BY F00DS
IN REPRESENTATIVE PACKAGE USDA OFFERS TO STATES FOR FAMILIES IN COMMODITY DISTRIBUTION PRO-
GRAM, JUNE 1, 1970 (SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE)—Cantinued .

[In percent]

Food - ! Vitamin ~ Ascorbic - Ribo-
Rep_resentative package energy ~ Protein  Calcium Iron - Avalue ~ acid Thiamin - flavin
Applesauce, canned...ceceee 0.6 0.1 0.1 0.6 0.1 0.3 0,2 < 0.1
Beans, dry...ceccecreccancs 4.3 13.1 4,5 19.4 0 0 16.2 -7
BUIgaS.c e cnccceccancnna . 1.1 1.6 R 2.3 0 0 1.8 Ca
BUtleleeeeocecenecenssncncs 5,6 .2 A 0 13.7 0 0 .0
Cheese, cheddar, process.... 3.6 10.6 1.1 1.8 6.3 0 .3 > 6.7
Corn, whole kernel, - .
canned 39 .4 .6 .1 .5 .9 1.5 .3 - .9
Corn grits 34 1.1 1.3 0 2.9 o7 0 . 2.7 1.4
Cornmeal, degermed 3 ¢ 5,7 5.8 .2 14.4 3.7 0 " - 17 - 6.9
Egg mix, scrambled, Co
ehydrated...ecceceenecea 2.0 5.9 4.5 3.4 4.2 3. 1.9 1.0
Lentils, ArY.eecoccecoconnnn 1.1 3.6 6 . 4.2 .1 0 2.3 1.2
Macaronl, milk &, ..eeneeeee 2,3 3.7 .9 - 36 .1 -0 11.0 3.9
Meat, chopped, canned. ..... - 3.5 8.2 .3 5.2 0 0 7.2 4.7
Milk, evaporated I............ 1.6 3.7 1.2 .2 1.9 .6 .9 6.4
Milk, nonfat dry, regulara..._. 10.2 47.3 g2.4 3.3 32.8 9.7 19,6 85.1
Oats, rolled.ccceccccecesinnee 3.7 6.2 1.2. 8.4 0 0 11.2 2.2
Orange juice, sw., canned 89 1.0 .6 5. LS 2.1 32.8 2.7 © .6
Peanut butter.... 3.6 7.5 1.0 2.5 0 0 1.6 1.3
Peas, split, dry... 1.1 3.5 .3 3.2 .2 0 46 1.5
Potatoes, dehydrated
granules . . .. ..... 2.2 2.4 o7 3.0 1.7 53.6 2.0 1.2
Poultry, boned, canned 4. _.. 2.2 11.3 .3 2.9 .8 0 A 27
Prunes, dried.cececcecccecce o7 .3 .3 21 2.3 4 .5 7
RaISINS. e eeenenccscasccane 1.8 .7 1.0 4.4 .1 .3 1.4 .9
Rice, re?ular L IR, 3.4 2.9 .6 - 8.6 0 0 8.2 .§
Shorteningd 1, . ceeeeeenne-.- 5.2 0 9 0 0 0 0 0
TUP; COMecneasscaceansans 2.7 0 1.1 7.6 0 0 0 0
Wheat flour, all-purposa ... 1514 15.4 113 178 0 0 2.4 13.9
Tota)eeeneececcccanas 82.1 156.5 136.7 123.7 us1.7 104.6 . 138.3 154.4

11 person in family of 4: Man and woman, 22 to 35 years; boy, 11 years; and girl, Byesrs. National Academy of Sciencese
Nationali Research Council, published 1964, 1968.

3 Fortfied: 195 mg. ascorbic acid per pound.

8 One 46-11. az. can may replace 1 45-f1. 0z, can of sweetened orange juice.

‘ 'ﬂq 18-f1. 02, cans may replace 1 46-f1. oz, can of sweetened orange juice.

§ May replace whole kernel corn,

¢ May replace cannad boned roultry.

1 Three-fourths of a 2-1b. loaf may replace 34e of a 5-1b. loal.

3Vitamln A values based on yellow varieties; white varisties contain only a trace of vitamin A value,

¢ Enriched: 21 mg. lron, 2 mg. thismin, 1.2 mg. riboftavin, and 16 mg. niacin per pound. One 2-ib. package may
replace 34 5.1b, package of cornmeal,

10 One 1-1b. can may replace )4 1:1b. 14-02. can shomnlnf

1 One-hatt of a 1-1b. 14-0z. can may replace )4 of a 1-ib. 14-07. can shortening.

13 One-half of a 3.Ib, can may r:glm 35 o 3 §-Ib, 14-02, c2n shortening. )

8 Enriched: 13 mg. lron, 4 mg. thiamin, 1.7 mg. riboftavin, and 27 me. niacin per pound. May replace mitk macaroni.

U Fortified: 9,950 1.U. vitamin A and 1996 1.U. vitamin D per gound. May replace regular nontat dry milk,

1 The recommendad diotary allowance of vitamin A, adjusted lo account for the relatively high pm:onuﬁe of preformed
vitamin A in the representative package of {oods offered (75 percent of total vitamin A value), is 2,700 J.U, On this basis
this package provides 136.2 parcent of the allowance.

Note: Nutritive values are based on the commodity as spacified In the USDA purchase announcement of the date indi-
cated in table 7, "“Nutritive Vaiue o 1 Pound of Feods Offered for Families in Commodity Distribution Program.” Changes
in such specifications might atfect the nutritive vaiue of the commodity.
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TABLE2a.—NUTRITIVEVALUE,AS PERCENT OF RECOMMENDED DIETARY ALLOWANCES *SUPPLIED BY ALTERNAT.E

FOODS AND PACKAGE SIZES'USDA OFFERS TO STATES FOR FAMILIES IN COMMODITY 0ISTRIBU

JUNE 1,1970 (SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE)

{In percent)

TION PROGRAM ,

, Alternate foods or- .- . Food - Vitamin :Ascorbic _ - Ribo-

package sizes .energy  Protein - Calcium .- . lron ° Avalue - acid Thianin flavin
Apple julce 3. 0.9 0.1 0,3 2.3 0 4.2 0.2 0.5
Apple juice 34__ .9 0.1 .3 2.3 0 40.2 .2 W5
Beans, green, canned d .3 S50 LA 9 L .4 .4
Beet with natural Juices .22 10.8 .4 7.0 W1 0 - 12 2.8
Cheese, Cheddar, process ... 3.5 10.2 16.4 .7- . 61 0 I 6.4
Cotn, cream-style, canned 4 3. .5 .6 -0 e 1.1 1.5 Co.4 .5
Cornmeal, degermed 91, ... 4.6 .7 .20 1.5 2.9 0 -11L0 5.6
Lard 0. : 5.7 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 0
Lardil_ .. 5.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Lard W ... .eueinne.e 8.5 0 ', 0 0 0 0 0 0
Macaronl, wheat-soy 3....... 2.2 4.8 - .9 3.6 0 =+ 0 11.0 3.9
Mitk, nonfat dry, instant . , .- 8.0 - 4.9 81.2 3.0 ~ 292 . 86 17.4 74.8
Orange {uice, Unsw.,cannedd. - ,9 W1 .5 1.5 2,0 36.9 2.7, 6
Orange fuice, unsw.,canned 3, .9 i .5 1.5 2.1 37.8 2.1 .6
Orange Julce, Sw., canned {... 1.0 .6 W5 1.5- 2.0 36.9 2.7 .6
Peas, green, cannedd........ .4 1.0 .2 2.1 1.5 2.7 1.2 .6
Pork with natural juices?d. ... 2.5 9.1 .4 59 .0 0 . 10.4 3.2
Potatoes,dehydratedflakes¥_ - 2.3 2.1 .6 2.1 1.7 53.6 2.9 -6
Shorteningto__ . 8.3 0 0 0 0. 0 0 0
Shortening 3. 55 0 : 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tomatoes, canned §.. .1 .3 .1 .6 3.0 5,2 .6 .3
Tomato juice d...... .4 .8 .3 3.4 8.1 14.9 2.0 .9
Tomato juice . ..... - .4 .8 .3 3.4 8.0 14.8 2.0 .9
Wheat, rolled 38, .. ......... 3.2 A3 . .8 6.0 0 0 6.7 1.9

1 Based on USDA famlly distribution for a 4-person family. As indicated helow in a footnote for each item, an alternate
may be a diferent food or may be a different amount of the same food because a different package size is used. B
3 Fortified: 195 mg. ascorbic acid per pound. k

3 One 46-fl. oz, can may replace one 45-fl. 0z, can ot sweetened orange juice.
4 234 18-f1. oz. cans may replace one 46-fl. oz. can of sweetened orange juice.

3
%

§ May replace whole kerne! corn,

t May replace canned boned poultry.

? Three-fourths of a 2-1b. loaf may replace 3{e of a 5-1b, loal.

8 Vitamin A values based on yellow varieties; white varieties contaln only a trace of vitamin A value,

*Enriched: 21 mg. iron, 2 mg. thiamin, 1.2 mg. riboflavin, and 16 mg. niacin per pound. One 2-lb. package may
34 5-1b, package of cornmeal,

10 One 1-1b. can may replace 34 1-1b. 14-0z. can shortenln%

W One-half of a 1.tb, 14-02. can may replace 34 of  1-1b. 14-0z. can shortening.

12 One-half of a 3-1b, can may replace 34 of a {-1b, 14-0z. can shonenlnf. :

3 Enriched: 13 mg, iron, 4 mg. thiamin, 1.7 mg. riboflavin, and 27 mg, niacin per pound, May replace milk macronl.

% Fortified: 9,980 |.U. vitamin A and 1,996 1., vitamin D per pound. May replace regular nonisat dry milk.

1 Fortifiad: 16,000 1.0, vitamin A and 798 mg. ascorbic acid per pound. May replace dehydratec potato granules.
 May replace rolled oats.

Note: Nutritive values are based on the commodity as specified In the USDA purchase announcement of the date indj-

cated in table 7, **Nutritive Value of 1 Pound ot Foods Offered for Famitics in Commodity Distribution Program." Changes
In such specifications might affect the nutritive value of the commodity.
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TABLE 5.—SUMMARY OF NUTRITIVE VALUE, AS PERCENT OF RECOMMENDED OIETARY ALLOWANCES,! SUPPLIED
BY FO00S 1t REFRESENTATIVE PACKAGE OFFERED AND DISTRIBUTED BY USDA TO STATES FOR FAMILIES 1IN
CO’4MODITY OISTRIBUTION PROGRAM, JUNE I, 1970

[ia percent]
foods ofiered  Foods actuafly
Nutrieat : by USDA?  distriduted?
| >4 0
1% 104
137 73
124 91
1% 8
105 N
138 101
154 9

1 National Acaderty of Sciences-Mational Research Council, Pub. 1634, 1963, RDA based on average aflowances fot 1
perscn in family cf 4 (rnan and woman, 22 to 35 years; boy, 11 years; and gir], 8 nmi.

1 Representative package of 26 foods in average amounis suggested by USDA for | person in 4-persan househogd :
appiesaaie, dry beans, buigar, butter, cheese, canned whole-kernef com, corn grits, coramest, dry lentils, milk macaroni,
canned chopped meat, evaporat2d milk, regular nanfa! dry milk, tofle1 oats, canned onange juice, peamt butter, dry split
peas, dehydrated potato grancies, canned bored pIWNtry, dried prunes, raising, rice, shorteaing, scramblied egg mix, corn
suvg and all-purpose whest flour. The list of 10038, and smownts of single foods are subject 1o chaafe withoe! notice.

$ Amounts of 26 foods in representative package based on records of distribetion 10 families, 1969, except spplesauce,
lentils, 27.d macaroni which are estimated.

¢ Assymes 75 percent is preformed vitamin A,

FROM THE AGRICULTURE RESEARCH SERVICE

AGRICULTURAL RESEARCHT SERVICE,
Washington, D.0, Sepiember 8, 1971.
Hon. Cnanies H. PegcCY,
U.S. Scnate.

Dear Sexa7tor PeErcY : This is in response to the telephone request of Mr. Jud
Sommer of your office for information on the fortification of certain products dis-
tributed in the domestic food distribution program as compared to the fortifica-
tion of these products as provided by the Government for the overseas distribu-
tion program under PL 480, Title II.

In the table enclosed this comparison is given for wheat flour, corn meal. bulgur,
and non-fat dry milk. It will be noted that flour provided under PL 450, Title 11
Program is fortified with vitamin A and calcinm in addition to the supplemental
nutrients required in U.S. enriched flour: iron, thiamine, riboflavin, and niadn.
Vitamin A and calcium were added in view of overt symptoms of deficiencies of
these nutrients in the developing countries. In addition to the enriched flour, the
Department also distributes a Iysine-fortified, doubly-enriched flour to selected
population groups whose flour consumption is relatively high and who have spe-
cial need for the added nutrients.

For corn meal, rice, and corn grits, the minimum level of iron fortification
required in the product distributed in the Department Commodity Distribution
Program is higher than the minimum required by the Federa! Standards of
Identity for these enriched products. The GSDA minimum is, however, within
the range specified in the Federal Standards of Identity.

As indicated in the table, bulgur provided under PL 480, Title II, to certain
overseas programs is fortified with lysine. Currently, the major part of the bulgur
in the Title II programs, like that in the U.S. Commodity Distribution Program,
is not fortified. Bulgur is a whole grain product and retains a high percentage of
the vitamins and minerals native to wheat.

Non-fat dry milk distributed in both the domestic and overseas programs is
{ortified with vitamin A and vitamin D.

A question was raised concerning the distribution of CSM (Corn-Soy-Milk)
mix and WSB (Wheat-Soy Blend) in the overseas program baut not in the
domestic program. These products were designed specifically to meet the re-
quirements of a child food supplement for the overseas distribution programs.
For this purpose, a single food was needed which wonld provide in one serving

L NS

[

A

i bt

t
§
4
h
i
{
H
H




2454

a snbstantial portion of the daily requirements for protein. vitamins, and min-
erals. As ured overseas, CSM and WSB may be the single and only food sorved
in the xchool lunch progiam or in programs for preschool children. This is in
contrnst to the dowestic school lunch program in which the es«ential nutrients
are obtained from serving a variety of foods and a siugle food need not be relied
upon to provide all nutrients.

A consideration In the distribution of foods in the domestic programs is their
avallability in the commercial market. 1 a new food introduced into the domestic
distribution program is to bave maximum nutritional impact, it is desirable
that this product be avaliable in the retail markel The product would also be
availnble to food gtamp recipients and to families not rarticipating in the dis-
tribution program. .

The Depattment distributes supplemental foods directed to the special needs
of infants, children, and pregnant and post-partum women. An example of a
cerenl product distributed in the supplemental food program is iron-fortified
farina. This prodact is listed in the table. Iron-fortified instant rice cereal,
eomparable to the product available commercially as a baby food, also has been
distributed as n supplementary food. These cereals are fortified with a relatively
high level of iron to meet the special requirements of the recipient group. A
number of other products providing protein, vitaming, and other nutrients are
also distributed as supplemental foods. Included are evaporated milk, instant
nog—;:‘tﬁ dry milk, canned mea and poultry, canned juice, and canned vegetables
an t.

We hope this information will be helpful to you.

Sincerely,
F. I SEsT11,

Deputy Adminisiralor.
Enclosure.
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Information Subsequent to the Hearings
{From tle Clilcago Sun-Times, Rept. 24, 1971]
PERCY, OTHERS DINE ON SURPLUS FOODS
By Morton Kondracke

Wasnixcrox.—Sen. Charles H. Percy (R-llL) invited some friends to dine
Wednesday on food <uch as the U.S. Agriculture Department supplies to the poor.
No one went back for ~econds,

According to Agticulture officials, the luncheon was entirely nutritious and
pure, and. indeed, no one became sick on the premises.

If you had the stomach to disregard its appearance and actually eat it, the
food did not taste all that bad. A few persons smiled and zaid it was good, hut
they were later identified as employes of the Agriculture Department.

Jtice WitH A Bite

The meal consisted of chicken and rice, which was flat but edible; cAnned
pork that was distinguishuble as meat but indistinguishable as pork; eggs that
bad been reconstituted to look and taste like yellow hominy grits; pr
cheese that tasted like processed cheese; green beans that were good, and to-
mato juice with a hite to it that suggested aged tin can.

In addition, there was canned spiced ham, which was terrible. But then, it
always is.

Percy served this fare on the final day of hearings by the Senate Select Com-
mittee on Nutrition and Human Needs on the Agriculture Department’s Com-
modity Distribution Program, which serves 3.5 million poor persons living in
1,051 counties in the nation which do not participate in the food stamp program.

22 Kixps oF Fare

Food stamps, available in all counties in Illinois, allow a recipient to choose
his own fioods at the market. Grnder commodities, the Agriculture Department
distributer 22 kinds of surplus food to states, which then hand it out to the

poor.

Gingerly moving bis chicken and rice about with a fork, Percy asserted that
the program “is designed to take surplus products off the hands of producers,
rather than to solve the nutritional problems of the poor.”

He said that his meal “seems to be good, for the most part, as prepared by the

cooks in the Senate restanrant.”
He said, however, that only 22 commeodities are included in the commeodity

program and “some of those are in short supply.”
Craim Low NUTRITIONAL REQUIREMESTS

In addition, according to Percy, “an elderly widow has to lug a whole month’s
supply at a time up to her small apartment, and she may or may not have a
refrigerator big enough to keep large cans of commodities fresh once they are
opened.”

The committee heard testimony that most poor persons relying on commodities
get enough food to supply only 54 per cent of their caloric requirements and an
even lower percentage of their nutritional requirements.

Assistant Agriculture Sec. Richard Lyng said that the nutritional value of the

basis commodity package has been increased so that it provides 100 per cent of
daily vitamin requirements and 80 per cent of calorie needs when all commodities

are available.
DopGeES RESPONSIBILITY

Charges were made before the committee that spoiled food had been found
in some state watehouses. Lyng said that his department’s authority stopped
when the food was delivered to states,

Sen. Richard Schweiker (R-Pa.), who joined Percy and Lyng for lunch,
remarked that, “I'd find it difficalt to stand this kind of meal regularly. It may
be nutritious, but taste and appearance are impottant, too.”

Lyng, who cleaned his plate except for some rice and potatoes he said his diet
would not permit him to eat, said of the meal, “1 find it very tasty.”

Lyng was overheard to comment to Schweiker that “I did pretty well with the
food, but I just can’t drink the milk,” which Lyng said had been improperly

reconstituted.
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FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE

Foop AxXp DrRte ADMINISTRATION,
Washinglon, D.C., October §, 1971,
RoBERT 8. CHOATE AXD ABSOCIATESR,
Washington, D.C.

DeAR MR CHoATE: We have now completed our examination of the canned
foods which you discussed with Dr. Schaffner by telephone on September 14, 1071,
and which were subsequently delivered to his office by messenger. Since Dr.
Schaflner is out of town, he asked that I reply to you.

The intact can of evaporated milk, code VG1052, was soiled and corroded and
the can ends wure bulged. The contents were lumpy, with a pH of 53 indicating
brotein destabilization, contained many fine bubbles and had a strong odor of
decomposition. Direct microscopic examination showed no bacteria present. No
botulinal toxin was found, either preformed or aiter culturing, by intraperitoneal
injection in unprotected mice. Based on these findings, we would consider this
product to be unfit for food. We understand from USDA that this can of evap-
orated milk was packed -6-71 by Carnation, Inc, Gustine, California and
graded by USDA on 7-7-71. The empty evaporated milk can, code VG1052, was
solled, c{)ttodcd and ruptured along the side seam and was not otherwise
examined.

The intact can of tomatoes, code W127-T3C, was solled and corroded but the
ends were flat. The inside can enamel was intact except for some darkening
along the side seam. The can contents were normal In appearance and odor and
had a pH of 4.2 classifying the product as an acid food not subject to botulinal
contamination. Direct microscopic examination showed the presence of a few
short gram negative rods and one gram negative filament—not unusual for
canned tomatoes. No botullnal toxin was found, either preformed or after cultur-
ing, by intraperitoneal injection in unprotected mice. Based on these findings, we
would consider this product to be fit for food. We understand from USDA that
this can of tomatoes was packed by the Hickmott Canning Company of Antioch,
California, in 1970.

The empty orange juice can, code 5900 H536, was solled and corroded and the
ends were severely bulged. It is our understanding that you were informed by
USDA that the twarehouse lots from which these cans were tnken were scheduled
for destruction. We trust, however, that the above !nformation will be helpful
to you.

Sincerely yours,

P. Q. Haranex, Ph. D,
Acting Deputy Director,
Division of Food Technology.




